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C:HA\I_RIVIAN’S STATEMENT
- 1%*&%

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS
HEAAR -

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Board”) of Extrawell Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

In 2019, the global economy slowed down in the context of
geopolitical instability arising from trade tension between China and
the United States and the Brexit uncertainty. Battered by the trade
war with the United States, China’s economy grew 6.1% in 2019, its
slowest rate of growth in 29 years, but was within its official target
range for 2019.

At the beginning of 2020, the outbreak of novel coronavirus
pneumonia (COVID-19) that was declared as a pandemic by World
Health Organisation in March, has considerable impact on the global
business environment, dampening international trade and creating
great uncertainty to the global economy. China’s economy shrank 6.8%
in the first quarter of 2020, its first economic contraction since 1992,
as the nation was substantially placed on lockdown in early 2020 in
order to restrict the movement of people and contain the spread of
the pandemic, that caused disruption to industrial production and
weakened sentiments in investment and domestic consumption.

China’s pharmaceutical industry has been undergoing continuous
changes alongside the deepening comprehensive healthcare reforms
accompanied by an array of intensive policies. Associated with
optimisation of the drug supply side structure, multiple policies
through the expansion of the pilot areas for the centralised bulk
procurement program across the nation, issue of key monitoring drug
list, adjustment to the national reimbursement drug list and the
piloting of payment systems based on diagnosis related group, have
stepped up the rationalisation of price and use of drugs. The
amended Drug Administration Law aiming at, among others,
improving health legislation, reinforcing drug administration and
intensifying penalties for non-compliance, came into force on 1
December 2019. With China’s accession to The International Council
for harmonisation of Technical Requirements for Pharmaceuticals for
Human Use, together with the reforms in the pharmaceutical
regulatory and supervisory systems, pharmaceutical enterprises are
subject to stringent regulatory compliance, outdated production
capacity of generic drug manufacturers are eliminated while the
review and approval process of high-quality clinically needed products
are accelerated. The advancing regulatory and supervisory
frameworks facilitate the pharmaceutical industry to develop in an
innovative and quality-oriented direction.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)
EREEE)

The Group believes that the healthcare reforms bring both challenges
and opportunities to pharmaceutical enterprises amid intense
competition in the China market with huge potential. In light of the
complicated operating environment in China, the Group has kept on
aligning its internal resources in recent years to strengthen its long-
term development path. Through years of persistent efforts on the
technical, managerial and marketing aspects to enhance productivity,
optimise cost structure and promote brand awareness, the Group’s
manufacturing segment has demonstrated continuous improvement
in performance. And in response to the added challenges posed by
the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group used its endeavor to ensure that
its response actions to the containment measures kept up by the
nation were adequately in place while exerting its greatest efforts to
minimise disruption to its production in February 2020. With
consolidated efforts in further strengthening internal management to
alleviate the impacts from the COVID-19 outbreak nationwide, the
Group’s manufacturing segment delivered a positive result this
financial year. The Group’s trading segment of imported
pharmaceuticals, however, suffered from increase in loss aggravated
by the impairment provision made for trade and other receivables,
and as the regulatory issues of the imported pharmaceuticals are still
pending to be resolved, the Group expects to input additional efforts
with its business partners in order to improve the situation. The overall
operating results of the Group’s business operations have improved
as compared to last financial year and the Group will continue to stay
focused on improving its business performance while staying vigilant
in managing risks against the ever-changing market environment.

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to about HK$83.3 million as compared to a profit of about
HK$64.0 million of last financial year, representing an increase of
about HK$19.3 million, primarily attributable to increase in the fair
value of the Group’s investments in convertible bonds, which is a
non-cash item.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

In the midst of the global downturn caused by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Chinese government has not set an economic growth
target this year but it is expected that various policies and measures
will be successively released by the Chinese government to stimulate
the economy and to further improve its public health system, and
under the national strategy of “Healthy China 2030”, the
pharmaceutical industry will continue to undergo processes of
transformation and upgrading. The Group believes that favourable
policies supporting the accomplishment of the national goal, together
with the unmet demand for quality drugs alongside the growing aging
population, changing disease spectrum and emerging rare diseases,
will continue to bring business and development opportunities to
pharmaceutical enterprises. The Group will keep track of the national
policy direction and keep pace with the rapidly evolving policy
landscape. In the meantime, the Group will continue to focus on
improving its production capability and operating performance,
thereby enhancing its core competitiveness for its sustainable
development. With sound financial fundamentals, the Group believes
it will be in a better position to respond to ongoing challenges and
changes.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express its appreciation to all
those in the Group for their dedicated efforts and contribution to the
Group during the past year, and to the shareholders, business
partners and stakeholders for their continuous support.

Dr. Xie Yi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THEWRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overall Performance Review

Global economy showed subdued growth momentum throughout
2019, which was marked by the heightened uncertainty of global
political and economic environment, largely due to protracted and
escalating US-China trade disputes. Global economic growth
dropped to its decade low to 2.9% in 2019 according to the
International Monetary Fund, while China’s economy continued
performing within a reasonable range, albeit slower, maintained a
stable growth of 6.1% in 2019. Nevertheless, overshadowed by the
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020, the world was put to
an almost standstill and China’s economy was impacted when large
scale lockdowns of cities and quarantines were implemented by the
government in order to contain the spread of the pandemic. As a
result, China had experienced its first contraction in economic growth
since 1992, shrinking 6.8% in the first quarter of 2020. Although
China faced tremendous downward pressures of economic growth,
the pharmaceutical industry maintained its growth momentum
underpinned by growing market demands and increasing
government’s investments in the industry toward high-quality and
innovation driven development under the directives of the Thirteenth
Five-Year Plan (2016-2020) and Healthy China 2030 Plan. Following
last year’s major institutional reform to streamline the drug regulatory
administration framework, the Chinese government had stepped up
the reform to amend the Drug Administration Law, which came into
effect on 1 December 2019, seeking to improve health legislation,
reinforcing drug administration and intensifying penalties for non-
compliance. The legislative reform as well as the continuous rollout of
expanded scope of policies including the advancement of consistent
quality and efficacy evaluation, adjustment of reimbursement drug list,
issue of key monitored drug list, and extension of centralised drug
procurement initiative to more cities and provinces have brought
significant challenges to the pharmaceutical market and the Group.

The challenging economic conditions and the acceleration of
regulatory changes have further intensified the competition in the
industry on all fronts, which have placed immense pressure on the
Group’s performance, and largely due to negative impact of no
revenue generated in the imported pharmaceutical trading segment,
the Group’s revenue and gross profit decreased to HK$77.6 million
(2019: HK$89.2 million) and HK$42.9 million (2019: HK$49.6 million)
respectively, representing a decrease of about 13.0% and 13.5% as
compared with that of last financial year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Overall Performance Review (Continued)

However, the operating results of the Group’s manufacturing segment
continued to improve and reported a segmental profit of about
HK$6.5 million (2019: loss HK$3.6 million) which offset the increase in
segmental loss mainly due to impairment provision made for trade
and other receivables, of the trading segment. The Group’s profit for
the year was about HK$85.6 milion (2019: HK$63.3 million),
representing an increase of about HK$22.3 million or 35.1%. The
increase in profit was primarily attributable to a non-cash item,
resulted from an increase in a gain of about HK$21.5 million arising
from the fair value change of the Group’s investments in convertible
bonds.

The Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was about HK$83.3 million, representing an increase of about
HK$19.3 million when compared to profit of about HK$64.0 million of
last financial year.

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector

The pandemic outbreak in early 2020 had created tremendous
pressures to manufacturing enterprises in China. The Group’s plants
in Changchun were temporarily closed after the Lunar New Year
holidays until mid-February 2020 in response to the nationwide
containment measures, and upon resumption of production,
management had promptly implemented stricter health and hygiene
measures to safeguard health and safety of the staff in the workplace
while consolidating efforts to strengthen internal management and
external material supply to avoid disruption to production, which
helped mitigate the negative impact on the segment’s performance.

The shifting market dynamics as driven by tightened regulatory
controls and deepened healthcare reform policies had also exerted
tremendous pressures to the segment. In face of rapidly changing
and highly competitive market environment, aside from building on
executing the successful strategic initiatives implemented last year to
strengthen competitive position, secure market share and capture
new growth opportunities, management had swiftly put in place more
stringent measures focused on profitability by improving production
efficiency and reducing operating costs. These combined efforts
enabled the segment to maintain the trend of revenue growth and
stable gross profit margin for the Group’s major product lines, in
particular, the product specialised in improving the immunity system
of human body against diseases. As a result, segment revenue
slightly increased to about HK$77.6 million (2019: HK$75.8 million)
with gross profit margin maintained at similar level as last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERE W R ()

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Manufactured Pharmaceutical Sector (Continued)

During the year, segment results recorded a profit of about HK$6.5
million (2019: loss HK$3.6 million), representing a significant
improvement by about HK$10.1 million, contributed by stable
revenue and gross profit margin, together with management’s efforts
in promptly adjusting its marketing strategies and controlling those
budgeted costs and expenses in response to market changes, which
led to a write-back of provision for marketing and promotion
expenses of about HK$3.7 million coupled with a further reduction in
such overall selling and distribution expenses of about HK$7.5 million,
whilst there was a recovery of bad debts of about HK$2.1 million to
partly offset the increase in impairment provision for receivables of
about HK$4.2 million made in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies.

Imported Pharmaceutical Sector

The unfavorable factors as stated in the Group’s Annual and Interim
Reports published respectively in July and December 2019, including
the backlog of approval process for the renewal of import license and
the issues pertaining to temporary sales suspension of the Group’s
imported products, have continued adversely affecting the segment
performance. As a consequence, no revenue was generated in the
year under review, which resulted in the loss of revenue and gross
profit contribution to about HK$13.4 milion and HK$7.1 million
respectively when compared to last year.

Although there was a corresponding reduction of selling and
marketing expenses as well as operating expenses by about HK$4.5
million and HK$0.3 million respectively, the loss in gross profit
contribution together with the increase in impairment provision for
trade and other receivables of about HK$6.0 million aggravated the
segment loss to about HK$14.9 million (2019: loss HK$6.6 million),
representing an increase of about HK$8.3 million. The Group has
taken measures to rationalise its operations with the aim of reducing
its operating costs, other than the overhead expenses comprising
mainly offices and staff costs that are necessary to maintain its
ongoing operations.

Despite the above, the Group and its business partners have been
making persistent efforts in order to resolve the regulatory issues in
the long term so as to bring the imported product, in particular, the
skin treatment product which was the major revenue contributor to
the segment, back to the China market, and at the same time to
explore other market opportunities by developing new sales platform.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Gene Development Sector

During the year, gene development remained inactive and no revenue
was recorded.

Interest in an Associate

The Group holds 49% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart
Ascent”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Smart Ascent Group”),
and the major asset of the Smart Ascent Group is the intangible asset
in relation to an in-process research and development project (“In-
process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (“Product”), which is
still at its clinical trial stage. As a minority shareholder of Smart
Ascent, the Group has been working closely with Innovative
Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”), the 51%
shareholder of Smart Ascent, in monitoring the progress of the oral
insulin project with a view to facilitating successful launching of the
Product to the market.

For the purpose of financing the working capital requirements of
Smart Ascent Group for the oral insulin project, Innovative Pharm
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Innovative Pharm Group”) and the
Company through their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries as
lenders and Smart Ascent as borrower entered into a shareholders’
loan agreement on 27 July 2018 for a loan to Smart Ascent
amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed as
to 51% i.e. HK$15.3 million by Innovative Pharm Group and as to
49% i.e. HK$14.7 milion by the Group. The Loan is unsecured,
interest bearing at 5% per annum and has a repayment term fixed at
60 months after each drawdown of the Loan. In August 2019, Smart
Ascent had drawn down in aggregate of HK$20 million, and
accordingly, the Group and Innovative Pharm Group made
contribution in the sum of HK$9.8 milion and HK$10.2 million
respectively to Smart Ascent, and together with the HK$10 million
drawn down in September 2018, Smart Ascent had fully drawn down
the Loan of HK$30 million.

As stated in the 2019 Annual Report, the timeline for
commercialisation of the Product was expected to be in around
January 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERE W R ()

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

The contract research organisation engaged by Smart Ascent Group
has been working with the principal investigator for the clinical trial
and the project team in the process of selection of participating
hospitals and the selection and enrolment of patients for the clinical
trial. However, the outbreak of COVID-19 in China since early 2020
has disrupted the normal operations of participating hospitals for the
clinical trial of the Product, and to ensure the safety of patients and
clinical researchers, the clinical trial in the process of selection and
enrolment of patients, was temporarily suspended pending
improvement in the pandemic situation. Given the aforesaid delay in
the selection and enrolment of patients for the clinical trial caused by
the unexpected pandemic outbreak, and subject to the pandemic
situation improving, the timeline for commercialisation of the Product
as reassessed by Smart Ascent Group has been revised to be in
around the fourth quarter of 2022.

During the year, the loss of Smart Ascent Group increased to about
HK$13.1 million (2019: HK$3.6 million), for which the Group’s share
of loss amounted to about HK$3.2 million (2019: HK$0.9 million)
representing an increase of HK$2.3 million. Such increase mainly
related to increase in research and development expenses for the oral
insulin project.

In light of the growing aging population and development of chronic
diseases such as diabetes, in China, enormous market exists for
quality diabetes drugs, and the Product featured with oral
administration of insulin is expected to provide an effective treatment
and better quality of life for the constantly growing diabetic population
in China that market prospect will be enormous for the Product.

In making the assessment as to the recoverability of the In-process
R&D and the fair value of the interest in the associate, the Group has
engaged an independent qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited
(“Valuer”) in conducting a valuation. The asset-based valuation
approach has been consistently adopted in the valuation and the
recoverable amount of the In-process R&D was determined based on
fair value calculation using cash flow projections, which the estimated
cash inflows derived from budgeted sales and gross margin were
based on the expectation for the market development, and which
included the regulatory approvals from the relevant government
bodies and launching of the Product by the fourth quarter of 2022.
The recoverable amount of the interest in the associate was
determined based on share of the estimated fair value of the In-
process R&D after taking into account the lack of control discount.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Interest in an Associate (Continued)

The expected future economic benefits attributable to the In-process
R&D was assumed to cover a 10-year period from the
commercialisation of the Product. The calculation used in the cash
flow projections with certain key parameters are as below:

Discount rate (post-tax) BEIR R (R FiL128)
Growth rate £ &
Gross profit ratio E F =

In conducting the impairment assessment, the directors of the
Company, having considered the prevailing market conditions,
reasonableness of assumptions used for the cash flow projections
and the valuation as prepared by the Valuer indicating its fair value in
excess of the carrying amount, do not identify any indication on the
carrying amount of the interest in the associate as at 31 March 2020
that may need to be impaired. Accordingly, no impairment is
considered necessary as at 31 March 2020.

The Group will continue to closely coordinate with Innovative Pharm
in monitoring the progress of the oral insulin project with a view to
facilitating successful launching of the Product to the market. In
addition, the Group will continue to perform impairment assessment
on the carrying amount of the interest in the associate in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”
where necessary.

Other income and gains and losses, net

Other income and gains and losses, net were in total a gain of about
HK$106.1 million (2019: HK$89.1 million), which increased by about
HK$17.0 million or 19.1%. The increase was mainly attributable to (i)
increase in a gain by about HK$21.5 million arising from fair value
change of the Group’s investments in convertible bonds, (i) increase
in loan and imputed interest income from an associate in aggregate
of about HK$2.5 million, (i) bad debts recovery of about HK$2.1
million, and (iv) increase in impairment provision for trade and other
receivables of about HK$5.7 million and HK$4.5 million respectively.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased to about
HK$24.6 million (2019: HK$40.2 million), representing a decrease of
HK$15.6 million or 38.9%. The decrease was the result of a
combination of effect from () manufacturing segment, upon its
adoption effective marketing strategies and the initiatives to control
budgeted costs and expenses, which led to savings by about HK$7.5
million and a write-back of provision of about HK$3.7 million made in
prior year, and (i) trading segment, which generated no sales causing
a decrease of related expenses by about HK$4.5 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERE W R ()

REVENUE AND OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were maintained at a similar level of about
HK$26.4 million (2019: HK$26.4 million), which reflects
management’s efforts and vigilance in cost control and savings with
the aim of improving the Group’s profitability.

OUTLOOK

Despite signs of gradual recovery after easing lockdown measures to
contain the spread of COVID-19 pandemic, the widespread
uncertainties of the second wave of infections as well as diplomatic
rifts between the US and China have clouded the outlook for the
global economic growth. Facing global slowdown and domestic
headwinds, the Chinese government has unveiled larger fiscal and
monetary policies to support businesses, stimulate domestic
demands, and sustain employments in order to weather this difficult
time.

Although the pace of growth in China has been slowing, it is expected
that the government will continue to commit resources to invest in the
healthcare reforms in the last year of the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan.
Notwithstanding a slew of regulatory reforms to rationalise drug
prices, improve access to new drugs, tighten control over drug quality
and safety, promote innovation and foster market competition, the
Group remains optimistic that opportunities in the pharmaceutical
market are huge in light of mounting demands driven by the
accelerated aging population, rising standard of living and increasing
health consciousness emerged from the recent pandemic outbreak.

Looking ahead, the economic and operating environments are
expected to be more complex and dynamic. The outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic as well as the radical changes in the regulatory
landscape of the pharmaceutical industry have caused disturbances
to the market and the whole process of the industry chain, which
poses significant challenges to the production and operation of the
Group’s business segments operating in China. As the positive
progress by the Group’s manufacturing segment reflects the
effectiveness of the strategic initiatives adopted, management is
committed to moving forward with these strategic initiatives and
believes that the Group will build a more solid foundation for
sustainable growth in revenue and profitability in the long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

OUTLOOK (Continued)

Given the uncertainties of magnitude and depth the pandemic
impacting the global and China’s economy, management will
continuously endeavor to adopt flexible strategies in response to the
market changes and stay vigilance in controlling the operating costs
in order to enhance operational efficiency and preserve financial
flexibility for the Group. Buttressed upon the Group’s sound financial
position, the Group believes that it is in a better position to respond to
abrupt changes and challenges and sustain a development path for a
better future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

It is the Group’s strategy to manage its financial resources
conservatively by maintaining a healthy level of cash flows to meet all
its financial commitments when they fall due. The Group generally
finances its operations with internally generated cash flow and
banking facilities.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total cash and bank balances
(including pledged bank deposits) of about HK$147.9 million (2019:
HK$169.9 million), representing a decrease by about HK$22.0 million
or 12.9%. Such decrease was mainly due to provision of a
shareholder’s loan of about HK$9.8 million to Smart Ascent Limited
and a negative operating cash flows of about HK$13 million, which
was also the result of the extension the date of annual interest
payment of HK$25.0 million from investments in convertible bonds
until 28 July 2021 to partly offset the cash utilisation.

Accruals and Other Payables

Accruals and other payables decreased by about HK$22.3 million to
HK$32.2 million as of 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$54.6 million). When
excluding a reclassification of about HK$4.0 million related to credit
balances with customers, such decrease of about HK$18.3 million
was largely due to (i) a reduction in accrued expenses for marketing
and promotion by about HK$6.4 milion to HK$9.9 million (2019:
HK$16.3 million) resulting from a write-back of provision of about
HK$3.7 million in the manufacturing segment and no provision for
such expenses (2019: HK$4.5 million ) as no revenue was generated
in the trading segment, and (i) settlement of payables in aggregate of
about HK$11.9 million, of which payables for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment reduced by about HK$8.3 milion to HK$5.6
million (2019: HK$13.9 million) and payables for marketing and
promotion expenses reduced by HK$3.6 million to HK$4.5 million (2019:
HK$8.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERE W R ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

The Group did not have bank borrowings during the year but had
banking facilities on trade finance, which were supported by the
pledge of the Group’s fixed deposits of about HK$21.5 million (2019:
HK$21.0 million) and corporate guarantees from the Company and
certain subsidiaries of the Company. In general, there is no significant
seasonality fluctuation on trade finance requirement of the Group.

The Group’s total borrowing over total assets ratio as at 31 March
2020 was 0.051 (2019: 0.041), calculated based on the Group’s total
assets of about HK$1,265.7 million (2019: HK$1,196.0 million) and
total debts of about HK$64.5 million (2019: HK$49.6 million),
comprising convertible bonds of about HK$59.0 milion (2019:
HK$49.6 million) and lease liabilities of about HK$5.6 million (2019:
nil).

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Save for certain purchases are denominated in Euros, the Group’s
business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi. The Group manages the foreign currency exposure by
closely monitoring the foreign currency movements and may
purchase foreign currencies at spot rate, when and where appropriate
for meeting its payment obligation. No hedge on foreign currencies
was made during the year but the Group will use financial instruments
for hedging purpose when considered appropriate.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

There is no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates
and investments in financial instruments during the year ended 31
March 2020.

Investments in Unlisted Funds

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held a total of 80,000 participating
shares in KKC Capital SPC, a segregated portfolio company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands at aggregate consideration of
HK$80 million (the “Investments”), which has been accounted for as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). Details are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Bt 7 [©] 8 ()

RBESRYBER @

AEBRFRTERTENR HEBESH
BMECZIRITEERE  ENUAKEEZE
B 77 3k 4921,500,00058 T( = & — AL F -
21,000,000/ 7T ) LA B AN A Bl B B 35 T [ 8
RAREZAREREET - —ME - &
EECESRMET KW EETREHERE -

R-E-_TFE=F=+—H AEEHE
MHEBEE R B0 (ZE—NLF:
0.041) + Jhiz R &£ B 42 & FE #491,265,700,000
B (= Z — N % :1,196,000,0007% JT )
N 42 & T8 #964,500,0007 T ( = T — AL
F 1 49,600,000 L) (BRFEATHRES D
59,000,000/ 7T (=& — JLF : 49,600,000/5
L) R E A & 45,600,000 L (ZF — A1
FE))FTE

SN | B

BB RBEABRTAHEN AEEH X
Br5 AERBEIENET ETEA
REINE AEEEBATIERINEE

MR ERBENRIINENBETNREES
HHERAITHNERREE - AEERFERA
WEAETIHINEL MRS R AREES
EREEE AR T AERREHAE-

BEAKNEBREESE

BE-_ T -_ZTF=ZA=+—HILFE I
EHRBEAR BEARALERTEKREDN
ERAKBEHHEEE-

FLmEERE

RZZE_ZF=A=+—0 ~x&£ERD
KKC Capital SPC(— R S # &k iz
2B IREBHEAE AR A HEH80,0008 2

B AR {7 - #8 L {8 /&80,000,0007% 7T ([ % %
BED ZFREARINEZRFEFTA

Hipzmhzx((RAFEFAEL2EEK
FNZEeMEE - FBHEARNGAHKERE
BfsE22 -

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZ%EIERER AT



17

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Investments in Unlisted Funds (Continued)

The investment objective of the funds is for long term capital
appreciation by investing primarily in listed and unlisted shares, rights
and warrants. It is noted that, in addition to the rapidly deteriorating
relations between the US and China, uncertainties arising from the
recent pandemic outbreak have aggravated the volatility of equity
markets and weakening of corporate earnings, and the fair value loss
of the Investments amounting to HK$80 million as recorded in the
FVTOCI remained as at 31 March 2020. Nevertheless, the Board will
continue exploring possibilities to realise the Investments in order to
mitigate the loss.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 169 employees (2019: 171).
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) for the year ended 31
March 2020 amounted to approximately HK$22.5 milion (2019:
approximately HK$23.7 million), which was mainly due to decrease in
headcount and adjustment of sales expenses reimbursement system
at the manufacturing segment.

The Group remunerates its employees based on industry practices.
Its staff benefits, welfare and statutory contributions, if any, are made
in accordance with prevailing labour laws of its operating entities.

On 24 August 2012, shareholders of the Company had approved the
adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”), which became
effective on 29 August 2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The Scheme will enable the Group to reward the employees, the
directors and other selected participants for their contribution to the
Group and will also assist the Group in its recruitment and retention
of high caliber professionals, executives and employees who are
instrumental to the growth of the Group.

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2020, no share
option has been granted under the Scheme.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEENWR D (&)

Additional Information regarding the 2020 Qualified
Opinion

The Group’s auditor, Elite Partners CPA Limited (“Auditor”) issued a
qualified opinion in the independent auditor’s report relating to the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (“2020 Qualified Opinion”). Additional
information regarding the 2020 Qualified Opinion is provided below:

Background of the 2019 Qualified Opinion

The auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 (“2018 Financial
Statements”) contained a disclaimer of opinion on limitation of audit
scope in relation to the Group’s interest in an associate which
amounted to HK$330,970,000 due to the inability to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence in the impairment assessment of the
carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an associate as at 31
March 2018, as such any adjustments to the carrying amount of the
interest in an associate would adversely affect the Group’s net assets
as at 31 March 2018, the financial results for the year ended 31
March 2018 and the disclosures thereof in the 2018 Financial
Statements.

In the 2019 Annual Report, the auditor’s report on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019
(“2019 Financial Statements”) contained a qualified opinion on prior
year’s audit scope limitation affecting opening balance and
comparative figures in relation to the Group’s interest in an associate,
as the limitations in the 2018 Financial Statements remained in the
2019 Financial Statements and the 2018 Financial Statements formed
the basis for the comparative figures and opening balance of the
2019 Financial Statements. To the best knowledge and belief of the
management, any adjustments found to be necessary on the opening
balance (i.e. 1 April 2018) of the Group’s interest in an associate
would have a significant effect on the financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2019 and the related disclosures thereof for
2019 Financial Statements (“2019 Qualified Opinion”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Additional Information regarding the 2020 Qualified
Opinion (Continued)

Background of the 2019 Qualified Opinion (Continued)

The auditor’s report in the 2019 Financial Statements did not include
an audit modification on the Group’s interest in an associate as the
audit matter in respect of the impairment assessment on the carrying
amount of the interest in an associate as at 31 March 2019 of
HK$330,062,000 was addressed and described in the Key Audit
Matters section of the auditor’s report in the 2019 Annual Report (Pages
7310 75).

Details of the 2020 Qualified Opinion

The auditor’s report of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020
did not include an audit modification on the Group’s interest in an
associate as the audit matter has already been addressed in the
same manner as set out in the 2019 Financial Statements. However,
the Auditor has issued a qualified opinion in relation to the scope
limitation on the opening balance of the comparative figures as the
2019 Financial Statements formed the basis for the comparative
figures of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (“2020 Financial Statements”), such audit
modification related to the opening balance of comparative figures (i.e.
the 2019 Opening Balance), as those comparative figures were
required to be presented in the 2020 Financial Statements for the
comparability of the 2020 figures and the corresponding 2019 figures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERE W R ()

Additional Information regarding the 2020 Qualified
Opinion (Continued)

Management’s view on 2020 Qualified Opinion

Based on the discussion with the Auditor, the management was given
to understand and considered that the 2020 Qualified Opinion was a
result of the 2019 Opening Balance that related to the 2019 Financial
Statements, and the 2019 Financial Statements has formed the basis
for the comparative figures of the 2020 Financial Statements. The
management expects that the 2020 Quialified Opinion will be removed
in the next financial year as the 2020 Financial Statements containing
no audit scope limitations will be presented as the corresponding
figures for the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ending 31 March 2021 (“FY 2021”).

Audit Committee’s view on 2020 Qualified Opinion

Based on the discussion with the Auditor, the audit committee of the
Company concurred with the view of management as set out above
and its expectation to remove the audit qualification for the
corresponding figures for the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for FY 2021.
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IRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EFASEEEARESN

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi Ph.D. (aged 57)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Dr. Xie Yi is a professor of School of Life Sciences in Fudan University
and is one of the founders of United Gene group of companies in the
PRC. Being a scientist with significant breakthroughs in human
genome research, Dr. Xie is responsible for research and
development and management of United Gene group and is the vice
chairman and chief executive officer of United Gene Holdings Limited
in the PRC.

Dr. Xie is currently the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company responsible for the strategic planning and development and
the overall management of the Group. He is also an executive director
and chairman of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a
73% owned subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC, and
an executive director of certain members of the Group.

Mr. Cheng Yong (aged 57)

Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Cheng Yong is a practicing pharmacist in the PRC. Mr. Cheng
obtained his Master of Pharmacology from Second Military Medical
University in the PRC. He has been engaged in pharmacology and
research study for over ten years and has extensive experience in the
aspects of research and drug development. Since 2001, he has been
working in the capacity of director and general manager for various
companies owned by Dr. Xie Yi and Dr. Mao Yumin, former chairman
and executive director. Mr. Cheng is currently a director of two PRC
subsidiaries of Innovative Pharmaceutical Biotech Limited (formerly
known as United Gene High-Tech Group Limited), a company listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Since 1 July 2019, Mr. Cheng has been appointed as the deputy
chief executive officer of the Company to provide support in the
execution of the Company’s plans and strategies.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

EENREEEEASRN (A)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Dr. Lou Yi Ph.D. (aged 62)

Executive Director

Dr. Lou Yi obtained a doctoral degree in medicine and conducted his
postdoctoral research in clinical study at Shanghai Second Medical
University (now renamed as School of Medicine, Shanghai Jiaotong
University) and industrial economy at Fudan University. Dr. Lou had
been a director and general manager of Shanghai Biochip Co. Ltd.
and as a director and deputy general manager of General Technology
Group Pharmaceutical Holdings, Ltd. in the PRC. Dr. Lou was also a
non-executive director of Shanghai Fudan-Zhangjiang Bio-
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from June 2004 to June 2006. Dr. Lou is currently a
director and general manager of various companies owned by Dr. Xie
Yi and Dr. Mao Yumin, former chairman and executive director.

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen (aged 57)

Executive Director

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen joined the Group in May 2008 as assistant to
the Board and was appointed as director in October 2008. Ms. Wong
has more than 20 years of experience in both the commercial and
industrial sectors including the PRC pharmaceutical market. Ms.
Wong has extensive experience in areas of business administration
and internal control. She is currently the Authorised Representative of
the Company.

Ms. Wong has been appointed as the joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 8 January 2014.

BEENSEBEEEBAEGS N @

HITES (@)

BlZE+ (N =5x)

BITEE
BEBIHABREB L2 BKELSE
E_BRABERLEXBABEREMR)
REEABEBLIERMAE TEEEBERX
BREFEXRKBEEFLRAR -BELE
BEELBEMERBRRARZEFTHRAL
2 MEEPHERETEARMEE S EE
BRERARZESZREALE - R_FZT
MERNAZE_ZZRFXAHAE BEL
NEELBEERIEVEERGARR
A (—MREEZPAGEM £ 2 X Al) E1EFF
HITEZ BBLEAMXBEARBELIRE
HWREBL(AIEERRATEST)MEERZ
ZEARREEZTNELER -

EFHEELL(B+EEE)

BITEE
IFBEXEIR_FTN\FRANBEAREH
ErE=eyE YR _TENFT AR
ZEREF -FXIRIBERH(ET R
ErEEEmS) e _TFER -TX
TRAEEENEEEENANEEER -
BHEARARAZRERSE -

B-Z-NOF-AN\BR EXLEERE
REARNBMERRMWE -

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT



23

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah (aged 58)

Executive Director

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah joined the Company in November 2008 as the
company secretary and financial controller and was appointed as
executive director in December 2013. Mr. Liu has become the joint
company secretary with effect from 8 January 2014. Mr. Liu is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Liu holds a Master's degree in Business
Administration from The Open University of Hong Kong and has more
than 20 years of experience in accounting and financial management.
Prior to joining the Company, he had worked for international
accounting firms and several listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (aged 45)

Executive Director

Mr. Lu Zhigiang holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Central State University of the United States of America, a
Bachelor Degree of Engineering and a Bachelor Degree of Industry
from Nanchang Hangkong University of the PRC. Mr. Lu attended the
program of a Master of Science Degree in International Purchasing &
Supply Chain Management organised by Audencia NANTES.Ecole de
Management. Mr. Lu is experienced in corporate management and
investment. He is currently an executive director and chief executive
officer of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(stock code: 8085) whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. He was a non-executive director of Lamtex Holdings
Limited (formerly known as China New Energy Power Group Limited)
(stock code: 1041) from 29 October 2014 to 9 July 2015 and an
executive director of Global Energy Resources International Group
Limited (stock code: 8192) from 28 November 2014 to 2 September
2016, the shares of these two companies are listed on the Main
Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

EENREEEEASRN (A)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu (aged 82)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Fang Lin Hu was a professor in Fudan University, ex-vice
chancellor of the Fudan University (overseeing technology
industrialisation and utilisation matters), a member of National
Information Technology Education and Electronic Education Advisory
Committee and vice faculty head of the Physics Faculty of Fudan
University, dean of the Electronic Engineering Faculty, and the director
of Micro-electronic Research Institute. Mr. Fang retired in 2000.
Currently, he is the vice chairman of the Shanghai Senior Professor
Association and a vice president of Shanghai Retired Education
Workers Association. Mr. Fang has performed research in the area of
microwave theory and technology. He is a well-recognised scientist
who has extensive experience in scientific research and management.
Mr. Fang was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2001.

Mr. Xue Jing Lun (aged 86)

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Xue Jing Lun was the chief professor of Fudan University, a guest
professor of the Second Military Medical University of China, Tongji
Medical University and Shantou University, chairman of Chinese
Environmental Mutagen Association, a director of International
Environmental Mutagen Association, and a committee member of the
China Genetic Engineering Society. Mr. Xue retired in April 2007. The
research team led by Mr. Xue gained international recognition in the
area of gene therapy and transgenic animal research. Mr. Xue has
been granted a number of national awards for merits in scientific
research and is an internationally recognised genetic scientist. Mr.
Xue was appointed as an independent non-executive director in
2001.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Jin Song (aged 49)

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Jin Song holds a diploma in engineering from Broadcasting
University in Shandong Province and a diploma in business from
Fudan University. She is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“CICPA”) and passed all the professional
examinations held by CICPA in 2001. Ms. Jin has over 20 years’
experience in accounting in different industries. Ms. Jin was
appointed as an independent non-executive director in 2004.

Senior Management

Dr. Wen Ming (aged 59)

Head of Research and Development

Dr. Wen Ming joined the Group in 1992. He is responsible for
overseeing the regulatory affairs, research & development, and the
registration of the Group’s products, and the marketing and
promotion aspects of the Group’s imported pharmaceutical business.
Dr. Wen graduated with a bachelor’s degree in medical science from
the Guangzhou Medical College and obtained a master’s degree in
medical science from Sun Yat Sen University of Medical Sciences (now
renamed as the Sun Yat Sen University). Prior to joining the Group,
Dr. Wen worked in a hospital of Sun Yat Sen University as the chief
physician for ten years.

Mr. Gong Youlu (aged 51)

General Manager of Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“CEP”) and Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“JECP”)

Mr. Gong Youlu joined the Group in 2011. Mr. Gong is responsible for
the overall management and operations of CEP and JECP. He has
over 20 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical manufacturing
sector. Mr. Gong holds a Bachelor of Engineering degree from
Taiyuan Mechanical College (now known as North University of China)
and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from Jilin University,
China. Prior to joining the Group, he had held the position of general
manager for pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises in the PRC for
over 10 years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE (Continued)

EENREEEEASRN (A)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Ms. Wu Hong (aged 48)

Group Senior Finance Manager

Ms. Wu Hong, a qualified accountant in the PRC, joined the Group in
1995 and is responsible for all the Group’s financial matters in the
PRC. She graduated from Jiangsu Television Broadcast University,
majoring in Foreign Trading Accounting. Before joining the Group, she
worked with a joint venture company in the PRC.

Mr. Huang Wenda (aged 43)

Financial Controller of CEP and JECP

Mr. Huang Wenda joined the Group in 2004. Mr. Huang is responsible
for financial control and financial management of the operations of
CEP and JECP and currently also serves as secretary to the board
handling corporate secretarial matters of CEP and JECP. He has
accumulated experience of over 10 years in financial management of
pharmaceutical manufacturing enterprises. Prior to joining the Group,
he worked with manufacturing enterprises in the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Corporate Governance

The Group recognises the importance of achieving and
monitoring the high standard of corporate governance
consistent with the need and requirements of its business and
the best interest of all of its shareholders. The Group is fully
committed to doing so.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has complied with
the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (“Code Provisions”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Company had adopted and applied the Code Provisions,
except for certain deviations as set out below.

Code Provisions A.1.3 and A.7.1 stipulate that 14-day notice
should be given for each regular board meeting and that in
respect of regular meetings, and as far as practicable in all
other cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers
should be sent in full to all directors in a timely manner and at
least 3 days before the intended date of a board or board
committee meeting (or other agreed period). The Company
agrees that sufficient time should be given to the directors in
order to make a proper decision. In these respects, the
Company adopts a more flexible approach (and yet sufficient
time has been given) in convening board meetings to ensure
efficient and prompt management decisions could be made.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Dr. Xie Yi has served as the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
However, the Company believes that there is adequate balance
of power and authority in place though vesting the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same person as all
major decisions of the Company are made in consultation with
members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

3 M\Aiﬁd: (nﬁ)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The Company deviates from this Code Provision as the
independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) are not
appointed for specific terms. According to the bye-laws of the
Company, however, the INEDs are subject to retirement and re-
election. The reason for the deviation is that the Company
believes that the directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s
shareholders.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that the
Chairman, Deputy Chairman or Managing Director shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation. The Company’s bye-laws
deviate from the Code Provision. The Company considers that
the continuity of the Chairman/Deputy Chairman/Managing
Director and their leadership are essential for the stability of the
business and key management. The rotation methodology
ensures a reasonable continuity of directorship which is to the
best interest of the Company’s shareholders.

Code Provision A.4.2 also stipulates that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after their appointment.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, any director so
appointed shall hold office only until the next annual general
meeting. The Company’s bye-laws deviate from the Code
Provision. However, the Company believes that it is in the best
interest of the Company’s shareholders to transact this ordinary
course of business in the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

Corporate Governance (Continued)

Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of the
independent board committee (if any) should be available to
answer questions at any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that requires
independent shareholders’ approval. The chairman of the
independent board committee was unable to attend the special
general meeting of the Company held on 17 October 2019 due
to health reason.

Code provision E.1.5 stipulates that the Company should have
a policy on payment of dividends. The Company has not
established a dividend policy as the Company considers it more
appropriate to determine a dividend payment after taking into
account those factors including the Company’s then financial
performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions, to enable the Company be in a better position to
cope with its future development, which is to the best interest
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Company will continue to review and monitor the situation
as stated above, and to improve the practices as and when the
circumstances demand.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by
the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the directors, the
directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the board of directors (the
“Board”) comprises six executive directors and three INEDs as
follows:

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Yong (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)
Dr. Lou Vi

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah

Mr. Lu Zhigiang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu
Mr. Xue Jing Lun
Ms. Jin Song

Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship)
among the members of the Board.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. The management is delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-
day management of the Group. Major corporate matters that
are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of interim and annual reports and
announcements for the Board’s approval before publishing,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the
Board, implementation of adequate internal control systems
and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory and regulatory requirements and rules and
regulations.

Each of the INEDs has complied with the provisions set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company also considers
that they are independent under the Listing Rules. Of the three
INEDs, Ms. Jin Song has appropriate accounting or related
financial management experience as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, five Board meetings and
two general meetings of the Company were held, and the
attendance records of each director at the respective meetings
are set out in the table below:

Name of Director

Dr. Xie Yi WERE L
Mr. Cheng Yong 2B LA
Dr. Lou Vi RBlz1E+
Ms. Wong Sau Kuen FHEBLZLT
Mr. Liu Kwok Wah BB S A
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EEREE
Mr. Fang Lin Hu T3R5 A
Mr. Xue Jing Lun EERfmkE
Ms. Jin Song CA /NG

In addition, a meeting was held between the Chairman and all
INEDs without the presence of executive directors during the
financial year.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance for members of the Board and officers in order
to protect legal claims against their lawful discharge of duties in
relation to the Group’s business.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Dr. Xie Yi serves as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. This is a deviation from Code Provision A.2.1,
which requires the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
person. As all major decisions of the Company are made in
consultation with members of the Board, the Company believes
that there is adequate balance of power and authority in place
though vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
and, pursuant to Code Provision A.4.2, every director shall retire
by rotation at least once every three years. None of the INEDs
of the Company is appointed for a specific term and according
to the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors (except
for the Chairman) shall retire from office by rotation and become
eligible for re-election. The reason for the deviation is that the
Company believes that the directors ought to be committed to
representing the long-term interest of the Company’s
shareholders and the rotation methodology ensures a
reasonable proportion of directors in continuity which is to the
best interest of the Company’s shareholders.

The function of the INEDs includes but not limited to
participating in Board meetings and meetings of committees to
bring an independent judgement to bear on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conduct.

The Board has established three committees; namely
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee. Each committee comprising of all INEDs is
responsible for, inter alia, the review and oversight of the
activities within its defined terms of reference. The written
terms of reference for the respective committees are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of four members including,
Dr. Xie Yi (Chairman), Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
the Board, and all INEDs, namely Mr. Fang Lin Hu, Mr. Xue Jing
Lun and Ms. Jin Song.

The major role and function of the Nomination Committee are to
formulate and implement the policy for nominating candidates
for consideration by the Board and election by shareholders,
review the structure, size and composition of the Board with
due regard to Board diversity, and to assess the independence
of non-executive directors.

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy and the
Nomination Committee will help implement and monitor the
policy. To enhance the effectiveness of the Board, selection of
candidates will be based on a range of perspectives, including
but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and length of
service. The Nomination Committee will review and discuss the
measurable objective for Board diversity on an annual basis and
will make recommendation to the Board for its consideration
and approval. Having reviewed the structure and composition
of the Board and the business nature of the Group, the
Nomination Committee considered that Board diversity has
been achieved.

The Nomination Committee has adopted a nomination policy
guiding the nomination criteria and procedures to identify, select
and recommend candidates for directorship.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of
nomination criteria in assessing the suitability of a proposed
candidate for directorship or proposed re-appointment of a
retiring director, including but not limited to: the skills,
knowledge and experience possessed by the candidate or
retiring director which are relevant to the Company’s business,
corporate development and strategy; the diversity perspectives
set out in the Board Diversity Policy and the balance of skills
and experience in board composition; the level of independence
from the Company and compliance of the relevant requirements
under the Listing Rules; and such other factors the Nomination
Committee may consider relevant to enhancement of the
effectiveness of the Board.
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F. NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Subject to the provisions in the Company’s bye-laws, where the
Nomination Committee determines that an additional director or
a replacement director is required, it may take appropriate
steps in connection with the identification and evaluation of a
suitable candidate for directorship. The Nomination Committee
may deploy channels including referral from directors, advisers
of the Company and external executive search firms in the
evaluate a candidate based on the
nomination criteria stated above, and make recommendation

identification process,

for the Board’s consideration and approval.

For re-appointment of a retiring director, the Nomination
Committee reviews his/her service to the Company, the level of
participation on the Board during his/her term, and after taking
into account the nomination criteria, recommends to the Board
for proposed re-appointment of the retiring director who wishes

to stand for re-election at the Company’s general meeting.

The Nomination Committee may also propose to the Board a
candidate recommended or offered for nomination by a
shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board, if it evaluates that the candidate meets the nomination
criteria. The procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director are published in the Company’s

website.

The Board has the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of directors. On accepting the recommendation
made by the Nomination Committee, the Board may (as the
case may be) appoint the candidate as director to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board and recommend the
candidate to shareholders for election or re-election (for a

retiring director) at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2020, and all members had attended the
meeting to review the structure, size and composition including
Board diversity, of the Board; consider and make
recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of

retiring directors; and assess the independence of INEDs.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific terms of reference, which state clearly its authority and
duties. It advises the Board on the remuneration of the directors
and senior management of the Company.

In line with good and fair practice, members of the
Remuneration Committee consist of the three INEDs, namely
Mr. Fang Lin Hu (Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun, Ms. Jin Song,
and Dr. Xie Yi.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two meetings were held
and attendance of each director is set out as follows:

Name of Director EERE
Mr. Fang Lin Hu 73 MRER S A
Mr. Xue Jing Lun Rt A&
Ms. Jin Song MLt
Dr. Xie Yi WEE L

The emoluments of the directors are reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and/or decided
by the Board as authorised by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting according to the directors’ respective
responsibilities, individual performance and prevailing market
conditions. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme as an incentive to the directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee conducts regular
review of the Company’s remuneration policy and structure of
the directors and senior management which takes into account
the prevailing market conditions and the role and responsibility
of individual members, for making recommendation to the
Board. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration packages (including directors’ fees) of the
directors and made recommendation to the Board for
consideration and approval.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ERERRE (F)

FMWEES

ARREXNZFTMEZE S L HIEH
FrEBESRE BRIAHEED LB
R FMZECARRARREFR
SEEEABZFHMAESSRHER
B o

REERFRAFZEDN FHMEZE
CEZKREBRR=ZBBIFAERNS
MEEE(ERE) BRBEELERENR
L) ARHMBRIBL -

BE_ZTZ_TF=-A=1T—BL#F
B ARABGRITMAERH BES
ZHEREGHMT

Number of attendance

HERE

2/2
2/2
2/2
2/2

BEEESANET EARRBERE
Bmi EZFMBFMZEerRs
MEZR STHETSLEBRERRKRR
BEAXSLEZEEMELHRE - AR
RINMERMBEREFEIEAHESR
BEERABZRB -FHEESS
HEEREMARBENKREZ BB RE
B OETHENAQARREZERSET
BABRMOTFHMEEAREE |
ExertgR -BHE-_ZT_ZTF=
BA=+—BLtEE FHZESE=E
BMERMEESTHEB(BEESH
) THMEZTSRHEESAEEER
H o o

—E-BEFH



36

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERER®RE (H)

G. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals for
the year ended 31 March 2020 are disclosed in notes 11 and
12 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
Emoluments of senior management whose profiles are
disclosed in the section “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” but not included in the note as the five highest paid
individuals, fell within the following band:

< g6 2

Emolument band
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000
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H. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
terms of reference that have included the duties which are set
out in Code Provision C.3.3 with appropriate modification when
necessary.

The major role and function of the Audit Committee are to
ensure the maintenance of proper relationship with the
Company’s auditor, the establishment of proper review and
control arrangements relating to risk management and internal
control systems, financial reporting and the compliance to
applicable reporting requirements.
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H. AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Fang Lin
Hu (Chairman), Mr. Xue Jing Lun and Ms. Jin Song. During the
year ended 31 March 2020, four meetings were held and
attendance of each director is set out as follows:

Name of Director ESHE
Mr. Fang Lin Hu TR ER A
Mr. Xue Jing Lun B Rt A
Ms. Jin Song ML

The Audit Committee reviewed the half yearly and full year
consolidated financial statements, including the Group’s
adopted accounting principles and practices, risk management
and internal control systems with internal audit function and
financial reporting matters (in conjunction with the external
auditor for the annual results). The Audit Committee endorsed
the accounting treatments adopted by the Company and, to
the best of its ability assured itself that the disclosures of the
financial information in this annual report comply with the
applicable accounting standards and Appendix 16 of the Listing
Rules.

. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor, Elite
Partners CPA Limited in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$730,000 and HK$48,000 respectively.
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3 M\Aiﬁd: (nﬁ)

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors of the Company acknowledged their responsibility
for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The Group had adopted the going concern basis in preparing
its financial statements.

A statement by the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 75 to 82 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing on an ongoing basis
and ensuring that sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems are maintained within the Group in
order to safeguard the Group’s assets and the interests of the
Company’s shareholders. These systems are designed under
the framework of a defined management structure with
specified limits of authority and control responsibilities to
manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and help to provide reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated with authorities to assist the
Board to fulfill its oversight role over the systems by reviewing
and evaluating on a regular basis the effectiveness and
adequacy of the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems (the “Systems”). During the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee, after taking into
consideration the size of the Group’s activities and operations,
had adopted a risk-based approach in identifying the scope for
review for its business units. The review was conducted by the
Group’s risk management and internal audit function
independent of the business unit, which covered appraisal of
the Systems by conducting walkthroughs and tests on
operating procedures. Audit findings and recommendations
were reported to the Audit Committee and the senior
management. The Audit Committee and the Board satisfied the
result of the review and concluded that the key areas of the
Systems are reasonably and adequately implemented to their
satisfaction.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

With respect to handling and dissemination of inside information
(the “Information”), the Group is aware of its obligations under
the Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and the
guiding principle that when the Information comes to the
Group’s attention it should be properly disclosed as soon as
practicable. In this regard, the Group has adopted an inside
information disclosure policy (the “Policy”) in 2013 with the aim
of preventing the disclosure of premature Information and
ensuring shareholders and the public are provided with full,
accurate and timely Information about the activities,
performance and financial condition of the Group. The Policy
covers the procedures as to () maintain the confidentiality of
Information, such as identification of project by using code
name, dissemination on a need-to-know basis and (i) identify,
assess and monitor the dissemination of Information. The Audit
Committee and the Board consider that the procedures are
effective in discharging the Group’s obligations in respect of the
Information.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the directors were
briefed and updated with written materials on the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
legal and regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, the Company had organised
an in-house training seminar for the directors, which was
conducted by qualified professional covering topics of updates
on the Listing Rules and Environmental, Social and Governance
reporting, with training materials provided. Directors are also
encouraged to attend outside seminars and talks organised by
professional bodies to enrich their knowledge in discharging
their duties as a director. All directors have participated in
continuous professional development by attending training
courses and/or referring materials on the topics related to
corporate governance and regulations:

Executive Directors

Dr. Xie Yi Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Mr. Cheng Yong Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Dr. Lou Yi Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Ms. Wong Sau Kuen  Attending in-house training course and
outside seminars/talks conducted by
professional bodies and self-study

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah Attending in-house training course and
outside seminars/talks conducted by
professional bodies and self-study

Mr. Lu Zhigiang Attending in-house training course and

self-study
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Fang Lin Hu Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Mr. Xue Jing Lun Attending in-house training course and
self-study

Ms. Jin Song Attending in-house training course and
self-study

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Liu Kwok Wah and Ms. Wong Sau Kuen are joint company
secretaries of the Company and each has taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended
31 March 2020.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes the value of maintaining open
communication with and providing current and relevant
information to its shareholders, and uses a number of channels
to disseminate information to shareholders through:

(1)  the Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk)
(2) the Company’s website (www.extrawell.com.hk)

(8)  corporate information in printed forms such as annual and
interim reports, circulars and explanatory materials

(4)  annual general meeting
(6) the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,

Tricor Tengis Limited in respect of share registration and
related matters
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3 M\Aiﬁd: (nﬁ)

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS N.

(Continued)

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Board members, in particular, Chairman of the Board as well as
chairmen of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee (or their delegates) will make
themselves available at the annual general meetings to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the directors shall, on the requisition of shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of
the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the Company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the relevant
requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of the
Company. If the directors do not within twenty-one days from
the date of the deposit of the requisition proceed duly to
convene a meeting, the requisitionists, or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 79 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the Company shall, on the requisition in writing by either
any number of shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company or not less
than 100 shareholders, (a) give to shareholders entitled to
receive notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at that meeting, and (b) circulate to these shareholders
a written statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings
(Continued)

Section 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda stipulates
that the written requisition as signed by the requisitionists must
be deposited at the registered office of the Company with a
sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto not less than six weeks before the meeting
in case of a requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than one week before the meeting in case of any other
requisition.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and suggestions to the
Board by mail to the Company’s principal place of business at
Suites 2206-08, 22/F, Devon House, Taikoo Place, 979 King's
Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2020.
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INTRODUCTION

As a member of the global business community, the Group
recognises the importance of sustainable development. This
Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) Report, covering
the period from 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020 (the “Period”),
has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” under Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules. The Group observes the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency, and therefore
focuses on reporting the practices and various works in
environmental and social aspects of the Group’s major lines of
business in manufacturing and trading activities as well as the
operations of its Hong Kong headquarters. The selected Key
Performance Indicators are summarised under Section 6 of this
report. With respect to governance, it is separately reported on
pages 27 to 43.

The Board is responsible for the ESG strategy, and is
committed to conducting regular review and evaluation of the
Group’s ESG-related policies and risks so as to ensure that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal
control systems (the “Systems”) are in place. Senior
management and departmental staff of relevant operations have
been engaged to identify the relevant ESG issues and to assess
their materiality to the Group’s business as well as to its
stakeholders. As the Group’s manufacturing activities in China (or
the “PRC”) involve production process, which will have a
material ESG impact, an “Environmental Protection,
Occupational Health and Safety Management Committee” (the
“Committee”) has been formed to lead the management of
environmental protection as well as to foster a safe and healthy
work environment. The Committee includes staff members who
are professionally qualified with relevant permits recognised by
the Chinese authorities to administrate and monitor the works.
The Committee will report to the Board on material ESG issues
on annual basis. For trading segment and Hong Kong
headquarters, which are generally office’s operations and will
have a limited ESG impact, staff members of various
departments are engaged to implement the sustainable policies
and practices adopted by the Group. The Group’s risk
management and internal audit function will conduct regular
review on the effectiveness of the Systems and report the
findings to the Board.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

INTRODUCTION (Continued)

The Group values opinions from stakeholders including
shareholders, staff members, business partners, governments
and the communities, and is committed to building constructive
relationships with stakeholders through different communication
channels including annual general meetings, the Company’s
website, annual reports, industry forums, meetings and
corporate social responsibility activities with a view to achieving
its objectives towards sustainable growth. Stakeholders could
send their comments on this ESG Report to the head office of
the Company by post, fax or email as detailed in the Company’s
website www.extrawell.com.hk.

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

2.1 Emissions

It is the Group’s policy for each business segment or
operation to manage the environmental impacts of
emissions caused by its activities and comply with the
applicable environmental laws, prevention and control
regulations in which it operates. During the Period, the
Group did not breach the related emissions laws and
regulations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE #HERERBHRS ()

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.1 Emissions (Continued)

Emissions arising from production activities of the Group’s
manufacturing segment include air pollutants, greenhouse
gas (“GHG”), water and solid wastes. The Group’s trading
activities and the Hong Kong headquarters have
insignificant emissions of air pollutants, water and solid
wastes but GHG emissions. In this report, GHG is
categorised into three scopes as below:

U

(i)

(i)

refers to direct emissions from sources
that are owned or controlled by the
operations. Examples include natural
gas combusted for boilers, fuels used
by owned vehicles.

Scope 1

refers to indirect emissions from
consumption of purchased electricity,
steam or other sources of energy.

Scope 2

refers to indirect emissions from other
activities that are consequences of the
operations but are not directly owned or
controlled. Examples include business
travel, third-party distribution and
logistics.

Scope 3

2.1.1 GHG emissions arising from the Group’s trading

activities and the Hong Kong headquarters mainly
relate to indirect emissions of purchased electricity
under Scope 2 and third-party distribution and
logistics as well as business travels under Scope 3.
During the Period, the respective Scope 2 and
Scope 3 carbon dioxide (“CO,”) emissions
amounted to a total of about 20 tonnes (2019: 20
tonnes) and 7 tonnes (2019: 125 tonnes)
respectively. The significant decrease in Scope 3
emission was mainly the result of no purchases of
pharmaceuticals from overseas.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.1 Emissions (Continued)

2.1.2 As to the manufacturing segment with a GMP
factory in Changchun, China, the Committee is
responsible for implementing policies and
monitoring the factory’s performance so as to
ensure its strict compliance with the environmental
requirements under the relevant laws and
regulations such as the Environmental Protection
Law ((ZBIE{R#)%)), the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law ({7K}52&[57a7%)) and Prevention
and Control of Air Pollution Law ({ ASRZZFTE%E)).
During the Period, the factory handled its major
emissions in the following manner:

@

Waste gas emission management

The major source of waste gas emission
comes from natural gas combusted for boilers
as the factory had replaced all coal-fired
boilers with natural gas boilers. Air pollutants
mainly include sulfur oxide (“SOx”), nitrogen
oxide (“NOx”), and particle material (“PM”).
The factory has installed a desulfurisation
tower to ensure levels of emission are in
compliance with the standards. The tower is
functioning well and levels of emission are
significantly lower than the lower limit of the
national emission requirements. In the Period,
SOx, NOx, and PM emissions amounted to
about 738 kgs (2019: 3,947 kgs), 158 kgs
(2019: 5,752 kgs) and 0 kgs (2019: 274 kgs)
respectively.

CO, emissions arising from natural gas boilers
(after replacing coal-fired boilers) and fuels for
daily operations of vehicles (Scope 1),
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and business
travels (Scope 3) amounted to about 965
tonnes (2019: 3,261 tonnes), 1,652 tonnes
(2019: 1,659 tones) and 5 tonnes (2019: 8
tonnes) respectively.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE #HERERBHRS ()

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.1 Emissions (Continued)

2.1.2 (Continued)

(b)

()

Wastewater management

The factory has built its own waste water
treatment facilities with daily capacity of 400
tonnes to treat the wastewater from its
production processes before discharge, and
about 34,000 tonnes (2019: 40,000 tonnes)
of effluents were treated and discharged in
the Period. To monitor and control the
discharge, the factory has worked jointly with
local environmental monitoring stations, and
an on-line monitoring system has been
installed to test and collect data on the quality
of effluent. In addition, the factory has
commissioned a third-party inspection unit to
conduct regular surveillance on effluent
discharge standards in order to ensure timely
detection of its abnormality and implementation
of corrective measures when in exceedances.

Solid waste management

The storages and disposals of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled in
accordance with the requirements of relevant
rules and regulations. During the Period,
about 119 kgs (2019: 97 kgs) hazardous
wastes generated from the production
process were disposed of with waste
management services provided by contractors
as designated by Jilin Province Environmental
Protection Office. The non-hazardous wastes
of about 150 tonnes (2019: 155 tones) were
disposed of through wastes collection
services provided by the local authorities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

2.2 Use of Resources

It is the Group’s policy to encourage all staff to be
environmentally friendly at work to reduce the
consumption of paper, water and electricity and effective
use of the resources. Measures being implemented
include double-sided printing and copying, disseminating
information in digital format, waste paper recycling,
turning off power consuming devices when not in use.

2.2.1 The major resources used by the Group’s trading
activities and Hong Kong headquarters are
electricity, and paper (including own offices use and
bulk printing of reports and circulars distributed to
the Company’s shareholders through printing firms).
In the Period, the electricity consumption and paper
used were in aggregate of about 24,000 KWhs (2019:
25,000 KWhs) and 1.8 tonnes (2019: 1.6 tonnes)
respectively. With respect to the paper usage, about
1.4 tonnes (2019: 1.4 tonnes) were used for the
Group’s documents copying and annual and interim
reports using FSC certified paper.

The Group has been making its best efforts to
reduce paper usage by distributing office files in
digital format, reusing single-sided paper, and
collecting double-sided printed paper for recycler’'s
handling. The Group also adopts the practice of
green procurement that eco-friendly paper is
selected for office use and bulk printing of reports.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R HERERRS (A

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 2. REEAEm®@

22 ERFEA @
222 AR EBHNAETH T EH

2.2 Use of Resources (Continued)

2.2.2 The Group’s manufacturing activities consume

mainly water, electricity, natural gas, fuel for vehicles
and packing material used for finished products.
Paper consumption in its daily operations amounted
to about 28 tonnes (2019: 25 tonnes) relates to
paper used during the processes of procurement,
invoicing, production, quality assurance, marketing
and administration, of which the consumption in
various departments is being monitored by the
management, where management aims to reduce
paper consumption within internal departments by
better utilisation of the electronic network and
digitalisation of files and would select eco-friendly
paper products as far as practicable in the paper
procurement process.

The major resources consumed in the Period are
set out as below:
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2020 2019
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Type of FiEEER Amount Intensity*  Amount Intensity*
resources consumed il HE = E = ®E

1. Water (tonne) 7K (1) 39,160 0.5 55,000 0.73
2. Electricity (KWh) BEN(FEE) 2,040,000 26.3 2,100,000 27.7
3. Coal (tonne) R (WE) - 1,000 0.013
4. Natural gas (m?) RAR(LTTK) 464 150,000 1.98
5. Fuel for vehicles (liter) B RE () 0.44 17,000 0.22
6. Packing material (tonne) B2 )kt (HR) 0.01 760 0.01

* Amount generated per HK$’000 of revenue.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE #HERERHE (A

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 2. BEREHR @
2.2 Use of Resources (Continued) 22 ERFEH @
2.2.2 (Continued) 222 (&)
It is the Group’s policy to ensure effective and AEEBNRERELEEBR

efficient use of resources in the production process
with the aim of minimising wastes and reducing
consumption of the resources.

Water is a key element of the products and
production process. Water supplies are provided by
the municipally owned water supply company,
which will ensure relatively stable and adequate
water supplies. During the Period, there was no
reported difficulties or issues arising from water
supplies. Management has recognised the
importance of water conservation, and therefore
has closely monitored the operation with the aim of
identifying means and ways in saving and reusing
water; including setting clear instructions for better
water used (time, volume and frequency) in the
production process, more frequent inspection to
reduce leakage in water supplies, and enhance
employees’ consciousness of water conservation in
operation process training.

As to other resources, measures being implemented
include avoiding procurement of high-energy
consumption materials, regular monitoring
performance of the production equipment,
upgrading and phasing out non eco-friendly
machines to raise the utilisation of energy and
resources. Packing materials primarily comprise
paper, glasses and plastics used for the Group’s
finished products. As a good practice, the Group
endeavors to select eco-friendly materials in the
procurement process, and minimise wastes by
managing purchase quantities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R HERERRS (A

2. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued) 2. REEAEm®@

23 RERBARER

2.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is dedicated to reducing the adverse effect of
its activities that could result in environmental damages,
controlling the level of consumption of natural resources
and promoting environmental awareness among its
employees at workplaces. In production, the Group has
regularly inspected and monitored the production process
to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws and
regulations on emissions. In office, management has
persistently reminded colleagues to protect the
environment by recycling papers and plastic, turning off
unused electricity devices. Management has also kept
colleagues abreast of various environmental issues and
encouraged colleagues to participate in activities like tree
planting.

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS

3.1 Employment

The Group employs about 169 employees on a
permanent basis, and the manufacturing segment
accounts for nearly 90% of the Group’s workforce. The
statistics of the Group’s workforce and employee turnover
rate of the manufacturing segment are set out as below:

Total workforce by gender and age group (of the
Group)

Below 30 Between 30-50

Gender 30U T

AEEH ORI SEBIRBEH
EMEBNTANTZE - 58 RA
BERHBFEKEREAEE &
I{’E%Fﬁﬁ'ﬂ&{%ﬁ% cFLAEEM

CAEBETHREREEE
EnRE BMREEKE Hﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ&
RERRER BB AEME -
EEETEIRERSEBE AR
sk R EBAL - BERRE A BRI
RERE - BEERENMBESEN
SHEREMREYHBRELHEE
IR

3. H+EEM

31 EE

NEBEAH169Z KHEES -
MEESENEEMAESESET
BEEEITI0% AEBE THAHK
FEESERNEERKESRTH
FEnR

BMHFRFREE D ZET
B (AEHEH)

Age
Fie

Over 50

30 Z505% 505% A £

Male 3 2 34 27 63
Female z 7 88 11 106
Total mEt 9 122 38 169
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R HEREBRE ()

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued) 3. HEEEW@W)

3.1 EE @)

Employee turnover rate (%) by gender and age BEMHRREREEZ S ZIES
group (Manufacturing segment only*) TRE (%) ERZESEF*)

3.1 Employment (Continued)

Age
F i

Below 30 Between 30-50
30 LT 30 Z505%

Over 50
505 M £

Gender

Male L= 150% 13% 25% 22%
Female oy 14% 18% 17% 17%
Total A=t 44% 16% 23% 19%

Information relating to the manufacturing segment is disclosed as
the employee turnover rate of the trading segment and Hong Kong
headquarters is insignificant.

People are valuable asset to the Group’s success and
sustainable development. It is the Group’s policy to
attract and retain high caliber people for its business
operations. The Group recruits people on the basis of job
requirements without discrimination on grounds of age,
gender, ethnic, politics or religion, trains and grows their
capabilities, rewards and makes promotion based on their
contributions. The Group remunerates its employees
based on industry practices. The Group arranges working
hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare including
medicals and retirement protection in accordance with
prevailing labour laws of its operating units in which they
operate. The Group is committed to ensuring that all
applicable legal requirements are observed in dealing with
dismissal of any employee who violates the Group’s
regulations or persistently performs below job
requirements.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any
employment laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong Kong
and Malaysia.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

1= 4 .

HERER®RS ()

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

3.2 Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing and maintaining a
safe and healthy working environment for all its
employees.

For the Group’s office operations, management strives to
maintain smoke-free, healthy and safe working
environment. All employees are encouraged to participate
regularly emergency drills held by the office building
management.

For the Group’s factory in China, management has
persistently upheld the principle of safe production and
observed the requirements of the “Law of the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” (BRI AED ).
There is no allowance of any personal consideration but
strict compliance of the requirements under the GMP
standards and the relevant laws and regulations.
Management has regularly conducted safety examinations
for production equipment, conducted drills and provided
training to employees in order to increase their awareness
and involvement in accident prevention.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any laws and
regulations in relation to occupational health and safety
and there were no work-related fatalities in the Group’s
operations but 8 work injury cases (2019: 12 cases) in the
manufacturing segment resulting in 74 lost days (2019:
311 days). Measures have been taken to strengthen the
production safety with the aim of minimising risk of injury
through safety publicity and education in order to enhance
consciousness of all employees.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

3.2 Health and Safety (Continued)

To cope with the evolving situation of the COVID-19 crisis,
since January 2020, various actions and measures have
been taken by the Group to ensure the safety and health
of its employees in the workplaces.

The Group’s factory in Changchun, China was temporarily
closed after the Lunar New Year holidays until mid-
February 2020 in response to the nationwide containment
measures, and upon resumption of production,
management has promptly implemented stricter health
and hygiene measures to safeguard health and safety of
its employees in the workplace.

Precautionary measures such as restriction on travels and
meetings, temperature screening before entering
workplaces and provision of adequate disinfection
supplies like face masks and hand sanitisers to employees
have been maintained and followed through in all
workplaces. A team of personnel is designated to monitor
regular cleaning and disinfection of areas in the respective
workplaces. Wider physical spacing is provided for
workstations and seats in meeting rooms and rest areas,
as far as practicable, while tele-conferencing is used in
place of physical meetings and split team arrangements
are enhanced, where possible. In addition, employees are
educated the need to keep social distancing and hygiene
practices and to comply with quarantine orders by the
government agencies, where applicable.

All these measures have facilitated infection control and
will be reviewed and adjusted taking into account the
public health measures imposed by the government
agencies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
RE #HERERBHRS ()

3. SOCIAL ASPECTS (continued)

3.3

3.4

Development and Training

The Group organises and provides on-the-job training to
develop its employees’ potential in order to support the
Group’s sustainable development. Employees are
encouraged to equip themselves with relevant academic
and professional qualifications by attending external
training programs for future career development.

As to the Group’s manufacturing segment in China,
regular training programs have been provided in the areas
of production process operations, quality and safety
management, applicable legal and regulatory
requirements, important environmental factors and risk
controls to relevant personnel including production
technicians, safety management personnel and operating
personnel.

The Group also provides training subsidies to support its
employees to receive external professional training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Labour Standards

All employees of the Group are employed in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations on employment
including, inter alias, working hours, rest periods and staff
benefits. The Group prohibits the use of child labour and
forced labour at all its operation units. During the
recruitment process, the Group requires all applicants to
provide true and accurate personal information including
their proofs of identity for checking purpose, particularly
for verifying the photo on the documents and reviewing
the age. The Group will take immediate action to
terminate the employment of anyone who provides false
information or in breach of the Group’s regulations.

During the Period, the Group has complied with
employment-related laws and regulations and found no
violations of laws and regulations regarding child labour
and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

4. OPERATING PRACTICES

4.1 Supply Chain Management

The Group relies on a wide range of vendors to supply
goods; from raw materials to finished goods for the
Group’s manufacturing and trading activities. In order to
fulfill the Group’s mission to provide quality products, it is
imperative for its pursuit of quality goods from the
vendors.

The Group’s GMP plants in China have established a
quality management system to regulate the production
and quality management of drugs. Since all procurement
is conducted locally, the Group has clearly notified its
vendors to comply with relevant quality standards and
provide necessary permits if so required by the relevant
laws and regulations for the goods supplied. Specific
procedures have been implemented in quality control and
inventory management in order to ensure the Group’s
products are consistently manufactured in accordance
with the registration requirements. The aim of the Group’s
management system is to minimise the risks of
contamination, detect, monitor and rectify errors in
production process.

As to the Group’s trading segment for China market, all
drugs were sourced from GMP manufacturers in Europe
and Latin America, and the Group has committed to work
closely with and provide supports to its customers for
quality control in compliance with the stringent testing
conducted by the PRC drug authorities. During the
Period, there were no imports of pharmaceutical products
from overseas, in particular, the skin treatment products
from Spain, which as stated in the 2019 ESG Report,
have been suspended for sale since January 2019. The
suspension was due to certain issues on manufacturing
practices identified in an overseas on-site inspection by
the Chinese regulatory authorities. In the meantime, the
foreign manufacturer is preparing supplemental
information for submission to the authorities in order to
rectify the issues. The Group has been working closely
with its business partners with a view to resolving all those
issues in the long term so as to bring the products back
to the market as soon as possible.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

RE #HERERBHRS ()

4. OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

4.2 Product Responsibility

The Group places great emphasis on maintaining and
improving the quality of its products. The Group has
implemented a comprehensive quality control and
inspection procedures to ensure product quality and
safety from procurement of raw materials, packaging
materials and finished products. All products
manufactured and sold by the Group to its customers in
China have met the GMP production standards and
complied with the registration requirements with the
National Medical Products Administration.

On distribution side, all products distributed by the Group
have clear instructions and specifications as to its
composition, quality and safety use for end-user
protection purpose, which are in compliance with the
laws and requirements, such as the Advertisement Law
and the Drug Administration Law in China.

The Group has also worked closely with customers to
deal with products and services complaints in order to
ensure product quality and competitiveness and has put
top priority to ensure privacy of customer’s information.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

4. OPERATING PRACTICES (Continued)

4.3 Anti-corruption

The Company understands the importance of good
business ethics, which along with good corporate
governance are essential foundation to success. The
Company has established ethics code to promote
integrity and accountability, which requires all group
companies and employees to strictly comply with the
local laws and regulations. The code contains, inter alia,
provisions for bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering
and whistleblowing procedures.

During the Period, the Group did not breach any laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruptions or receive any
reports in relation thereof in China, Malaysia, and Hong
Kong.

5. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

As a socially responsible corporation, the Company is
committed to leverage its resources to facilitate the community
development and strongly encourages all staff members to
participate in volunteering and charitable activities, such as “Dress
Casual Day” and “Blood Donation”. Staff members also support
the Lai See Packet Recycle and Reuse Programme by dropping
off the unused lai see packets at the designated collection
points.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
R HERERRS (A

6. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 6. REBERBENESE(HAREE
INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE MIBEN XK
The following table summarises the Group’s significant KPIs TERBARFREANTEAEETEZH
information as set out in this report: RBWIEZER :

BAREENIEE
Environment RIE
Air pollutants (Kg) ERIFEY(FTR)
SOx =) 738 3,947
NOx AEY 158 5,752
PM TR = 274
Greenhouse gas (Tonne CO,) BEREE (=& i)
Total emission: BHEHRE 2,649 5,073
Direct emission (Scope 1) BEEEEm(FEE) 965 3,261
Indirect emission (Scope 2) MR (EE2) 1,672 1,679
Indirect emission (Scope 3) MR (FEESI) 12 133
Intensity per employee HREBRE 16 30
Wastes (Tonne) BEEY (W)
Total hazardous waste produced FMEXEEREEMES 34,000 40,000
Intensity (Hazardous waste) per employee ZEERE(BEZEEEY) 201 234
Total non-hazardous waste produced FIELEBEEEEYRE 150 155
Intensity (Non-hazardous waste) per employee YHEERE (BEEEY) 1 1
Energy consumption HERE#E
Total energy consumption: BERHMEE
Fuel consumed for vehicles (Liter) B RELE R (1) 33,822 17,000
Intensity (Fuel) per employee HiEBE (KD 200 99
Electricity (MWh) B KR 2,064 2,125
Intensity (Electricity) per employee HEERE(EN) 12 12
Coal (Tonne) B ox (8) = 1,000
Intensity (Coal) per employee HREERE (HiR) = 6
Natural gas (thousand m?) KRR (FLHK) 360 150
Intensity (Natural gas) per employee HREEBERE (RAR) 2 1
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

6. ENVIRONMENTAL KEY PERFORMANCE 6.
INDICATORS (“KPIs”) TABLE (Continued)

B

HEREGRE (B

REBBENEE(HREE
MEE] R

Social
Total workforce (persons) —

By gender:
Male
Female

By age group:
<30

30-50

>50

By employment type:
Permanent
Part-time

Employee turnover rate (%) —
Manufacturing

By gender:

Male

Female

By age group:
<30

30-50

>50

By employment type:
Permanent
Part-time

Health and safety
Number of work-related fatalities
Lost days due to work injury (days)

Group

RREMIEE
Hte
IEEI(NBE)BEH — 169 171
rEH
BRERE S :
% 63 62
LS 106 109
RERES S :
30E505% 122 131
RERERE S
=R 169 171
F — _
BERKE(%)—

BESE
%1% B 8l 2
e 22% 29%
8 17% 17%
REREE D :
S0BLLA T 44% 45%
30550& 16% 13%
505“_213/\L 23% 55%
RERERE S
e 100% 100%
SR — _
RERZZ
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFEHE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its principal subsidiaries and an associate are set out in
notes 42 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The business review of the Group and the discussion and analysis of
the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 4 to 7 and pages 8 to 20 of this
annual report respectively.

A discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
and information about laws and regulations affecting the businesses
of the Group and their compliance are included in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report on pages 44 to 61 of this annual
report. Furthermore, financial risk management and capital
management of the Group are set out in notes 44 and 45. to the
consolidated financial statement.

The above discussions and information form part of this report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 83 to 84.

The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend in respect
of the year after taking into account factors including the Group’s
financial performance, operating and capital requirements and market
conditions. Currently, no formal dividend policy is adopted by the
Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 204.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENT

No equity-linked agreement which may result in the Company issuing
shares was entered into during the year.

Details of the convertible bonds of the Company with principal
amount of HK$577,170,000 outstanding are disclosed in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”), as the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 8 August 2002 expired
on 14 August 2012. The Scheme became effective on 29 August
2012 after obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and,
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date. Information about the Scheme is set out in note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the reserves of the Company available for cash
distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$132,176,000 which was computed in accordance with the
Bermuda Companies Act. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account with a balance of HK$191,738,000 as at 31 March 2020
may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

During the year, the Group had not experienced any significant
problems with its employees or disruption to its operations due to
labour disputes nor had it experienced any difficulties in the
recruitment. The directors consider that the Group has maintained
good working relationship with its employees.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining good
relationships with its customers and suppliers to the overall
development of its business. During the year, there were no disputes
between the Group and its customers and/or suppliers which would
have caused significant adverse impact to the Group’s business.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately 20% of
the Group’s revenue, and revenue attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 5% of the Group’s revenue.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, purchases attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 82% of
the Group’s purchases and purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 33% of the Group’s
purchases.

None of the directors, their close associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interests in the Group’s five
largest customers and the suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive directors:

Xie Yi

Cheng Yong
Lou Yi

Wong Sau Kuen
Liu Kwok Wah
Lu Zhigiang

Dr. Xie Yi, Dr. Lou Yi, Ms. Wong Sau Kuen and Mr. Liu Kwok Wah are
also directors in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Independent non-executive directors:

Fang Lin Hu
Xue Jing Lun
Jin Song

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) from Messrs. Fang Lin
Hu, Xue Jing Lun and Jin Song and still considers them to be
independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 111, other than the
Chairman, the directors of the Company, including the independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-
laws, Mr. Cheng Yong and Mr. Lu Zhigiang will retire as directors by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
Mr. Cheng Yong, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election, and
Mr. Lu Zhigiang has confirmed not to offer himself for re-election and
will retire as director at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory obligation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group, and pursuant to the
recommendation made by the remuneration committee.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no
director had material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, no directors or their close associates are considered
to have an interest in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

=40 )

REBEARAZARAF IR RE
BREREIN ARBEF(BRBUIFNTE
E((BUFRED)ARERT XRAR
AZBERBFAGLEREEF -READ
AlZABAAIGY BEEEREERE
ERNARAERERRBFEFARE LHER
TEF BELENAERLBEEBEEE
f MESRELERRBT2EERE W
RARFREEBRRBEFASERFERIE
=

ESECRBEN

BREERRBFASLERIECLES
BEERARNFBITZLTAHARAR —FA
ENBEECEEEEBRMN MBLEZRE S
#J e

EEHM

EEHNEANBRAS LESRRI#E-
Htte DHARREEEL2EEE LR
BBERRAUARAKEEZZEURE
FHZEemFHEBEERAMETE -

EEZE0N®

REEVBRERMBRELEN BEEERN
ARRHEEMKE QBN EANMET LY
AEBEEXEBAEEAREZEAENT B
BRYHERBEEERNES -

EERNHFRB2ES

RERN BEEFIARFIEEBE AR
BRNERNSEXBEHEK LA EENKE &
SHEERF X EAER

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT



67

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, every director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) These 900,000,000 shares represent conversion shares to be allotted and issued
to the bondholder, United Gene International Holdings Group Limited (“UG
International”) upon exercise in full of the conversion rights by UG International, at
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per share under the Company’s 20-year zero
coupon convertible bonds issued on 16 July 2013 with principal amount of
HK$577,170,000 outstanding. The entire issued share capital of UG International
is owned by JNJ Investments Ltd which is wholly owned by Biowindow Gene
Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“HK Biowindow”), and the entire issued share
capital of HK Biowindow is owned by United Gene Group Ltd (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). The issued share capital of United Gene
Group Ltd is owned as to 33% by Ease Gold Investments Limited, which is wholly
owned by Dr. Xie Yi.

At 31 March 2020, there was a total of 2,390,000,000 shares issued by the
Company, and assuming the exercise in full of the conversion rights attaching to
the Company’s convertible bonds, UG International will hold approximately
27.36% of the enlarged share capital of the Company.

(b) 1,060,000 shares and 139,700,000 shares of the Company’s shares in issue are
respectively held by Merchandise Holdings Limited and United Gene Industry
Group Limited, both are companies incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
are wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Yong.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them, or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 March 2020, the following interests and short positions of 5%
or more of the shares and underlying shares of the Company were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

These 900,000,000 shares represent conversion shares to be allotted and issued
to the bondholder, United Gene International Holdings Group Limited (‘UG
International”) upon exercise in full of the conversion rights by UG International, at
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per share under the Company’s 20-year zero
coupon convertible bonds issued on 16 July 2013 with principal amount of
HK$577,170,000 outstanding. The entire issued share capital of UG International
is owned by JNJ Investments Ltd which is wholly owned by Biowindow Gene
Development (Hong Kong) Limited (“HK Biowindow”), and the entire issued share
capital of HK Biowindow is owned by United Gene Group Ltd (a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands). The issued share capital of United Gene
Group Ltd is owned as to 33% by United Gene Holdings Limited, which is wholly
owned by Dr. Mao Yumin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other
than certain directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The following connected and related party transaction was recorded
during the year and up to the date of this report:

Provision of shareholders’ loan to Smart Ascent
Limited (“Smart Ascent”), an associate of the Company

On 27 July 2018, the Company and Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (together with its subsidiaries, the “Innovative Pharm
Group”) through their respective wholly-owned subsidiaries namely
Extrawell (BVI) Limited and Clear Rich International Limited holding
49% and 51% shareholdings in Smart Ascent, as lenders and Smart
Ascent as borrower, entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement (the
“Loan Agreement”) for a loan to Smart Ascent amounting to
HK$30,000,000 in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed as to 49% i.e.
HK$14,700,000 by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$15,300,000 by
Innovative Pharm Group, for the purpose of financing the working
capital requirements of Smart Ascent and its subsidiaries for the oral
insulin project. The Loan is unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per
annum and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each
drawdown of the Loan.

Innovative Pharm was a then substantial shareholder of the Company
that the entering into of the Loan Agreement constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company. As the Loan Agreement was entered
into on normal commercial terms and the provision of the Loan is in
proportion to the equity interest held by the Group and Innovative
Pharm Group in Smart Ascent, this connected transaction is fully
exempted from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements in accordance with rule 14A.89 of the Listing
Rules. In addition, the applicable percentage ratios in respect of this
connected transaction are less than 5%, it does not constitute a
notifiable transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

In August 2019, Smart Ascent had drawn down in aggregate of
HK$20,000,000, and accordingly, the Group and Innovative Pharm
Group made contribution in the sum of HK$9,800,000 and
HK$10,200,000 respectively to Smart Ascent, and together with the
HK$10,000,000 drawn down in September 2018, Smart Ascent had
fully drawn down the Loan of HK$30,000,000 under the Loan
Agreement. Further details are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Amendments to terms and conditions of the
HK$715,000,000 Convertible Bonds due 2021 issued
by Innovative Pharm for Extension of Interest Payment
Dates

The Group’s investments in convertible bonds issued by Innovative
Pharm on 28 July 2014 with principal amount of HK$715,000,000
bears interest at 3.5% per annum payable in arrears annually with
maturity on the 7th anniversary of the date of issue (the “Bonds”).

On 26 July 2019, the Company and Innovative Pharm, a then
substantial shareholder of the Company entered into, amongst
others, the deed of amendment to amend and vary certain terms and
conditions in the Bonds (the “Proposed Amendments”), whereby the
dates for annual interest payment of HK$25,025,000 (the “Interest”)
each for the periods from 28 July 2018 to 27 July 2019 (2019
Interest Period”) and 28 July 2019 to 27 July 2020 (“2020 Interest
Period”) would both be extended to 28 July 2021 and an additional
interest in the amount of HK$11,261,250 be paid on the even date.
The additional interest represents 15% per annum on the Interest for
2-year extension for payment of interest for 2019 Interest Period and
1-year extension for payment of interest for 2020 Interest Period.

The transaction contemplated under the Proposed Amendments
constitutes a major and connected transaction for the Company
under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, which was
approved by the Company’s independent shareholders at its special
general meeting held on 17 October 2019 and completed on 28
October 2019.

Details regarding the Proposed Amendments, the results of the
special general meeting and the completion are respectively disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 26 July 2019 and the circular
dated 16 September 2019, and the Company’s announcements
dated 17 October 2019 and 28 October 2019.

Details of the material related party transactions entered into by the
Group which do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules for the year are set out in note 40(a)() and (b) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in “Connected and Related Party Transactions”
above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event occurred after 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the latest
practicable date prior to the date of this report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors.
Based on specific enquiry of the directors, the directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESEHE(E)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee (the “Committee”),
with written terms of reference, in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, for the purpose of reviewing and providing supervision
over the financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The Committee comprises three
INEDs. The Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 have been reviewed by the Committee. The Committee is of the
opinion that such financial statements comply with the applicable
accounting standards, and Stock Exchange’s and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

AUDITOR

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year were
audited by Elite Partners CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditor of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Xie Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

elite
< partners

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To The Shareholders of
Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Extrawell
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 203,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
B B R ()

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Prior year’s audit scope limitation affecting opening
balance of comparative figures for the Group’s interest
in an associate

The auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 (“2019 Financial
Statements”) contained a qualified opinion on the limitation of audit
scope in relation to the opening balance on the Group’s interest in an
associate. Details of which had been set out in the auditor’s report
dated 28 June 2019.

As the 2019 Financial Statements formed the basis for the
comparative figures presented in the current year’s consolidated
financial statements, any adjustments found to be necessary in
respect of the opening balance (i.e. 1 April 2018) on the Group’s
interest in an associate would have a significant effect on the results
of the year ended 31 March 2019 and the related disclosures thereof
for the comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B & ()

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

1

Impairment assessment of an associate

Key audit matters
EREKREE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has interest in an
associate of approximately HK$327,000,000
representing 49% equity interests in Smart Ascent
Limited (see note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements).

RZE_TF=A=+—H  E5ER—HH
ERE R /I, OOOOOO/%E Thig EAL
iﬁﬁ?«‘ Al z49%Em (R A 0B wK M T
23) °

For the purpose of impairment assessment, the
Group appointed an independent external valuer to
assess the recoverable amount of the interest in an
associate.

A EREMS
B T it 3 — PB4

EEECEZEBELINEHE
A M a2 A Ol 25 o

We had identified the impairment assessment of
interest in an associate as a key audit matter
because significant management judgement was
required to determine the recoverable amount for the
interest in an associate.

BRIN—EBERAR RS AR
AREZFEE REAABEEAELENHE
EER—HBE QARSI NE S5 -

EREXEEm@®
(1) R—EEEQRZBEFTM

Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:
SREBEZFEHZIEZEREABENT :

° We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;

s EECDHE IEJEE e A FEE R ETR &
HERIR B Y B 2E

° We discussed with management and relevant
professionals about the In-process R&D of oral
insulin product;

e EFCHEEEMEEEXALT®EMOR
PREREMETTH 27T

° We obtained and assessed the fair value
calculations methodology provided by the
management including but not limited to the
reasonableness of key assumptions applied (e.g.
operating margins, terminal growth rates and
discount rates), the accuracy and reliance of the
input data used; and

s EEDERYAEREMEBEHRATEE
TE BEBARMAFEREEME (flnE
B KABRERMIRE) 2881 -
R A\ BUR 2 R AT SR - ]

° We evaluated the competency of the
independent external valuer taking account its
experience and qualifications.

o EEDEBUINBEEMZESN  WEEHE
KR ERE o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
B 2B #E (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BAREXREE®@

M BB R &RE 2 RER G

(@) Impairment assessment of property, plant and )
equipment

Key audit matters
HREXER

As at 31 March 2020, the Group has property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$126,000,000 (see
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements).
R-ZE_ZETF=ZA=+—H E£EAEMX-
iR 5 % 3% 1 #9126,000,000 % 7T (R 4R & B 7% i 2%
BIsE17) -

For the impairment assessment, the Group
appointed an independent external valuer to assess
the recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment.

HAGBRENS S EXECELZEBEILINGMEE
BRI BE MR EZ AT G €5 -

We had identified the impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment as key audit matter
due to the significant judgement involved by the
management in impairment assessment.
FEECHEIME BEMRKREBZRETHAEGR
EZEEH RAREEEAMBENGEIELERXR
Hff

Our major audit procedures to address this matter
included the following:
EEREBZEHEFEEREABENT

° We assessed the fair value calculations
methodology used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions adopted in the fair value
less cost of disposal;

o EEFEIEMERZATERERALRTE
W ERAEMN s EERR2EEE

° We discussed with management whether any
impairment indicator exists and basis for the
impairment recognised;

s FECLHERBENWREAFETMRETR KR
HERRENEE |

° We challenged the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry;

s EEERBAGHEBRLITENNE AT
ERKRzAEMN

. We checked on sampling basis, the accounting
and relevance of the input data used; and

s EECEUMBSIAREMERBMARIEZ G
BRIE R AERANE ¢ K2

° We evaluated the competency of the
independent external valuer taking account its
experience and qualifications.

s EECEBIMINRAEER S WEEBHE
RN B o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
E_L*?%lgﬂiﬁi (n\ﬁ)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT (Continued)
B B R ()

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Leung Man Kin with Practising Certificate
number PO7174.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

29 June 2020
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LIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FelRarEtmE2ElkR R

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-—FF=A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—E_EF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THExT T
Revenue W &= 6 77,584 89,218
Cost of sales i=R==N N (34,668) (39,618)
Gross profit EH 42,916 49,600
Other income H g A 7 12,932 10,214
Other gains and losses, net Hih s M E1EF5E 8 93,153 78,863
Selling and distribution expenses MENMDIEER (24,552) (40,170)
Administrative expenses THRE A (26,445) (26,402)
Share of results of an associate FE(E— BB E A RESE (3,165) (908)
Finance cost B 75 B S 10 (9,348) (7,828)
Profit before income tax % BT 18 B4 BT 5 9 85,491 63,374
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiE e, (i) 13 90 (50)
Profit for the year REEER 85,581 63,324
Other comprehensive expense Hi2mEEX
Item that may be reclassified subsequently H 7& A] 5£ 2 37 7> 48 2 18 25 £Y
to profit or loss HH
Exchange differences on translation of ~ # & g A0 2 765 7 [E 3, = %8
foreign operations (7,304) (6,881)
Item that will not be reclassified HEEIT o5 B2 8%
subsequently to profit or loss mIE 5
Change in fair value on financial assets 5+ A A2 E Wz 2 4 @&t
through other comprehensive income BEXNTEZD = (59,047)
Other comprehensive expense for AREEHEMEEMX
the year (7,304) (65,928)
Total comprehensive income/ AEE2XEWE (BAX)
(expense) for the year HE 78,277 (2,604)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
GeBRakEMEZEKRER (&

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H#EZ T -FTF=F=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF | 22 %
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 7 FET FAT
Profit/(Loss) for the year TR AT EEAREERR
attributable to: (B8 :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NESTEF SN 83,280 64,030
Non-controlling interests FE 1 A% b 2 2,301 (706)
85,581 63,324
Total comprehensive income/ DTATELREEE
(expense) for the year 2HME(BAX) 4% :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company YNNI =N 75,843 (2,042
Non-controlling interests FE 17 A b 2 2,434 (562)
78,277 (2,604)
HK cents HK cents
AL Al
Earnings per share for profit AAREBEANEMLRERZ
attributable to owners of BRER:
the Company
— Basic —HEK 14 3.48 2.68
— Diluted —#E 14 2.81 2.18
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OLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HEeMBRAR

As at 31 March 2020 R = -—ZFTF =H=+—H

2020 2019
— 7 — ﬂE = j-er'E
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT 5E FE T F& T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties "EME 16 1,319 1,378
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 17 126,070 140,740
Prepaid lease payments BREERMNK 18 - 9,236
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 14,005 -
Intangible assets mILEE 20 1,807 1,807
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABEZZER®
profit or loss BE 21 571,065 469,737
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAEMEE Y
other comprehensive income e REE 22 = -
Interest in an associate IR ANCI e X 23 326,897 330,062
Amount due from an associate FE I — B & R Bl SRR 24 - 29,388
Loan to an associate =8 il 1): /N 24 15,383 5,027
Deferred tax assets FEEF B E E 33 69 69
1,056,615 987,444
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 5,865 5,824
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RWER M EREE 26 10,484 20,047
Deposits, prepayments and e - TBN IR KA M FE U
other receivables B 27 4,787 11,106
Amount due from an associate FEW — B & A Rl IR 24 38,377 —
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABRZZ SR/
profit or loss BE 21 1,652 1,769
Pledged bank deposits BB ITFER 28 21,493 20,994
Cash and bank balances He RBITHEE 29 126,437 148,902
209,095 208,642
Current liabilities NI R=RE
Trade and bills payables B ENESTREMNERE 30 6,239 8,125
Accruals, other payables and FEIREBA -  EMENRER
contract liabilities aHAaE 31 36,052 56,201
Lease liabilities MEAG 32 1,692 -
Deferred income on government grants I i # B 2 ¥ FE U A 35 117 125
Tax payable J& 1~ B 18 14,232 15,287
58,332 79,738
Net current assets RBEEFE 150,763 128,904
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEME 1,207,378 1,116,348
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z_Z &3



86

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
ma BRI (&)

As at 31 March 2020 R—ZE-_ZEF=H=+—H

2020 2019
—F=%F | == T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E FE T FHE T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds Al AR B & 34 58,950 49,635
Lease Liabilities MEBE 32 3,894 -
Deferred income on government grants I JfiF # B 27 ¥ FE Uz A 35 4,686 5,142
67,530 54,777
Net assets EEFRE 1,139,848 1,061,571
Equity Em
Share capital % 2 36 23,900 23,900
Reserves i 38 1,118,595 1,042,752
Equity attributable to owners of AATEEAEMLESR
the Company 1,142,495 1,066,652
Non-controlling interests FERER 42 (2,647) (5,081)
Total equity EREE 1,139,848 1,061,571
On behalf of the board REXES=S
Xie Yi Wong Sau Kuen
EES TEHE
Director Director
- -

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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OLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeHREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 == =FTF = A =+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAES
Foreign Convertible
currency bonds Non-
Share ~ Share  Capital Contributions translation equity  FVTOCI Retained controlling
capital premium reserve surplus  reserve reserve  reserve earnings Sub-total interests
RAYE
stARL
TRRES 2EKE *ER
R& RGEE BABH ELRE RERE 2R ER
HK$'000  HKS! HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
THT BT 7 THET i ThEr  Fix 7 #7 TR
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-N\%
mA-A 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 34,970 512,359 - 297,225 1,071,573 (4,494) 1,067,079
Initial application of HKFRS 9 EREREENE
FEEREOR - - - - - — (24039 21,160 (2,879 (25) (2,904)

Restated balance as at 1 April 2018 B = — )\ &

mA—-BEES|
2B 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 34970 512,359 (24,039 318,385 1,068,694 (4,519) 1,064,175
Profitfor the year REERF - - - - - - - 64030 64030 (10) 63,324
Change in fair value on financial st AE 2 AR 2
assets through other CREEATE
comprehensive income 28 - - - - - - (89,047) - (59,047) - (69,047)
Exchange differences on translation 4 284) £ & 2
of foreign operations EizHE - - - - (7,025) - - - (7,025) 144 (6,881)
Total comprehensive (expenses)/ 2 (B %),/
income ek - - - - (7,025) - (59,047) 64,080 (2,042) (562) (2,604)
AL3T March 2019 and 1 Apr 2019 1= E—hE
“A=+t-8k
—I-NF
mA—-H 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 27,945 512,359  (83,086) 382,415 1,066,652 (5,081) 1,061,571
Proft for the year REEEF = = = = = - - 83280 83280 2,301 85,581
Exchange differences on translation £ E SN EHES 2
of foreign operations ERER = = = = (7,437) = = = (7,437) 133 (7304)
Total comprehensive income/ 2ENE/(BX)
(expense) ek = = = = (7,437) = - 83280 75843 2434 78211
At 31 March 2020 RZZZZHF
ZA=+-H 23900 191,738 6,542 4,839 20,508 512,359  (83,086) 465,695 1,142,495 (2,647) 1,139,848
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeBKiER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2 - -—TF=F=+—HIFE

2020
—g-%f

— =

2019
—T-NF

HK$°000
FTERT

HK$'000
THT

Cash flows from operating activities RETE2EERE
Profit before income tax B P15 %1 A& A 85,491 63,374
Adjustment for: FELLTEER
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E R 2 B = 234
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRABEEZNE 467 -
Depreciation of investment properties BEMEZITE 59 59
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BEREEZINE 5,835 6,237
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME BEMEKEZ
equipment (W), B8 (85) 734
Provision for impairment loss on B 5 RURFUREBERE
trade receivables, net iR 5,921 255
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment loss on FERMEEREE/(ERE)
inventories, net Pk 253 (44)
Change in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL R AFEGT ABH 2 2 & E
— investments in convertible bonds AEEEE - RERES
A (101,328) (79,789)
Change in fair value on financial assets at FVTPL IR A FEF ABR 2 BEE
— bank structured product N EES - RITEBE
= (51) (61)
Share of results of an associate EE—HBERATER 3,165 908
Effective interest expense on convertible bonds RBRES < BEBRMERT 9,315 7,823
Imputed interest income from amount due from UL — BB L ARIREZ HE
an associate FEWA (8,989) (6,883)
Interest income M EMA (3,264) (2,947)
Amortisation of deferred income i T U A B 5 (121) (257)
Loan interest income from an associate RE—HBEERRZERAE
WA (556) (127)
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment loss on Hib e B EEREE
other receivables (%Mo) 4,517 @)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBREZAMERE 33 -
Operating cash flows before movements in working 28 & ¢ #F a2 KL M E R =
capital 662 (10,486)
Increase in inventories FEE M (279) (1,680)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B SRR R ERZERR D 6,342 3,169
Decrease/(Increase) in deposits, prepayments and 324 8 218 K& H b i U 5718
other receivables () 1,989 (2,743)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and bills payables B REMEDNEMNEZE
CR), /4 (1,886) 1,209
Decrease in accruals, other payables and TERER EMENFERELN
contract liabilities & EwH (20,149) (4,520)

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
mEeBEERER (E)
E_E_ZFE=-A=+—HIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &

2020 2019
“EZEF | == AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T
Cash used in operations EEFAZES (13,321) (15,051)
Income tax refunded/(paid) Rig/(BEMFBER 70 (38)
Net cash used in operating activities RETEFTACRSFEE (13,251) (15,089)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHFEEZEERE
Interest income received from investments in AR EERE 2 B WF B
convertible bonds WA - 25,025
Interest income received B U F) B A 3,026 2,947
Government grant received B UK AT 48 B - 1,653
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and EEME  BEREZE LG
equipment ;8 85 118
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BENEKE (162) (1,414
Short term investment’s return received B S Bi% B B3R 51 57
Repayment of the amount due to an associate BEEN—FHEBE AR ZHEA - (19,780)
Loan made to an associate ERT—EBE QA (9,800) (4,900)
Increase in pledged bank deposits BRI RGN (499) (492)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REZE (TR FELEZRE
investing activities FE (7,299) 3,114
Cash flows from financing activities RETBFELEZEERE
Repayment for lease liabilities EEHEAaR (208) -
Interest paid EATF B (33) -
Net cash used in financing activities RETBRMAZESFEE (241) -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BeERBESEEEBEBERD FE (20,791) (11,975)
Effect of foreign exchange rate change NEERSFH o FE (1,674) (888)
Cash and cash equivalents at FIzHELESZEER
beginning of year 148,902 161,765
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZEENESZEIER 126,437 148,902
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBEEEEEZERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances HeNMBTES 126,437 148,902
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z_ZH &3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SaMBERRME

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HEZ —Z —ZTF=A=+—HItFE

(1)

(2

GENERAL

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its
principal place of business is suites 2206-08, 22/F., Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King’s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company (together with
the subsidiaries referred as the “Group”). The principal activities
of its subsidiaries and an associate are set out in notes 42 and
23 respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) has issued a number of new or amended HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new/revised
HKFRSs and amendment to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

(1)

()

—REH

ARBITRBREFMAIZLZBRA
A HRORBEBBAERSAMBRA
AI([BERFT ) EtR Ehe Hexfiifi=
iz 3t 31k 52 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° H &+
ZEEWBUREEHAFREE
979%% X i 4 128 & K [E 224 2206-08

= o

ARBR—HREERQBCGERHE
MBARMBEAIAEE] AR
ETHEBRARALE -—HBEERAZTE
EB o R A M RRMT 2R
23 °

XTI REIETEBYH
REER((EFBPBREE

R R RIBET BB
BHREER —R=ZF—-N
FOE—HEN

ARG (BREEFMRE])
BB Z AT KB BB MR
HFEA ZFEANRAKEE /&5
HAFR B R A2

(@)

ERMBREEN HE

165

BB (BERBRE MEHEE L TREY

2EZEE)-

REFE28H

BEMBHREERN HEEBHEZEMNZE

EXLACHEY R B

A g £ FEBH - RS

F195 (BRI &)

ERUBREEN BAEUBRELN=Z

(BFT &) —REE_T—+tF
B EE

Br R XXFTat o AEEFRWH

RETBABUBRE ERREFEYH
BEEA (TR B ARENEGE R
RUBERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” has been
summarised below. The other new or amended HKFRSs that
are effective from 1 April 2019 did not have any significant
impact on the Group’s accounting policies.

()  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in accounting treatment
for lease accounting, primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), HK(FRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 “Operating Leases — Incentives” and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease”. From a lessee’s perspective, almost all
leases are recognised in the statement of financial position as a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, with the narrow exception
to this principle for leases which the underlying assets are of
low-value or are determined as short-term leases. From a
lessor’s perspective, the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16 regarding
its new definition of a lease, its impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer to section (ii)
to (iv) of this note.

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative effect
approach and recognised all the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at the date of initial application. The
comparative information presented in 2019 has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in
HKFRS 16.

»
S
h=1
A
X
FA
o &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG (2) A HIT R KBTI EEHK
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REZERN(EBMKEREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) al]) @)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective @ BRI EIBET E /% 571

1 April 2019 (Continued) B EER — Eé ==

FUA—HAEX @

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued) BB EERF16% —HE ()

()  Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued) () HAWEBHEHRETERE167EZ
T (1E)

The following table summarises the impact of transition to TRBMBEEEAMNEREEDE

HKFRS 16 on consolidated statement of financial position as of BREHE—_T—NLF=ZA=+—

31 March 2019 to that of 1 April 2019 as follows (increase/ BeBReaMBmRARBR_T—-NFN

(decrease)): A—BZHGEWBRRARZZERNT

(&m0, O ) -

HK$'000
TAT

Consolidated statement of financial position as at ~ R-E—NEMH — A2 HFEESHF
1 April 2019 ;%)Ef%

Right-of-use assets FTREEE 9,236
Prepaid lease payments FENHEE K (9,236)
The following reconciliation explains how the operating lease A TREEHPAR-_ZE—HNE=A=+
commitments disclosed applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March —HERAE A LR FI7HEREZ
2019 could be reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of BT ERAEMA A ERA T — N F
initial application recognised in the consolidated statement of WA—BZ2HEEBRRARPERR

financial position as at 1 April 2019: BEXAEBBHHEABETYHER

HK$’000
TR

Reconciliation of operating lease commitment to HEHEREMFEBE R
lease liabilities
Operating lease commitment as of 31 March 2019 WM -ZE—hAFE=F=+—H2KLHE

R 1,601
Less: short-term leases for which lease terms end W HEER - E_EF=ZA=+—HR
within 31 March 2020 ERZEHEE (1,601)
Total lease liabilities as of 1 April 2019 RZE—NFUNA—HzHEABERE -

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G R I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z—FF = =+—HILFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)  The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. A
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time when the customer, throughout the
period of use, has both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from use of the identified asset and (b)
the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, a lessee shall
allocate the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of the
lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components, unless the lessee applies the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and instead account for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounted for all each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease component
for all leases.

Rl &8 8
B E

i 4

@ HMHFF EETEBY
B EER — m:g—n
FUH—-B&E»@E

& & ﬁjﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ E169% —HE ()
(i) HEZHE
*E?E%/%Eﬁi%#ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁﬂ%m%'%EE‘:
RERBTREANN —BREBRNER—
BEEHBEE) URBREZEH
HEHNZ - BEEFRERFER
HEAESE : QBEFNEERAEHME
EPIIGEKRBDEEN=E &bE
MEREHRNEEZER - A& LK
THERAMNR-—BREHREHFEREHNE
= o
RESHERI K—BXZEBEINIAE
ERFMHERH  2EHMS - AHEA
/,\Hﬁﬂf?fa‘ D2 AEE B EER KIEM
ERo v REBBBEERRASHETH D
ReEdRNZRE  BRIEFARBABAT
TRERE ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ/\Tﬁi%?ﬁ*ﬁ
HEEBRNTHIERESS>RBAES
DHEOE MESHEHEDRD &Eﬂﬁ
BIRERSARBE—HELD

AEBEEETEOFHERO AL

Fﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬂ—fﬁﬁﬁxfﬂﬂ_“ > AT 4
FIEHEEL D AKRTEE —HH & &0
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZ—Z —FTF=A=+—HItFE

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)  Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease as an operating
lease or a finance lease based on the extent to which risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with the
lessor or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an operating
lease, the lessee would recognise the lease payments under the
operating lease as an expense over the lease term. The asset
under the lease would not be recognised in the statement of
financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy choices for
an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-
term leases and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases for
which at the commencement date have a lease term less than
12 months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
at the commencement date of a lease.

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG (2) A HIT R KB EEHM K
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING BEER(FEEMEREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) A1) am

@ HMFF EETEBY
ﬁ%&%&ﬁﬂ—}%zg—ﬂ
FUH—-B&E»@E

EBRIEIREER|FE 1655 — HE (18)
(i) FEBRBEAN S EE
BEBESFTERFEI7TH - AHEAE
WIEHAEEERB ERENR R & E R
Eﬁitﬂ%ﬁ/\iﬁkfﬂ)\ﬁﬁ*ﬁ?ﬂ%fﬁ#fﬂ%
DEAKREHESXMEHE - WMHEE

ERAELERE  FAABREBERN
ﬂ%%@MfﬂglﬁTE’Jfﬁif1T K T 2R 4
T - HEBEBTHEESTZRANEA
BB IS AR R N RERR o

BEBBTHHREERFEIGH TG
HETwmAKLEHEMERE)A
REBRARENMEBEREEER
HEAE HEBUBKHRESEDFE16
RAERREHSHTREKRERE  JRE
THOBEHAENTEE &5
EEAREBENHEETERL &
SEERETHEBEEENARLRRF
th B BT HAE A 1218 A M FH EFE R (E
RREERHEaGE A%EHER
ENRENRERBHREERES
8H o

AEERNEERKBMERERRE
ERHERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G R I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z—FF = =+—HILFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability (see below for the accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (i) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received; (iii)
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which
the underlying asset is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease. Except for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation model,
the Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-
use assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
an investment property, they are carried at fair value and for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of a leasehold land
and buildings held for own use, they are carried at cost.

Leasehold land and buildings that were held for rental or capital
appreciation purpose would continue to be accounted for under
HKAS 40. For leasehold land and buildings which were held for
own use would continue to be accounted for under HKAS 16
and would be carried at cost. The adoption of HKFRS 16
therefore does not have any significant impact on these right-
of-use assets. Other than the above right-of-use assets, the
Group also has leased a property under tenancy agreement
which the Group exercises its judgement and determines that is
the building leased for own use carried at cost. As a result, the
right-of-use assets arising from the properties under tenancy
agreement are carried at depreciated cost.

()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iii)  Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the date of commencement of
the lease. The lease payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group
shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right of use the underlying asset
during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement
date of the lease are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the commencement date; (i)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual
value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and (v)
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee shall
measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease maodifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G R I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z—FF = =+—HILFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iv)  Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 using
the cumulative effect approach and recognised all the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
date of initial application (1 April 2019). The comparative
information presented in 2019 has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition provision in
HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities at the date of
1 April 2019 for leases previously classified as operating leases
applying HKAS 17 and measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 April 2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-of-use assets
at 1 April 2019 for leases previously classified operating leases
under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since the
commencement date, but discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. For
all these right-of-use assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” at 1 April 2019 to assess if there was
any impairment as on that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(@) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iv)  Transition (Continued)

The Group has also applied the following practical expedients: (i)
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics; (ii) applied the exemption of
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases with term that will end within 12 months of the date of
initial application (1 April 2019) and accounted for those leases
as short-term leases; (iii) exclude the initial direct costs from the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at 1 April 2019 and (iv)
used hindsight in determining the lease terms if the contracts
contain options to extend or terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied the practical expedients
such that: () HKFRS 16 is applied to all of the Group’s lease
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”; and (i) not to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a
lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to Definition of a Business'
HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to COVID-19 — Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

8 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2018. The effective date has now been
deferred/removed. Early application of the amendments continues to be
permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include, as a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs, together
with providing extensive guidance on what is meant by a
“substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment of
whether market participants are capable of replacing any
missing inputs or processes and continuing to produce outputs,
whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and a “business” to
focus on returns from selling goods and services to customers,
rather than on cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation of
“material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS Standards
and the Conceptual Framework, and incorporating supporting
requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

G R I

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z—FF = =+—HILFE

(2) ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single principle-based
standard for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of insurance contracts in the consolidated financial
statements of the issuers of those contracts.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be
recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets to its
associate or joint venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full, conversely when
the transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business
the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and consolidated financial
statements.

BB E
= 1)
EEVBREENFEITHRERKETLE
MBHRELENELR ERERHEEHD
BOAGEMBRERPER 8-
EIRBERBRAOZE - RAIE
Al

ZERFETH — R

EEBUBEREERFEIORER EE
2 BRI F285E (155 K)— RE
FHABE NGB EED
EXTALE
EHEIREERMEBRLARRK
ARDPEPEFTABER B TR
AW EREERRE - X R —
HER  AIERERES8 WS ERE-
Rz #*%ﬁ&T%&—ﬁ%%z
EE BEARTHEREERS
DEYBWL DT 2 EEERIE wg
18 o

AEBHREHBREHAGETS
Bk B 3 EOE R A B A R
REAS

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 =Z=—THFIf

= #H



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(3) BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited.

3.2 Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. The amounts stated
are rounded to the nearest HK$1,000 unless otherwise

stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”). Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or
up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of the
Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a
joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but not control or joint control over those
policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group’s interest in the associates are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Associate (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of
the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in an associate has
been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is
tested for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows
from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount (see note 4.15), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the
basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit.
However, the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce
the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its fair
value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value in
use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognhised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.5

4.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. The annual rates/useful lives are as
follows:

Over the lease terms of the
relevant leasehold land
and 50 years if shorter

6.67%-20%

10%-30%

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable

amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

The land component of leasehold investment property is
accounted for as prepaid lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6

4.7

Investment property (Continued)

The building component of investment property is
measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment (if any). Depreciation is
calculated using a straight-line method to allocate the
depreciable amounts over the estimated useful lives of
30.25 years.

The residual values and useful lives of investment property
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each
financial year end. The effects of any revision are included
in the statement of profit or loss when the changes arise.

Leasing

Accounting as a lessee (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (i) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.7 Leasing (Continued) 4.7 HE @)

Accounting as a lessee (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset is recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by
the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by
the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which the underlying asset is
located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease. Except
for right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property or a class of property, plant and
equipment to which the Group applies the revaluation
model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.7 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2019) (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right of use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made;
and (i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any
reassessment or lease modifications, e.g., a change in
future lease payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in the in
substance fixed lease payments or a change in
assessment to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.7 Leasing (Continued) 4.7 HE @)

Accounting as a lessee (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2019)

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised
as an integrated part of the total rental expense, over the
term of the lease.

Lease of land and building (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2019)

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of
the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.7 Leasing (Continued)

Lease of land and building (accounting policies

applied until 31 March 2019) (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment. Unless it is clear that both elements are
operating lease, in which case the entire lease is classified

as an operating lease.

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

()  Intangible asset acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see

note 4.8(jii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

° adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o the Group is able to sell the product;

o sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and expenditure on the
project can be measured reliably.

The amount initially recognised for internally
generated intangible asset is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-
generated intangible assets are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs) (Continued)

Intangible assets, which comprise rights to
commercially exploit certain gene inventions, are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The category of intangible asset
is summarised as follows:

Gene invention rights

The cost of gene invention rights is amortised over
the lives of the rights granted for the invention of a
period up to a maximum of twenty years.

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested
for impairment by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts (see note 4.15).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is treated as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments

()

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”): Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVTOCI. Debt investments at FVTOCI
are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”): Financial
assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby
changes in fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade and bills receivables and
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The
ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs: these
are ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade and bills receivables using HKFRS 9
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are based
on the 12-months ECLs. However, when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the
lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and
including forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value and
financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable
costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables and the liability component of
convertible bonds issued by the Company are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into their respective items
on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be
settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as
an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the bonds into
equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds
equity reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT

Convertible bonds (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be transferred to share capital
and share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry dates, the balance stated
in convertible bonds equity reserve will be released
to the retained earnings. No gain or loss is
recognised upon conversion or expiration of the
option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial
asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(4) E XX @)

49 €@ T A @)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

ERAE%
ERMNEERAESRE
ESERBEHEHEXNEAR
BB HRE S KN B WA
HMERX 2T - B
RREBEREEXAR
B FHH(MER) 8E
HIR ERR B RARR
SRR ZFE -

KRATA

KRR BT ZRAT AE
WE Z FTS R IBHKR E &
BT AN ©

AU TR
rEEBEESBEERRR
ZARERBEEZREAKER
Eim XEeRMEECEER
AZBEREBETBEVBR
SFERNFIRT AR IEER
FER RIEERTBRE
=

TRAEBERABBEDOME

BB (AR RR ~ R 85 3 & R B
ARAEHER -

e e



124

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES @) EXEHHE®

(Continued)

4.9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 49 €@ I A @#\)

(vii) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or
in part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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4.10 Inventories 410 7 &

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.11 Revenue 411 W 2

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Revenue (Continued)

Sales of pharmaceutical products

Customers obtain control of the pharmaceutical products
when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the
customers accepted the pharmaceutical products. There
is generally only one performance obligation. Invoices are
usually payable within 30 days.

Other income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

4.12 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.12 Income taxes (Continued) 412 FR 5% (&)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.13 Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities
in currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it/they operate(s) (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling
when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange
differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.13 Foreign currency (Continued) 413 JMEE (1)
On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign SAEEEE 8 9\\%?‘24&& gi=)
operations are translated into the presentation currency of BEUERFEHERBE ARKEEH

the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign currency translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or
loss of group entities’ separate financial statements on
the translation of long-term monetary items forming part
of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign currency
translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve relating to that operation up to the date
of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.14 Employee benefits

()

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected
to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the
employees render the related service. Short term
employee benefits are recognised in the year when
the employees render the related service.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

4.15 Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of the following assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

property, plant and equipment/investment property
under cost model;

right-of-use assets;

intangible assets; and

investments in subsidiaries and an associate

(4) EXETHE @)

414 BERA

() HEHIESHER
RYEERFSEHNE
BERHEBBARE ZFER
EHRET _EAZAE

2B

BE®A (K LLE

FER SN o }2 HIE B 48 R R
BRERHEEBERB 2FE

MFER °

(i) B K FI ALK
REBRMERS B A REE
BHFE REREREZR
KR8 R 5T &) og &l MR FE
et El 2 BRERR AR
io

(ii)) A& L1E 25 F

AR RN R A &= B BE R
HREEZFRNERAE
R EARANCF RN
RIEEA)R(ARSE RS

RE)ER -

A5 EERE(EREERIN)

REREPR  AEERT T
BEZEREE WEEREHME

MPRBRZEER
518 5 1 R
TrfE Al BE 2 R

ECHIRE
MEEENH

Ao

s HKARABTHYME BFE

Kl RE
s EREEE:

s EBVEE R

/e

« RMBARR—MEEXL

AZE

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT



131

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

ASEERE(ZERMEERIN)

4.15 Impairment of assets (other than financial

assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.16 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or production of a qualifying asset is
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset until when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are complete, after
which such expense is charged to profit or loss. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended
during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted.

The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is
the actual borrowing costs incurred on the borrowing
during the period less any investment income on the
temporary investment of the borrowing.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

4.17 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that
can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(4) E XX @)

4.18 Government grants 4.18 BUR 4 By

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as
deferred income on government grants and are credited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

4.19 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

4.20 Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z - =

(4) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.20 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of interest in an associate

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5) EARHHAHR 1!-“ & 7T B9 B
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION AEZFERIR &
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, TXFHINNARBEHKRFAIELE BB ARK

ZEEBRREGFTHERR 2EAM

ETBRF 2SBREEREBEHEER
REYARTEMBRFEAREER

EEZEEETEf’EHjEﬁaH%EM

R—EBE AR 2 ERRE

The Group’s interest in an associate represents interest in AEBFBR —BHBEAa 2 ERIE
Smart Ascent Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent R A& E BN REWE QR (E

Group”). The major asset held by the Smart Ascent Group is an
intangible asset in relation to an in-process research and
development project (the “In-process R&D”) involving an oral
insulin product (the “Product”). As at 31 March 2020, the
carrying amount of the Group’s interest in an associate
amounted to HK$326,897,000 (2019: HK$330,062,000). The
directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment on the Group’s interest in an associate as at 31
March 2020, with reference to a valuation report prepared by
an independent qualified valuer and are of the view that no
impairment provision is required.

In making the assessment, key assumptions adopted by the
management include that Smart Ascent Group would be
successful in completing the clinical trials, obtaining the
regulatory approvals from the relevant government bodies and
launching the Product.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z - =

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment loss on trade receivables

The impairment loss on trade receivables of the Group is
estimated based on the evaluation of collectability and aging
analysis of individual trade debts performed by the
management. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection
history of each customer. If the financial conditions of
customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and buildings

As at 31 March 2020, the right-of-use assets and buildings are
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These valuations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management’s judgement is required in the area of assets
impairment particularly in assessing: () whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related assets value may
not be recoverable; and (i) whether the carrying amounts of
assets can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal or net present value of
future cash flows derived from continuing use of the assets in
the business. The management performed an impairment
assessment on its right-of-use assets and buildings as at 31
March 2020, with reference to the valuation report prepared by
an independent qualified valuer using the depreciate
replacement cost approach. The fair values of these assets
were higher than their carrying amounts. Accordingly, no
impairment loss is recognised for right-of-use assets and
buildings based on the impairment assessment performed by
the management as at 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and buildings
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of right-of-use-
assets and buildings are approximately HK$14,005,000 (2019:
prepaid lease payments of HK$9,236,000) and
HK$106,323,000 (2019: HK$116,570,000) respectively.

Impairment loss on slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

Impairment loss on slow-moving and obsolete inventories is
made based on the aging and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount involves
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome in future
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of inventories and allowance charge/write-
back in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates are based on the
current market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market condition.
The Group will reassess the estimates by the end of each
reporting period.

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS (5) EAS S X R 55 R o8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z - =

(5) CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Fair value of investments in convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds invested by the Group is
calculated using valuation techniques. Valuation techniques are
certified by independent qualified valuers before being
implemented for valuation and are calibrated to ensure that
outputs reflect market conditions. Valuation models established
by valuers make the maximum use of market inputs and rely as
little as possible on the Group’s specific data. The model
involves estimates on time to expiration, risk free rate, share
price, volatility, discount rate and others. As at 31 March 2020,
the carrying amount of the convertible bonds as a whole
invested by the Group is HK$571,065,000 (2019:
HK$469,737,000).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE= - -—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue for the year represents the fair value of amounts
received and receivable for goods sold to external customers,
less discounts and sales-related taxes for the year, and is
analysed as follows:

6) WE=RkosEER

FARBERIEBEFPHEERME
WERWKE 2 R FEARFRZI
MREHERBEHE 20T -

2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ ﬂE —F— j-L f'i
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHETT

Manufacturing of pharmaceutical B3 B8
products 77,584 75,821
Trading of pharmaceutical products ®EmME 5 = 13,397
77,584 89,218

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the board of
directors that makes strategic decisions.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products they provide. Each of the Group’s operating segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summarised details of the
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

(@  the manufacturing segment engages in the development,
manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products
(“Manufacturing”);

the trading segment engages in the marketing and
distribution of imported pharmaceutical products (“Trading”);
and

the gene development segment engages in the
commercial exploitation and development of genome-
related technology (“Gene Development”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is the Group’s revenue and results from operation
by reportable and operating segment.

6) WERITEEH @

DERENEE

RTAAREERRAZ2HLEEDHE

Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
HiE =) ERAR @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SECRF DS S SFoRF DS OF CRoRF DTG CR-%F ST US
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET TER FET TERT FTHET TER THT
Revenue W&
Sales to external customers [A15ME % P 44 E 77,584 75,821 - 13,397 - - 77,584 89,218
Segment results DEEE 6,453 (3633 (14919 (6,624) (86) (85) (8552  (10,342)
Unallocated other income &% &l 2 H il A 12,932 10,214
Unallocated other gains and & 73 At 7 £ f U &5
losses, net REEFE 101,328 79,789
Corporate expenses TERAY (7,737) (7,556)
Effective interest expense Al MR EH 2 K
on convertible bonds MERX (9,315) (7,823)
Share of results of an B —HBERT
associate B (3,165) (908)
Profit before income tax BETERANEFI 85,491 63,374
Income tax credit/(expense) BT %,/
(%it) 20 (50)
Profit for the year RNEEFR 85,581 63,324

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4 to
the consolidated financial statements. Segment profit/(loss)
represents the profit earned by/(loss from) each segment
without allocation of interest income, other gains and losses,
net, corporate expenses, share of results of an associate and
effective interest expense on convertible bonds. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker, being
the board of directors, for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (6) W= R 2 EE R @)

(Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE

The following is the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable LNTAKRKEEIRAER/RERLE D EE
and operating segment. DREENRARE-

Manufacturing Trading Gene Development Total
S g5 HERERAR @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SESRF DSOS SFoRF COOF CRoRF DR OG CR-%F TSNS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THAT TER THT TERL BT TERT FTET
Segment assets PEEE
Segment assets PREE 163,379 184,818 71,677 86,162 7 6 235063 270,986
Financial assets at fair value & A F &zt A%
through profit or loss ZEMEE—T
— investments in BRkEHLEE
convertible bonds 571,065 469,737
Interest in an associate R—EBERRZ
B 326,897 330,062

Corporate and other assets 1> % [t £ & & 132,685 125,301

Total assets BEE 1,265,710 1,196,086
Segment liabilities 2EERE
Segment liabilities NEEE 54,109 75,390 11,666 8,293 72 64 65,847 83,747
Convertible bonds AR & 5 58,950 49,635
Corporate and other rERAMEE

liabilities 1,065 1,133
Total liabilities BEREE 125862 134515

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss —
investments in convertible bonds, interest in an associate
and corporate and other assets; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than convertible bonds and corporate and other liabilities

RERSIBRBERRDERIEER
Mz

e BRERAFEFABZZEZRE
E-ABREEFRE R
ERBIZESZUNREERREAME
B MEEEHDREERED
8|k

e KAUBRKEFUREEREME
BN BRABHUIEEZERED
L3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the

AR R L

“E-ER

HK$'000
TET

Manufacturing
8
2020

2019

—T-NF
HK$'000
THT

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

6) WERITEEH @

Hitp EER
Trading Gene Development Total
g5 HHER® @t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

SECRF S8 NS -FoRF ST OF SR-FF ST OOG
HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
Tigr

HK$'000
THET

HK$'000
Ti#x

HK$'000
Fit

measure of segment BiEZEE:

profit or loss:
Depreciation and NERBHE

amortisation 5,910 6,312 320 86 - — 6,230 6,398
Unallocated depreciation &9 BL#7 & K4 4%

and amortisation 131 132

6,361 6,530

Provision for impairment & 5 & Y R FUR (B

loss on trade receivables, B HIFE

net 1,567 255 4,354 - - - 5,921 255
Bad debts recovered from YR 31 4 A 2 i 5

trade receivables BIHRBERZ

previously written off B (2,127) — - - - - (2,127) -
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of  HEME  HE X

property, plant and B{-pAC Ve

equipment BB (85) 734 - - - - (85) 734
Provision for/(Reversal of)  E 4t e g 0B R (&

impairment loss on BEAE/ (B

other receivables o) 2,921 @ 1,596 - - - 4,517 )
Provision for/(Reversal of) 17 &R (B B 1B B

impairment loss on &/ (BE)F8

inventories, net 253 (44) - — - - 253 (44)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(6) REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (6) W= R 2 EE R @)

(Continued)

Geographical information ih I8 & Kl

The Group’s operations are located in the People’s Republic of REB 7 EBURBPEARLA
China (the “PRC”), Malaysia and Hong Kong. (T Bl ERAIRES -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers BEKRBIBEEZAEBRFZZE
is presented based on the location of the customers and BN EERKEEEREEY - F
distributors. Information about the Group’s non-current assets BMAEBIERBEEZENNIKEE
is presented based on the geographical location of the assets. FriEsIB A B 27 o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
RENEEFE 2 Wz IRBEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-EF ZEZE-NF Z—ZT-EF ZT—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH& T F#& T FET
Hong Kong B - — 5,873 402
The PRC A 77,584 89,162 479,608 517,236
Macau el - 56 - —
77,584 89,218 485,481 517,638
Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments and deferred tax assets. s ERBEEIDE SR T A RIELER
BEE -
Information about major customers FEXEFEER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total (G B E1I0%rZRE 2T :

revenue are as follows:

2020 2019
. -
HK$’000 HK$000
TER THET
(Note)
(Bt &)
Customer A HPH N/ATiE A 13,341
Note: For the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no customer accounted for s HE—_E_FTFE=H=+—HILEE -
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. MEXE 7 KGZhAEB R EHBIB

10% °
EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(77 OTHER INCOME (7) HibkA
2020 2019
—E-EF | DT F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Bank interest income RITH B U A 3,264 2,947
Sundry income MIEWA 2 —
Government grants 5T 48 B 121 257
Imputed interest income from amount ~ fEU — BB & R RIRIB 2 (HE
due from an associate (note 24) A B U A (P 5E24) 8,989 6,883
Loan interest income from an associate & [ — BB & R~ 7 2 B3 &
(note 24) WA (B 5 24) 556 127
12,932 10,214
(8) OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES, NET 8 HEMWEREEFEE

2020 2019
—E-E2F —ZET—NF

HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER TAET

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, HEWE BMEEEBZ

plant and equipment (Yez), &5 1B 85 (734)
Change in fair value on financial assets & A FEFABRZZ L BEE

at FVTPL — investments in REEEE - A RREFEE

convertible bonds 101,328 79,789
Change in fair value on financial assets & A FEFAEBRZ SR EE

at FVTPL — short term investment N EZS - GHRE 51 61
(Provision for)/Reversal of impairment ¥ {th, i Ug 3 I8 s (B &5 18 (B &),

loss on other receivables [0l (4,517) 2
Provision for impairment loss on trade & 5 & Ut BR 70080 (B E5 18 B 15 F %8

receivables, net (note 26) (Fft 5% 26) (5,921) (259)
Bad debts recovered from trade B U E SR E M EEE 5 AR R

receivables previously written off =3 2,127 —

93,153 78,863
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(9) PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

BRATE B ANE FIE MK (Gt A)
THFIA

(9) PBR AT 15 B Al sk A

2020
—g-2%F

— = —

HK$’000
FERT

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
T 7T

Auditor’s remuneration ZE A0 2 730 700
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 8 |- 8 € 1< 2 % 44 = 234
Depreciation of rights-of-use assets FREESEITE 467 —
Depreciation of investment properties IR & ¥ ¥ T & 59 59
Depreciation of property, plant and ME BELREITE

equipment 5,835 6,237
Cost of inventories recognised as EREERZFEENKAE

expenses 34,668 39,618
Operating lease charges in respect of BT RIEF 2 KELHEER

land and buildings 1,601 1,826
Provision for/(Reversal of) impairment 77 S5 B8 #& (& 0) F 58"

loss on inventories, net* 253 (44)
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEESHM)

emoluments)

Salaries, bonus and allowances & TEAL R 20,395 21,038

Retirement benefits scheme RURAE FIET & 50

contributions 2,056 2,705
included in cost of sales * T ASEE KA

(10) FINANCE COST (10) B # X 2=
2020 2019
—F=%F | = T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FA T
Interest on convertible bonds o] ¥ j% & & F B 9,315 7,823
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 33 —
9,348 7,823

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(11) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors of the
Company, which include the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) for

the year are as follows:

Fees

ik

2020 2019
“EZEF | 2T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET THETL

Name of director ~ EZ# %

Salaries, and
other allowance
HeRHMRE
2020 2019
ZE2-2E [ 22 NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET

MNEERERSTRAEMS

AEEENRENTARAESR(E
BITRAR(TTHRAERD) cHEFE
m

Contributions to retirement
benefits scheme Total
RN B #st
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZE-2E [ 2T ONF | -B-EF T %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TER FTET

Xie Yi EIE 70 70 1,316 1,316 - - 1,386 1,386
Lou i i 70 70 487 487 - - 557 557
Cheng Yong £y 70 70 643 487 - - 713 557
Wong Sau Kuen B 70 70 852 787 18 18 940 875
Liu Kwok Wah BEE 70 70 995 995 18 18 1,083 1,083
Lu Zhigiang EE® 70 70 650 650 - - 720 720
Fang Lin Hu HE 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Xue Jing Lun BERf 70 70 - - - - 70 70
Jin Song E/N 70 70 - - - - 70 70

630 630 4,943 4,722 36 36 5,609 5,388

Xie Yi is also the CEO of the Company and his emoluments
disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as

the CEO.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office for both years. None of the
directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments for

both years.

ABMBARNRBITHRAER - B L
EMe e BmEERTRARMEHRR
BZME -

RzMEFEEA - KB E R IR
EEXNME FAMAREEIA
B BB ERREREE - R%M
BEFEEAR BEETAEESHEXRE
MEWRBERME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR (12) &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND H
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS

(@ The five highest paid individuals (@

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2019: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
11 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2019:

Ffu&SHFMAL

AEERUESFMALHMOA
(ZE-NF OR)R/EARAE
T REZHHI N EXHE
MR- AR —R(ZF—-NF:

one) individual was as follows: —EZB)ATZBemT :

2020 2019

—E-EF | 2T F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH&xT FHB T

Salaries and allowance e KERL 730 758
Retirement benefit scheme R KAE F R8I 3R

contributions 6 8

736 766

The emoluments of each of the above highest paid
individuals (excluding the directors of the Company) were
all within the following bands:

FlEsEaFMAL(TEER
AAIEF)ZMEN T T3 E
A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals and directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office, and no highest paid
individual has waived or, agreed to waive any
emoluments.

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE

RZMEFER - KK B ERA
T &= # A - &5 S B
T ERMAAREEHARE 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme

On 24 August 2012, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of a new share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), as the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 8 August 2002 expired on 14 August 2012.
The Scheme became effective on 29 August 2012 after
obtaining approval from the Listing Committee of the
Stock Exchange and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The Scheme provides incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors (including independent non-
executive directors), other employees of the Group,
suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, and any non-controlling interests in the
Company’s subsidiaries.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR (12) &

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND A

EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Share option scheme (Continued) (b)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing within 21 days from the date of the offer, upon
payment of nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
shall be determined by the directors at their absolute
discretion, but in any event shall not be more than 10
years from the date of the offer of the share options. The
directors of the Company may at their absolute discretion
impose any vesting period at the date of grant.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

From the effective date of the Scheme to 31 March 2020,

no share options have been granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed under the Scheme.

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT

NEEFMAL EEE
EMEREERF @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(12) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS AND
EMPLOYEES’ BENEFITS (Continued)

(©)

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The retirement benefits cost of the MPF Scheme charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income represents contributions payable
to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of the state-sponsored retirement benefit
scheme organised by the relevant local government
authority in the PRC. The subsidiaries are required to
contribute, based on a certain percentage of the salaries
of its employees, to the retirement benefit scheme and
have no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions.

(©)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(13) INCOME TAX (13) Fr &%
The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated SEEaMEMEEKRERT ZE
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (%) X HERIEE
represents:
2020 2019
—F-%F | == A%
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax RN EAE 18
— Hong Kong — &% = 12
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —HEPERSEH = —
— Other jurisdictions —Hi R EER = 40
— 52
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBBEEE
— Hong Kong — &% (50) —
— Other jurisdictions — EmalEER (40) @)
Income tax (credit)/expense Frisfi (Ee), S H (90) 50

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2
million of assessable profits of a qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25%, and assessable profits above HK$2 million will
continue to be taxed at 16.5%. For the years ended 31 March
2020 and 2019, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualified entity of
the group company is calculated in accordance with the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%).

BEMBFEREEGE  aEKD
% 1) FE 3R B A & 2,000,000 TT A5 3%
8.25% 1) Bt R 4 Fi » i iR 382,000,000
7 TT K FE AR R i A S 42 B 12 16.5% K9
RERR BHE_T_ZTFR_T—
NWE=ZA=Z+—BILtEE £8KE
EEBRANEBNERTEERMR
MEHMEHETE -

BREPECEMEBRETEEMSEHR
EDREGEMBBIEZBEEEH -+
MEBARZHE A25% (- F— fL4F:
25%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(13) INCOME TAX (Continued) (13) FT 8 Bt ()
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates REMAERRES ZHIEBEINIEE #
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. AEERBIIBERGE -

2020 2019
—E-EF  —_ZF—F

HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

Profit before income tax expense M FT 88 X 1 B A 85,491 63,374

Tax calculated at domestic income tax (ZEA R BB ERER BRI 2

rates applicable to profit or loss in R FTEMHRAE 2 FE

the jurisdictions concerned 14,671 9,190
Tax effect of expenses not deductble  TA[ 1 2 B 2 RG22 5,162 1,242
Tax effect of income not taxable TERMZIBMA R E (18,285) (13,652
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIER LR =B 2 MIET &

recognised = (14)
Tax effect of tax losses recognised ERRBHEEE NG TE (4,370) -
Over provision in prior years BATEBEEE (90) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised K ER T IEE B 2 BT £ 2,822 3,284
Income tax (credit)/expense a8 (Ke), Tt (90) 50
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(14) EARNINGS PER SHARES

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Earnings
Earnings for the purpose of basic
earnings per share (Profit for the year

(14 ERER

ARAEBEAREEREARE SR
DR~ TIE ¢ S

2020 2019
—B-EF — N5
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TET
B
ARFHESREXRAFNZBH (R

REGEE ABEARFEREN)

attributable to owners of the Company) 83,280 64,030
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BELTBERZTE:

Interest on convertible bonds Al fE 5 T B 9,315 7,823
Earnings for the purpose of diluted RETESREERT 2 &

earnings per share 92,595 71,853

Number of shares i gvig gz
Weighted average number of ordinary R ESREKRE R 7 T @Ak
shares for the purpose of basic hn#E S 15 £
earnings per share 2,390,000 2,390,000
Effect of potential ordinary shares: BELTBER 2
Convertible bonds AR R ES 900,000 900,000
Weighted average number of ordinary Rt E G # 5 R F 2
shares for purpose of diluted earnings & 38 [% 0 #E S 159 21
per share 3,290,000 3,290,000
(15) DIVIDENDS (15) B &
No dividend was paid or declared by the board of directors 2 —_E_EF=F=+—HIEF
during the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil), nor has any E EFelRKNKEREMIEE
dividend been proposed since the end of reporting period. (ZE—HE:8|) MERSH K

KA 2 R A AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(16) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (16) RE W%
HK$’000
FAET
COST R AR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, R-ZE—NFONA—RA - —_FT—AF=A=+—H
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —E-hAFWMA-BR-_ZE-_EF=Z/F=+—H 8,057
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZE:itiFERAEE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZE—NFMNA—H 6,620
Charge for the year REFH| 59
At31 March2019and 1 April 2019 RZT—-—AF=ZA=+—BRZ-_Z-NAFMNA—H 6,679
Charge for the year KEEY| X 59
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZZEF=A=+—H 6,738
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 31 March 2020 RZZBE-_ZF=R=+—H 1,319
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-—HF=R=+—H 1,378
The above investment properties are depreciated using the L EMELZERE G RRER
straight-line method, after taking into account their estimated & MNEE Lz HERNABRZEN
residual value, over the lease terms of the leasehold land. =)
The Group’s investment properties are located on land in the AREBZ2EREYWEMNRDE - H+ i
PRC with land use period from 1992 to 2042. FHREBE— AL FERBE TN _F

Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(16) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) (16) R & ¥ % (@)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March
2020 amounting to RMB3,400,000 (2019: RMB3,200,000) has
been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out for that
date by Roma Appraisals Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected with the Group. The valuation was arrived
at by direct comparison approach with reference to market
evidence of comparable transaction prices for similar properties
as available in the relevant market.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2020 is a level 3 recurring fair value measurement and
based on the properties highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use. The following table presents the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement of these
properties are categorised (Level 3), based on the degree to
which the inputs to the fair value is unobservable. The valuation
takes account of the condition and location of the buildings in
the valuation of the property.

Fair value hierarchy
Level 3 F=M

ATE—ZTF=FR=+—H AKBZ
®EYE RN E A/ AR E3,400,0007T

—E—NEF: /\Eﬂ%szooooom
CRENIRERNEEVERE 2 BY
EREEMESBEBEFHEER 2R
ZBETZHBEREEER - HEIL
2EHRBEMEBR B 2BUNERTE
BERZGERZMEREEREEEL
BORER -

R-ZZE=_ZTF=A=+—H ' &A5H
Z?xéf%%Z’&fFfﬁﬁz%_ S
AFEHETERYESITE2RD
FREEEERZMER) . TERZ7
BEAFETEH ARG 2 TR HR
BEBZENEZAFEFEDEZ
ARFEEEBR(BE=ZR) EHYWHEET
HERN ZEESTREFZHRR R
fLE o

2020 2019
—E-%F

—E-NF
RMB’000
ARETT

RMB’000
AR®BT

3,400 3,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-FF=A=+—HIFE

(17) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ANME - BERZE

Furniture,
Plantand fixtures and Motor
Buildings  equipment equipment vehicles Total
BER &i# BE#

ks B BRRA A it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR FET  TET TR

COST BA
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—A 144,162 39,356 7,088 4,841 195,447
Additions NE - 1,202 26 186 1,414
Disposal e - (1,212) - (235) (1,447)
Exchange realignment &5 AR (8,128) (2,316) (156) (252) (10,852)
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF=RA=+—H

1 April 2019 EZZ-NEMA—AH 136,034 37,030 6,958 4,540 184,562
Additions NE — 125 37 - 162
Disposals HeE - - - (544) (544)
Exchange realignment & 5 AR (8,577) (2,441) (165) (226) (11,409
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZTF=A=+—H 127,457 34,714 6,830 3,770 172,771
ACCUMULATED RATERAEE

DEPRECIATION AND

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-NFHA—AH 17,386 11,772 6,282 4,538 39,978
Charge for the year NEEG|L 2,812 2,931 294 200 6,237
Write-back BmE - (360) - (235) (595)
Exchange realignment AL (734) (692) (138) (234) (1,798)
At 31 March 2019 and RZFE-NE=A=+—H

1 April 2019 R=ZT-NENA—H 19,464 13,651 6,438 4,269 43,822
Charge for the year REEH|Z 2,716 2,883 133 103 5,835
Write-back & - - - (544) (644)
Exchange realignment 0E 5 & (1,046) (996) (158) 212) 2,412
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_EF=A=+—H 21,134 15,538 6,413 3,616 46,701
NET CARRYING AMOUNT REEE
At 31 March 2020 RZZEZTF=A=+—H 106,323 19,176 417 154 126,070
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NFE=RA=+—H 116,570 23,379 520 271 140,740
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(17) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of HK$821,000 (2019: HK$1,098,000)
and HK$5,014,000 (2019: HK$5,139,000) have been charged
in administrative expenses and cost of sales respectively.

The Group reported segmental profit HK$6,453,000 (2019: loss
of HK$3,633,000) for the Manufacturing segment during the
year.

As set out in note 5, management has made reference to the
independent valuation of the buildings for the estimation of the
recoverable amount. In addition, management conducted an
impairment assessment on the segment as a whole and the
recoverable amount of the segment, which is determined on the
basis of fair value calculation, is higher than the carrying value of
the segment’s non-current assets. The directors are of the
opinion that no impairment provision is required.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

A7V - BERZE @

1 & B A821,0008 T (Z T — W &F:
1,098,0007% JT) }.5,014,000/ ;L (=& —
T4 1 5,139,000/ 7T) B 5 BN 1T E A
NMEHER AT -

#) £6,453,000/%8 70 (Z & — LF : 518
3,633,0005% 7T,) ©

WM ESE EEEC2ERTZE
VfEE ABET A E S s
BEEHERDBETRENG M
DEzABESR(REAFESE
BE)RROBEZIRDEEZRE
B -EXRRBAFELRERESE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-FF=A=+—HIFE

(18) PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (18) AR HENARK
HK$’000
T
COST R
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-—NFMNA—H 14,798
Exchange realignment bE 5, 3 & (636)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-—NF=ZA=1+—H 14,162
Impact of adopting HKFRS 16 KB AUBRELERFI6R T E (14,162)
At 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —NFHNA—RARZZE-_FTF=HF=+—H —

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZRFITERREE
AND IMPAIRMENT

At 1 April 2018 RZE—-NFEA—H 4,781
Charge for the year REEY X 234
Exchange realignment B 3, 58 2 (89)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-hF=ZA=+—H 4,926
Impact of adopting HKFRS 16 RNBEEMBHRELENFI6RITE (4,926)
At1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 @ RZ-ZZE—-NFOA—ARK=ZZT-_ZTF=H=+—H —
NET CARRYING AMOUNT IR FEE
At 31 March 2020 R-_ZE_ZEF=A=+—H -
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NAF=ZA=+—H 9,236
All land in the PRC is state-owned and no individual land mERE TS ABRE R TFEEA
ownership rights exist. The Group acquires the right to use TR EE AEBKESR T LHE
certain land and the considerations paid for such right are AREINEBENZKREBAKY A
recorded as prepaid lease payments, which are amortised over TERBEEMR R H40ES0F U E
the lease terms of 40 to 50 years using the straight-line method. K o
Impairment assessment was conducted by management as WM sESAI7FT a0 BB I B 1T R
mentioned in notes 5 and 17. Management concluded that no BfE - EEEBIMERRBAED
impairment is required after the assessment. BB °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(19) RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (1) EREEE
Lease Lease
land properties Total
HELH HEYXE #at
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FHETT FET FET
Cost B 4%
At 31 March 2019 (Reported) RZZE-NAF=A=+—H
(BE2%%) — — —
Impact of adopting HKFRS 16 24 fﬂ BB IEHRE £
Fl6HE w2 14,162 — 14,162

Restated opening balance under R _-Z— AN A —H

HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 BBV R EERE 165718
T2 & EY B4 5 14,162 — 14,162
Addition NE — 5,793 5,793
Exchange realignment & & & 672) — 672)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZEF=F=+—H 13,490 5,793 19,283

Accumulated depreciation and ZiITE RFE

impairment
At 31 March 2019 (Reported) RZE—hhF=-A=+—H
(BE2%#%) — — -
Impact of adopting HKFRS 16 BN E 7 B f&fﬁﬁ el
ERlE a2 4,926 — 4,926

Restated opening balance under KR -Z— A &FEPM A —H

HKFRS 16 as at 1 April 2019 BBV IBHREERFE 169
BT 2 &L =5 B4k 4,926 — 4,926
Charge for the year KEEHZ 226 241 467
Exchange realignment ME 38 & (115) — (115)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZEF=A=+—H 5,037 241 5,278
Carrying amount BRMEE
At 31 March 2020 RZEBE-_EF=-A=+—H 8,453 5,552 14,005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(20) INTANGIBLE ASSETS

COST
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019,
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

() EBEEE

Gene invention
rights
BERBAE

A
R-E-N\F¥MA-B —T-1F
ZA=t-B —Z-NE¥WA-H

HK$'000

Goodwill
S
HK$'000
THL

Total
HK$'000

TRL TRL

R-E-TE=-fA=+-A1 95,000 1,807 96,807
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATIONAND EH#¥RHE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Apri 2018, 31 March 2019, R-Z-\FNA—B - —E-N&=

1 Apri 2019 and 31 March 2020 A=+-B —Z-AEMA-BRK

“E-EFZA=+-H 95,000 - 95,000

NET CARRYING AMOUNT FHFE
At 31 March 2020 R-BE-EE=A=1+—-H - 1,807 1,807
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF=ZA=+-H - 1,807 1,807

(21) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

(@)

Investments in convertible bonds

On 28 July 2014, the Group completed the disposal of
51% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited and received
consideration with fair value of HK$435,193,000
comprising (i) cash payment of HK$65,000,000; and (i)
convertible bonds issued by Innovative Pharmaceutical
Biotech Limited (“Innovative Pharm”) on 28 July 2014 with
principal amount of HK$715,000,000 (the “Innovative
Pharm Bonds”) and fair value of HK$370,193,000.

The Innovative Pharm Bonds bear interest at 3.5% per
annum payable in arrears annually with maturity on the
7th anniversary of the date of issue of the Innovative
Pharm Bonds (the “Maturity Date”). The Group has the
right to convert the Innovative Pharm Bonds into shares
of Innovative Pharm at any time from the date of issue to
the Maturity Date at an initial conversion price of HK$2.5
per share.

(21)%’&$1EE‘|‘A1’E§Z§EE§

(@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(21) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

CNEAFEFAEGZZEME
E (m)

(@ WAE;EREFKRE@E

(@ Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

The fair values of the Innovative Pharm Bonds
components on initial recognition and as at 31 March
2020 are determined based on the valuation conducted
by an independent qualified valuer. The methods and
assumptions applied for the valuation of the Innovative
Pharm Bonds and its components are set out as below:

At 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39 1R 1B & B & 5+ ¥ B 553955 it
—E-NF=F=1+—H
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 (Note)  #f 4k & /4 B 78 ¥ 45 #£ 8|

FoRz T E(WE)

At 1 April 2018, as restated RZE-NFENA—H"
" E 7
Interest received E W F 2
Change in fair value REEEZE
At 31 March 2019 and RZE-NF=A=+—H

E-T-hEmA—H
ATERE

1 April 2019
Change in fair value

At 31 Match 2020

Note: Investments in convertible bonds were previously split into two
components — debt component and derivative component which
were measured at amortised cost and at fair value through profit or

loss (“FVTPL”) respectively under HKAS 39.

Under HKFRS 9, investments in convertible bonds are classified in
its entirety as financial assets measured at FVTPL. The difference
between the carrying amount of these investments and its fair
value as at 1 April 2018 amounting to about HK2.8 million is
recognised in retained earnings. Subsequent changes in fair value
of these investments are recognised in profit or loss.

R-Z2-FF=A=+-H

M B B E 50 V)0 E R A R
—TEF="A=+—Hz#4&
KEBD 2 A TFEDERBILEE
REEMETZHEMEE -4
BMBEESF RHEAXI D ET
HEMER 277 ERRZEH W
I

Debt
component

Derivative
component
fTETA
)
HK$'000
R

BB
HK$'000
TET

413,487 4,296 417,783

(2,810)

414,973
(25,025)
79,789

469,737
101,328

571,065

st AR ESRE LR D
Br—EBHD &milﬂuﬁ
7 EREEE & ERFI95
7 Bl 1% S K AR R AZ A FEFE
Az ((BAFESARRDF

I

RIEE SRS ERIFE95% -
AMBREFREERESEARA
FEAABRABEZEMEE -
RZFE—NFHA—H ZEE
BErEEEREQAFEZEZEL
2,800,000 7T A 1R B & 7 & #
moﬁ%&§22$ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ
RIBZE P RER

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A MR E (')

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-FF=A=+—HIFE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@

Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

On 26 July 2019, the Company and Innovative Pharm
entered into a deed of amendments to amend the terms
and conditions of the Innovative Pharm Bonds (the “Deed
of Amendment”). Pursuant to the Deed of Amendment, (i)
the interest payment dates for the interest of 3.5%
originally due on 28 July 2019 and 2020 were extended
to 28 July 2021; and (i) the additional interest of
HK$11,261,250, representing 15% per annum on the
annual interest multiply by three, was charged for the
extension for payment of interests stated in (i) and shall be
paid on 28 July 2021. The Deed of Amendment was
effective on 28 October 2019. Details of the amendments
of the terms and conditions of Innovative Pharm Bonds
were set out in the Company’s circular dated 19
September 2019 and the Company’s announcement
dated 28 October 2019. Accordingly, no interest was
received for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019:
HK$25,025,000) from the Innovative Pharm Bonds.

At 31 March 2020, the fair value of the Innovative Pharm

Bonds as a whole is calculated using the Binomial Model.

The inputs into the model at the respective dates are as
follows:

CNEAFEFAERZEME

= (@)

(@ ATBRBREZFKRE @

#—“ AEEA=+B &

N F EL LB A BE BEAR S AT A A
ug%m%¢%%m1ﬂ&ﬁ#
GEHESDER:S ICHES R
)FZEEILBBERER=_ZE— N1
FR_Z-_ZFFLtA=-+N\BE
HOFESNAEHE_F =
—F A -+ B Kizt()HE
Fir it F) B, 32 {5 4 5B 58 S Y B FI) B
11,261,2507% 7t (B & & 1% F F| &
BHFUZD)WBER T -_—F
tAZ+NABIHFE - BT
R —_ZE—AFE+A-+/\B4.
RSB B BEE A IR R R AR 1
nyuTn$| ﬁﬁ/\\ﬂi jE/B;qZ\%:
E—hiﬂﬂ+h52@&&$

ARaBHA_ZT—NF+A=T+
NBZRER A I K U ER
EMBEEEAHE T _TF=
A=+—BLEFEZHE(ZE
— JL4E : 25,025,000 7T) °

R-Z-2E=f=+—H 4%
BEEES I EEATEN_IE
RAE R -

ZAERXRNE B HIFT A @ A BUE 1
I

Stock price (HK$) & 3 B & (& 7T)
Conversion price (HK$) ] E (B T)
Discount rate Ak 35 &

Risk free rate (Note a) R B A X (fYiEa)
Expected volatility (Note b) T8 8% 1| (B 5 b)
Expected dividend yield (Note ¢) TEHA RS B K (MY 7Ec)
Option life (Years) HAREEAMR (F BR)

0.255 0.40
25 2.50
25.555% 23.494%
0.586% 1.367%
24.341% 27.450%
0% 0%

1.3 2.3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(21) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

@)

Notes:

(@)

()

(@

Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)

The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong
government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation.

Based on the historical price volatility of Innovative Pharm for the
period from 18 July 2008, the date on which its shares were
resumed trading after suspension, up to the end of the reporting
date.

Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of
Innovative Pharm.

(b) Bank structured product

RNELATFEFAEZZEME

E @
(@)

(@)

)

©

(b)

AMRESRE (@&
B &

ZARDSZEEBRFES R E
FREERRZERXEE
EREMBENR_TTNEFLA
TANB(EENDREREER 2
BEH)EEHE AHAERIEARN
2B BRI IE S

RITEBEER

— 7 — fﬁ S =z — j—l-r E'E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Bank structured product, at fair value ~ $RiT4&BHE R E AT E
(Note) (B 5%)
1,652 1,769
Note: The amount represents short-term highly liquid investments placed i eE - BRI 5 7F S — R ¢

in a PRC state-owned financial institution, which are readily
convertible to cash. These investments are all denominated in
Renminbi with non-determinable return rate. The fair value of these
investments is based on estimated return of 3.0% (2019: 2.6%),
and the credit quality of these investments can be assessed by
reference to historical information or external credit ratings, if any.
As at 31 March 2020, none of these investments is either past due
or impaired and the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk as
at that date is the carrying value of these investments.

The fair value of these investments that are not traded in an active
market is determined by using valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(22) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME
2020 2019
—E-2F | =T AT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T T
Unlisted investment fund (note a) FLEMRERS (ita) = —
Unlisted shares (note b) JE MR (M 5Eb) - —

Unlisted investment fund and shares were measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). Under
HKFRS 9, these investments are all classified as financial assets
measured at FVTOCI. Subsequent changes in fair value of these
investments are recognised in FVTOCI Reserve and the
cumulative gains or loss on disposals are recognised in retained
earnings.

The unlisted investment fund was denominated in HK$ while
the unlisted shares were denominated at Renminbi (‘RMB”).

Notes:

(@)

On 11 May and 2 June 2017, Extrawell Enterprises Limited (the “Subscriber”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
subscription agreements with KKC Capital SPC, a segregated portfolio
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (the “Fund”), and pursuant
to which the Subscriber agreed to subscribe for 30,000 and 50,000
participating shares in the Fund attributable to the segregated portfolio at
aggregate consideration of HK$30,000,000 and HK$50,000,000
respectively on the respective dates (the “Investments”) . The total cost of
the Investments of HK$80,000,000 was funded by the internal resources
of the Group.

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group had
recognised the fair value changes in other comprehensive income in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. However, since there was
a significant decline in the fair value of the Investments noted at 31 March
2019, a fair value loss of HK$59,047,000 was recognised in the other
comprehensive income for the year in accordance with the Group’s policy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(22) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

)

On 13 January 2012, Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (“JECP”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company subscribed for
RMB2,500,000 of the registered capital of ZEAR(-/8)FE R & 1E RIS AR
AF] (“Shanghai Longmark”) by way of capital injection. Shanghai
Longmark is a company incorporated in the PRC and engaged in provision
of health care management services. The subscription was completed in
April 2012, and the enlarged registered capital of RMB12,500,000 of
Shanghai Longmark was owned as to 20% by JECP and 80% by United
Gene HealthCare Limited, Shanghai (“Shanghai United Gene”), which
subsequently transferred its 80% interest in Shanghai Longmark to 5 3ER
(BB EEIRRIE AR A A (“SREEMK”) in December 2012. Both Shanghai
United Gene and E#EAR are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Innovative Pharm. Shanghai Longmark was accounted for as an associate
of the Group upon the completion of subscription.

On 25 April 2013, JECP entered into a capital injection and subscription
agreement with ZREEAK and Xie Yi, a shareholder and director of the
Company, in which Xie Yi agreed to subscribe for RMB7,490,000 (the
“Subscription”) of the registered capital of Shanghai Longmark. The
Subscription was completed in August 2013, and the registered capital of
Shanghai Longmark increased from RMB12,500,000 to RMB19,990,000.
Accordingly, the Group’s equity interest of Shanghai Longmark was
diluted from 20% to 12.51%, and the respective shareholdings of EEER
and Xie Yi in Shanghai Longmark was 50.02% and 37.47% respectively.
As a result of dilution, the Group considered it was no longer in a position
to exercise significant influence over Shanghai Longmark and Shanghai
Longmark ceased to be an associate of the Group. Shanghai Longmark is
accounted for as unlisted investments as the Group has the intention to
hold the investment for a continuing strategic and long-term purpose and
is measured at fair value . The investment cost was reduced to zero in
prior years by share of loss of Shanghai Longmark.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

For the year ended 31

(23) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

March 2020 &2 —Z-_FF=A=+—HILtFE

)R —BEBE QT 2 ER

2020 2019
—E-EF ZEZ—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Cost of investment in an unlisted R—HEELMHERT ZEEK
associate (Note) A (KTFE) 337,000 337,000
Share of post-acquisition losses and JERNEREEAHEMEER X
other comprehensive expense (10,103) (6,938)
326,897 330,062

Note: The amount represents the fair value as at 28 July 2014 of the 49% equity
interest in Smart Ascent Limited as retained by the Group upon completion
of the disposal of 51% equity interest in Smart Ascent Limited on 28 July
2014.

The Group’s associate, Smart Ascent Limited (“Smart Ascent”)
is a private company with no quoted market price available for
its shares. The major asset held by Smart Ascent and its
subsidiaries (the “Smart Ascent Group”) is the intangible asset
in relation to an in-process research and development project
(“In-process R&D”) involving an oral insulin product (“Product”).
As at 31 March 2020, the Group has engaged an independent
qualified valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited to conduct a valuation
of the fair value of the interest in the associate for impairment
assessment.

The asset-based approach was adopted in the valuation of the
fair value of the Group’s interest in the associate. In doing so,
various assumptions about the cash flow projections of the In-
process R&D and the Product were adopted. These
assumptions include the successful completion of the clinical
trials, obtaining of the regulatory approvals from the relevant
government bodies (in particular, the granting of the certificate
of new medicine and pharmaceutical manufacturing permit for
the Product by China Food and Drug Administration, now
known as National Medical Products Administration of the
PRC), and launching of the Product by the fourth quarter of
2022. The recoverable amount of the interest in the associate is
determined based on the Group’s share of the estimated fair
value of the In-process R&D after taking into account the lack of
control discount.

M- teB|ER_ZT-—NOFLA=-+/N\H
HEEEFTRATN%KIETKRE &
SEARBELERRDA49%BER =
Z-NELA-FNBZRTFE-

AEBZBERARELBERAA(THE
EDAR—BLERA  HRMDALED
LHRE-EERENBAR(ELESE
BB ZIERERABENTT
ZHBEHEB(ETHZHAED ZER
BE BRSPS ROBRBRERERE
ml) R—_F_FF=A=+—8H"
AEECZE-—2BUAERMGERM
RSERFBERIAMRNEE QA
ZHEEBZANFEETHE AFGER
BIRIE °

RAEERBERA 2R 2 AF
BETHEREMEE L - EILBRE
FRAETHZMERERZRS
mEBAEEZZERBRK ZERE
BRR-ZEZ_FEFNZERKIE
RERAR REEHERFEE DM
1%@%&%$lﬁﬁ“ﬁ%§%ﬁ
RERABEREZREEETER) ME
m&ﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁimiﬁﬁTm)
REHER REERARZERZA
Uz [a] < B8 T A4S 5 e 37 8 458 HI 4 2 T 8
BIRBAEBEEGETT 2HE G
AAFEEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(23) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) (23) N — BBt E N 7 2 = ()

Particulars of the Smart Ascent Group at the end of the HEAEEERBREARZEFBSHOT :
reporting period are as follows:

Effective
Place of interest held by
incorporation/ Class of the Group/ Measurement
Name of associate operations shares held Smart Ascent Principal activities method
ML FERE  AEE EER
BEARER EEE B 5l FERERZ TEXK FEFR
Smart Ascent Hong Kong Ordinary 49%  Investment holding Equity
g EE L@ REEK P
Subsidiaries of Smart
Ascent
EECHELE
Fosse Bio-Engineering Hong Kong/ Ordinary 51% Development and Equity
Development Limited China commercialisation of
oral insulin products
BHEEMIRERRAA EE/HE i RERERICORE RiE
BEEm
BHEYMIR(EH) China Registered 51% Inactive Equity
BRAA capital
i HEEAR =R i
Welly Surplus Development Hong Kong Ordinary 51% Inactive Equity
Limited
WBRERARAA e Tim =R i
Nation Joy Industries Limited  British Virgin Ordinary 100% Inactive Equity
Islands (“BVI”)
BEHEXFRAA RERAHEE LA TEEB P
(B3 1s
#51)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(23) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) (23) A — P9 B & A\ T 2 B % ()
The summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted BMENT 2HBENBE(D B EM
for any differences in accounting policies and a reconciliation to A BRREEFHAR) RRGEEY
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements, BmMANERBDEZSRWOT :

are as follows:

2020 2019
—E_EH —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
Non-current assets ERBEE 284,260 298,967
Current assets mEEE 7,938 4
Current liabilities mEaE (39,849) (74,4606)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE (31,394) (9,116)
Non-controlling interests E & (123,853) (117,115)
Non-current assets include ERHEERFEATER :
the following:
Intangible assets — In-process R&D ML & & — #E1TH 2 3 284,260 284,260
2020 2019
—E_EF —T—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F& T
Revenue & = -
Loss and total comprehensive expense 18 [ 2 HE B L 4258 (13,130) (3,598)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(23) INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Ccontinued) (23) R—EBE AR 2R @
2020 2019
—E-EF | DT AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FH& T
Net assets of the Smart Ascent Group  #E 4 B A JE(L i BE
attributable to owners of Smart FE
Ascent 97,102 103,561
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ~ ANEE R4 7 T ARSI
interest in Smart Ascent 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest AN & B R 4 (1E & — B2 R
in Smart Ascent as an associate T) ZHEZZEREA 47,580 50,745
Adjustment for remeasurement to fair 4 EEEE N FERYBER
value of the assets of the Smart N EMFERAE
Ascent Group on initial recognition 279,317 279,317
326,897 330,062
(24) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/ (24) @ W—EBE DA™ IE/E
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE HF—EBE DT
2019
—E-EF | 2T AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT TH T
Amount due from an associate & Y — B Bt 2 A Rl FRIE
Smart Ascent (Note a) # A (M sta) 38,377 29,388
Loan to an associate ERTFT—HEBE R A
Smart Ascent (Note b) £ (D) 15,383 5,027

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(24) AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE/
LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2020, amount due from an associate is unsecured and
interest-free. Principal amount of HK$41,941,000 (2019: HK$41,941,000)
is expected to be repaid after 6 years from 28 July 2014. Such amount
due from an associate is recognised at its fair value of HK$8,455,000
upon the disposal of Smart Ascent at a discount rate of 26.99%. During
the reporting period, imputed interest income of HK$8,989,000 (2019:
HK$6,883,000) is credited to profit or loss.

On 27 July 2018, the Company and Innovative Pharm through their
respective wholly-owned subsidiaries as lenders and Smart Ascent as
borrower entered into a shareholders’ loan agreement for a loan to Smart
Ascent amounting to HK$30 million in total (the “Loan”), to be contributed
as to 49% i.e. HK$14.7 million by the Group and as to 51% i.e. HK$15.3
million by the wholly-owned subsidiary of Innovative Pharm, which would
be used to finance the working capital requirements of Smart Ascent
Group for the oral insulin project. The Loan is unsecured, interest bearing
at 5% per annum and has a repayment term fixed at 60 months after each
drawdown of the Loan.

As at 31 March 2020, Smart Ascent had drawn down HK$30 million (2019:
HK$10 million) of the Loan, and the balance as at 31 March 2020
represented the Group’s 49% (2019: 49%) contribution to the Loan and
the interest receivables.

As the provision of the Loan was made in proportion to the equity interest
of the shareholders in Smart Ascent and on normal commercial terms, this
connected transaction is fully exempted from the reporting, announcement
and shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.89 of the Listing
Rules. Also, the applicable percentage ratios in respect of this connected
transaction are less than 5%, it therefore does not constitute a
discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules.

As at 31 March 2020, loan to an associate is unsecured, carried interest
at 5% per annum, and repayable in 60 months after each drawdown.
During the reporting period, interest income of HK$556,000 (2019:
HK$127,000) is credited to profit or loss.

(24) FE W —
RT—EEgE

EEeE AT RIE &
YNCIEE: )

B 5E :

(@)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

R-_ZTE_ZTF=A=+—8" Elk—
MEEARARBEAEERHEREE - K
£ 41,941,000 T(ZF — N F:
41,941,000 7o) IR =T — W F
tAZ+tNBRBIANFREERE -BRAE
I — B R R Z AR L & AR
BEA 1@8455000/%75&@% =
£26.99% - RIE A - HEF EWA
8,989,000/ 7t (= & — /1 : 6,883,000
HBIT) Bt AlBE o

R=ZZF—NFtA=++tH ' AAH

<E 1 B zﬁ’ﬁ‘ﬂﬂiikazzé‘m%ﬁ
AIERER L) REE(EREBRA)ET
N EER DS MEERESRE
%sooooooo,%nzg X ([ZE &) -
7N £ B R £ 49% 3% H (Bl 14,700,000
BT)RBEEMBENE2ENE A RR
#£51% 3% 38 (B115,300,0007% 7T ) *© A &
ELEEERORBEEEZBECEESR
SHERIEHBE - ZERABEERT IR
FHE%:TERBERTRIERZE R
%60ME A REE -

R-ZTE-_ZTF=A=+—HB #HLER
B 3% & X 730,000,000 T (=& — 1
4 : 10,000,000 7T) 2 HKE MR =T
—TEFE-ZR=+ B z&EKEAEE
PAZERTIRME 249% (=T — L4 :
49%) & K U A 8. o

HRZEREZRERELRMEE 2
7 bb I 3R AR N0 R — MR P EE R SRET AL 0 W
HWEBHERGEL2HEACET EMR
BIE14A891KTA T R 3R ~ A F RARE#HE
HEZERE B BREBEHEEER
SZEBAEDLRERSS  WAEK
EHRANEAEB TN ZARAATE
BRSe

RZE-_ZEF=A=+—H BExXF—
MEE AR RAEER  RFEHE5%:T
B WAERSXIRIEGOEANEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(25) INVENTORIES (25) 7 &
2020 2019
—E-EF | DT AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FAT
Raw material B H ¥ 2,033 2,685
Work-in-progress ERH 1,056 1,211
Finished goods RIAY o 2,776 1,928
5,865 5,824
(26) TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (260 EZEWERREWRREE
2020 2019
—E-EH | 2T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Bills receivables TE UG Z= i 827 1,490
Trade receivables Z KRR 53,063 58,722
Less: Provision for impairment loss B S EWERFURE BB EE
on trade receivables (43,406) (40,165)
10,484 20,047
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly based AREBHEHEHEEZBSGRETEAR
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in H TR, REEEL N —
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally BRT BEEAESAH1208H &
ranging from 120 to 180 days, extending up to one year for 180B 2 EEH MmMETEERP AL
some major customers. HERLZ—F-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(26) TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of
provision of impairment loss on trade receivables), based on
invoice dates are as follows:

(6 ESEWRERREKVERE @

EoRWERNLERZE(HIKRE S
FEWEZREBEREG ERNBEZR
HIZBRER DT :

2020 2019
—2-%F | == A%

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER THET

Within 90 days 90 H A 3,707 10,932
91 to 180 days 91Z=180H 4,238 5,170
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 2,539 3,945
10,484 20,047

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables which are past
due but not impaired are as follows:

BEEBERRBEZE S EKRERRE
WERERZREDTWT

2020 2019

—F-%F | =T

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired KE I AR E 7,945 16,102
Past due but not impaired — E@ A ERBE—180R A

within 180 days 2,539 3,945

10,484 20,047

Trade receivables are assessed for impairment on individual
basis as well as a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 120 to 180 days, observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
creditworthy debtors with good payment records with the
Group.

B RWRRFIZER R EEEEET
WEG BRI EBBEEGZREREAE
BEUBPEASE 2 BERKLE
HERNTEERZBAFHEER
120F 180 B 2 IR 38 10+ LA K B jE U
RIEBEA R 2 B & E MR
B 78 2 & o

KBRS B 5 R 3 T
BrBUER REAEEERINK
58 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &Z —Z-—ZEF=HA=+—HIFE

(26) TRADE AND BILL RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,539,000 (2019:
HK$3,945,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

The movements in provision for impairment on trade receivables
are as follows:

(260 EZEWERREREE @

AEBZEZRUEREHTERE
A /\7,%2539000/%71:(_ —NF:
3,945,000/ 7T) 2 FEW BR R ¥ & A
HAE i B - M A £ B s R BE UL VR R
EEERE-

B RMRFBREREZSHINT

2020 2019
—EBE-FF | DT AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FAT
At 1 April WA —H 40,165 42,305
Increase in loss allowance upon the RZE—NFOA—HBEZS
transition to HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018 BB 15 & R 950 1% 2 B 18
AN = 94
Provision for impairment on trade B 5 e W R BB B B R 5B
receivables, net 5,921 255
Exchange realignment M & 3 & (2,680) (2,489)
At 31 March R=RA=+—8H 43,406 40,165

(27) DEPOSIT, PREPAYMENT AND OTHER

Nz FEARERAEMEER

RECEIVABLES g
2020 2019
ZEZEF | 2= AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Deposits B 902 793
Other receivables H fth pE W 3B 495 6,186
Prepayments XN 775 636
Trade deposit B o5 e 2,615 3,491
4,787 11,106
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(28) PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank to
secure short-term banking facilities granted to the Group and
are therefore classified as current assets. The pledged bank
deposits carry variable interest rates ranging from 1.45% to 2.5%
(2019: 1.3% to 2.7%) per annum.

(29) CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Bank balances carry variable interest rates of 0.001% to 2.6%
(2019: 0.001% to 3.25%) per annum. Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are
denominated in the following currencies:

(28) EE HFRTEFK

EHERITERERB TRTUE
EAEEERZEBHETREEE
ZERZER BMOBARDEE -
ERFRTERIRZIHINENTEF
145%E25%( = F — L F :1.83% =
2.7%)FT B °

(29) R & R R 1T & B8R

BITHERIRFHANEEF0001%E
2.6%( =& — 1L F : 0.001% = 3.25%)
B ARERBAINE BT
2 GNEE B IR R ) LA % 45 BE - & BE K A
EERRE -

BehkReEEEB ZEEATIZNA
TE%HE:

2020 2019

—E-Ef —_ZT—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THT FHBT

Euros (“Euro”) Bt ([BoT)) 3,780 3,870
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) B (&) 50,922 74,021
RMB AR 11,885 9,238
United States dollars (“US$”) En((ExD 59,850 61,773
126,437 148,902
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(30) TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and the normal trade
credit terms granted to the Group range from two to three
months from the date of invoice.

The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on
invoice dates are as follows:

BOEZEMNRRREMNRE

BORNERXR/TEE MAKEE
Rz REFEEHNTFEZAHRE
FARME=@A -

REZZAHZE BN RRREN
SRZEREDTMT

2020 2019

—E-EF | DT AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FAT

Within 90 days 90H K 3,255 3,202
91 to 180 days 91E180H 981 4,186
181 to 365 days 181 365H 3 44
1to 2 years 15E26F 1,517 176
Over 2 years 2F LAk 483 517
6,239 8,125

(31) ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND BN)FEREHR HMEMSHRER
CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEEBE
2019
=l
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHE T T
Accruals (note a) FEIRE A (Mita) 13,117 19,650
Other payables (note b) H At JE 5 508 (Y 5Eb) 19,134 34,986
Contract liabilities (note c) X aE M Ee) 3,801 1,565
36,052 56,201
Notes: M = -
(@ Mainly included marketing and promotion expenses of about @ EERELHE&EEEALI915000

HK$9,915,000 (2019: HK$16,341,000).

BT (ZZ— L% 16,341,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(31) ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Mainly included payables for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
of about HK$5,638,000 (2019: HK$13,924,000), payables for marketing
and promotion expenses of about HK$4,480,000 (2019: HK$8,064,000)
and other tax payables of about HK$4,473,000 (2019: HK$4,286,000).

(c) As at 1 April 2018, contract liabilities amounted to HK$2,856,000.

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedule
as established in contracts. Contract liabilities represents payments that
are usually received in advance under the contracts which are mainly from
sales of pharmaceutical products.

The following table shows the amount of the revenue
recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020 relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

A -HtEASRER

BeE - (A)

) FZEZBRUEDE BEREZHHE
5 3K T8 495,638,000/ T (= F — N4 ¢
13,924,000/ 7t )« B & 5 & # E
& F 494,480,000/ T (=& — )L F -
8,064,000/ 7t ) & H fib fE 1 T 3K 49
4,473,000 7T (= Z — L. 4F : 4,286,000
BT °

© RZTE-—NFHEA—H AHEEAE
2,856,000 7T °

AEBIRIE S 4 PR REE B 4 H B B UL
BREFNR AHNEEEANEATEE
RATKERMATE T ERAHESER -

TRIITNEE_E-_EF=A=+—
BIrFERRALELBELSNEGEER
B Uk 25 & 58 o

2020 2019
—g-%5 | =% h%&

HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TAET

Revenue recognised that was included in AW A — B A& DB E &

the contract liabilities balance at 1 April 2 B R
— Sales of pharmaceutical products —HE R

965 2,455
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(32) LEASE LIABILITIES B)HEEAE

2020
—E-EF
Present
value of
Minimum minimum

lease lease
payments payments
BEEE BREHEE
N NRBAE

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&ExT FHET
Not later than one year TER—F 1,904 1,692
Later than one year and BR—FRTNERME
not later than two years 1,904 1,846
Later than two years and BRAWMERTNERRAF
not later than five years 2,174 2,048
5,982 5,586
Future financial charges KRR 2 (396)
Present value of lease liability HEBERE 5,586

Amount due for settlement within one year W — 4 N 2| Ei 4 & > 18

(shown under current liabilities) (RrBaEET27%)) 1,692
Amount due for settlement after one year M —F & F|HI4&EE ~ F18 3,894
The Group leases office premises for operation and these lease NEBHRER NG ETESE  ZE
liabilities were measured at the present value of the lease HEEGBHREASNNEENZIRE
payment that are not yet paid. All leases are entered at fixed HE AR NIZEE BRI

prices.
Lease obligations of the Company are denominated in Hong KARBEEEETAB LA
Kong dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-FF=A=+—HIFE

(33) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Details of the deferred tax assets recognised and movements
during the current and prior years are as follows:

(BI)EEHREEE

AEERBETEREZEEHEE
EREDHEDT :

Decelerated/
(accelerated) tax
depreciation

W (hnEE)
BERE
HK$’000
T
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, RZE—NFOA—H ZF—hF
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 =A=+—B ZZE—AFWA—HEK
—E-TF=A=+—H 69
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had unused tax losses arising RZE_EF=ZA=+—"H K&

in Hong Kong and the PRC of approximately HK$6,223,000 (2019
HK$6,223,000) and HK$12,717,000 (2019: HK$16,619,000)
respectively available to offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams, except for that of one
subsidiary in Hong Kong of which management considered its
deferred tax assets would be crystalised in the foreseeable
future. Tax losses arising in Hong Kong may be carried forward
indefinitely. Tax losses arising in the PRC will expire in 5 years
from the year of origination since 2015.

(34) CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 16 July 2013, the Company issued zero-coupon convertible
bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) with principal amount in
aggregate of HK$641,300,000 at the conversion price of
HK$0.6413 for each new share of the Company, which, if fully
converted, is equivalent to 1,000,000,000 new shares of the
Company to Mr. Ong Cheng Heang (“Mr. Ong”) and Mr. Mao
Yumin (“Mr. Mao”), each of principal amount of
HK$320,650,000. Mr. Ong was the non-controlling shareholder
and director of Smart Ascent prior to the completion of
acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Smart Ascent by
the Group and Mr. Mao was a director of the Company until 5
December 2013, and is a shareholder of the Company in the
current year and the prior years.

EREBREPREE”DST A KR
REZH a2 ABARBEED
Bl & #76,223,0007 (= ZF — hL&F -
6,223,000 JT ) X 12,717,000 T (=
T — L : 16,619,000 7T) - AR K
FoamFm A TEA - BB ERERER
BEEREZ —HEHBARRAER
ZARAGELABECERBEEEN I
ERAELERBEEE - REAEEZ
m%%ﬁﬁﬁm% . g -—T—F
Fi RNPRELEZHRBERBEAE
EZFRESFEREIE -

CE-3 38

J‘EA:%—:EJCH +758  RQRE
1778 % #2%8641,300,00058 7T 2 B & 7]
@kﬁ%UT&hﬁ%D REEAR
FRAREFRM0.64138 T+ NE
A 1% §8 & 1 1,000,000,000 f% 78 A
RFRMD ATRBRES IO AIETT
Ong Cheng Heang 7t 4 ([Ong %t £ 1) &
EHREREETEERED  EADBE
% 17 7K & %E320,650,00058 JT ° R A &
& 52 Bk Uk B 3 A 2 T #4249% HE 55 A
OngLERBEALEZHEERBERLE
E MELESETARRESTES
—T—="F+-AFBALIRK

FERBEFEEEARRATRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(34) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The Convertible Bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into ordinary shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary share on or before
the seventh business day prior to the maturity date of 16 July
20838, subject to anti-dilutive clauses.

The Convertible Bonds are issued in HK$. The fair value of the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds was
HK$20,712,000, which has been determined by the discounted
cashflow approach using the prevailing market interest rate of
similar non-convertible bonds and taking into account the credit
risk of the Company. The effective interest rate is 18.72%. The
fair value of the conversion option of HK$569,288,000 classified
as equity component for the Convertible Bonds was calculated
using the Binomial Model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

(34) TR IR B F ()

EFHAANEERIBRA_T==
FLtAtT R NBRELEERBHZH
RI(E Tk E B K0.64138 T i Al
BRESFIBRARRZEREK  H
AR REEHRRAR -

AR E ST A B LI T - AT RIR(E
A FEH 2 A FEAE20,712,0007%8
T HDNDEABUETRKRES 2B
TMENEILERERRIZEER
BMUNBEBRB S RELE T  BEEREAX
B1872% - DA MRESEH D
» 2R HE 2~ F {E569,288,0007% 7T
DERAZEABRKGE - 2B 26
ABFENT -

Date of
issuance
16 July 2013
ZTHH
—E—=
tA+5<H
Stock price (HK$) IR 1E (& 7T) 0.59
Exercise price (HK$) TEE BT 0.6413
Discount rate B BR & 18.72%
Risk free rate (Note a) 2 3 5 I & (K sta) 2.63%
Expected volatility (Note b) T8 B 1w (B 52 b) 66.55%
Expected dividend yield (Note c) 78 B RR B ek R (M Ec) 0%
Option life (Years) HA 4 HABR (4 HR) 20
Notes: M aE :
(@) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong @) ZNEDREFEAEBRFTES LEHFR

government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation.

(b) Based on the historical price volatility of the Company for the period from
24 December 2009 up to the date of issuance of the Convertible Bonds.

(c) Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of the Company.

HERMZEERERE -

) HRARRARZ-ZZTEZENF+=—_A=F
MEBEATMRESFZTHHAR 2B
FEREESE -

© B2EARXBEBERSIKMMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(34) CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (34) T 2 IR & % (m)

Movements of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds
are set out below:

MR EFEES > 2EHHI W
T

Principal
amount
(note)

&

Carrying
amount

(Bt &)
HK$'000
TAET

AR &
HK$'000
TAET

At 1 April 2018 RZE—NFMH—H 577,170 41,812
Interest charge B ZH — 7,823
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZE—hh&F=ZA=+—H8K

—E-NFWA—H 577,170 49,635
Interest charge FIE X H — 9,315
At 31 March 2020 R-_E-_FEE=A=+—H 577,170 58,950

Note: At the date of issuance, the principal amount of the Convertible Bonds M -RBETBH TEREFZASES
was HK$641,300,000, and thereafter the following events have taken 641,300,000 7T - 1M H 1% & & T 5 =
place: 18 -

On 5 August 2013, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of RZE—=FN\NARB X&HEAH
HK$64,130,000 was converted into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of the 64,130,000/8 JT 2 Al A X (& 5 & ¥ A
Company at the conversion price of HK$0.6413 per ordinary share. 100,000,000f% A8 A 7] E @%@ B E A
BREER0.6413 T
On 25 October 2013, 24 April 2014, 30 August 2014, 31 December 2014 R-ZE—=%F+H=-+HB —ZE—MOF
and 30 April 2015, the Convertible Bonds with principal amount of MA=-+mME - —E—mWENA=+H "
HK$320,650,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,130,000, HK$64,130,000 and —Z—NF+_A=+—HR=F—H
HK$64,130,000 were acquired by Innovative Pharm from Mr. Mao FEMA=+08  &K4 55 R 5320650000
ively. o o — e —
respectively 7 7T - 64,130,000 7T - 64,130,000 7T *
64,130,000 7T, & 64,130,000 7T 2 A] 2 i%
BFEHREMBERELEREE -
On 8 October 2019, Innovative Pharm disposed of the Convertible Bonds MR-ZZE—NE+ANB  EMmEEERFE
to Mr. Mao. SE RS BRKRES -
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z=—ZF&#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(35) DEFERRED INCOME ON GOVERNMENT
GRANT

(35) BX F¥ # Bh iz I #E L A

The amount represented receipt of grants by a subsidiary from
local government authority in the PRC. The movements in
deferred income on government grants are as follows:

ARREE-HMBAR B TEEM
B AT BRI ER 2 46 B o BT # BY 2 R
TEWAZB T -

2020 2019

i -

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

At 1 April R A—H 5,267 4,220

Receipt of grants 2 W4 8 = 1,553

Recognised in profit or loss (note) REmER ) (121) (257)

Exchange realignment IE 5 38 (343) (249)

At 31 March R=A=+—8H 4,803 5,267
Analysed as: DA

Current liabilities Uk IN=NE 117 125

Non-current liabilities ERHAaE 4,686 5,142

4,803 5,267

Note: Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included Mz : BEWE - MELSZEZBFEEA

in non-current liabilities as deferred income on government grants and are
credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of

the related assets.

FE R B B 1A 5 1F BUF # B 2 3 E IR A
YREBEEZBHFRANRERE
A BEREMEERER -

(36) SHARE CAPITAL (36) A FiN
2020 2019
—E-EF ZEZ—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T& T
Authorised: JETE -
20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 20,000,000,000 f% & i%
HK$0.01 each HECOI BTz LBR 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEZETLRHE -
2,390,000,000 ordinary shares of 2,390,000,000 i & &
HK$0.01 each HEOI B Tz LBk 23,900 23,900

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Non-current assets

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(37) HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

ERBEE

(B7) =R 2 A M AR R &R

2020
—E-%F

HK$’000
FRET

Notes

B &

Interests in subsidiaries — unlisted AM B AT 2z —3E L™ 42 629,927 629,927
Amounts due from subsidiaries NGRS 300,419 296,872
930,346 926,799
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other 324 ~ T8 {°t TUIE M £ th & U
receivables EQE 427 222
Cash and bank balances RERBITEES 73,197 85,279
73,624 85,501
Total assets WEE 1,003,970 1,012,300
Current liabilities REas
Accruals and other payables TEIR B R R H A E T RIE 753 826
Amounts due to subsidiaries XD NG R/ 84,094 86,412
84,847 87,238
Non-current liabilities kRBAEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 34 58,950 49,635
Total liabilities e F 143,797 136,873
Equity Em
Share capital A% X 36 23,900 23,900
Reserves 1 38 836,273 851,527
860,173 875,427
Total liabilities and equity BEBRER 1,003,970 1,012,300

On behalf of the Board RREES

Xie Yi Wong Sau Kuen
EIE EFHBE
Director Director
e s
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —=ZE_ZTFF#§{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(38) RESERVES

The Group

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are as set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in these
consolidated financial statements. The natures and purposes of
reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

The share premium account represents the amount
subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, all
of the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer part of their profit after tax to the
capital reserve. Subject to certain restrictions set out in
the relevant PRC regulations and the articles of
association of these PRC subsidiaries, the capital reserve
may be used to offset losses or for capitalisation as paid-
up capital.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation in 1999, over the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Foreign currency translation reserve represents gains/
losses arising on retranslating the net assets/liabilities of
foreign operations into presentation currency.

Convertible bonds equity reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

FVTOCI reserve represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investment designated at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period.

(38) & &

rEE

ARBRBEZEDHERIIRZEE
ANBRRZGAMBEDRA B
BRI RE ST

@ BhaERERBRASEBD
M B 2 FRIE o

b)) RETEABEG AREET
ﬁﬁEEAEPH%EH}ZWJ%’ A8 1%
H BB BRBL1& 05 B 98 B = B AN
B BB AIFEEEEX
REERCASBREAN  HEAX
hEBREDIFTENE TR B &%
EhEMBARAEKERMAAZ
IR o

© AEBZBABRAREBEASKHE
R—ANANFEETEEMEREN
BABRA 2 HEREBARRIE
REMBEZCBITRAREZE
B o

(O EXFEEEEBIEBZEES
BEFEENRELSZIEEM
EEZWHEE-

€ FAIMBESFREDSFEBERERS
Eﬂ%#&%ﬂﬁ?4m?ﬁ—ﬁﬁﬂxﬁ%‘<
PR Bt RER AR
BOTABRRESEDED ﬁfr?%n
B2 3RIA °

H BAFEFAEMEZEREFHE
EERRBERREARERE
BB RESENEIRBEERER
$1E§+Aﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ&ﬁé2ﬁ%$&

RFEZRAZHFENRF
@Eﬁﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B B R ER R Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(38) RESERVES (Continued)

The Company

premium

% 7 % B

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\FMA—H 191,738
Loss for the year KEEERE -

(38) fit 15 (&)
PN/

Convertible
Share Contributed bonds equity Retained
surplus reserve earnings Total

RRES
BB EiE RERR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET THET TAT THT

64,636 512,359 96,635 865,368
- —  (13,841) (13,841)

At31March2019and W-ZE—NF=ZA=+—H

1 April 2019 k=—FT—NFMA—H 191,738 64,636 512,359 82,794 851,527
Loss for the year KEEER — — —  (15,254)  (15,254)
At 31 March 2020 RZEZZF
=A=+—H 191,738 64,636 512,359 67,540 836,273
(39) OPERATING LEASES — LESSEE (39) R FHE — AFMA

The Group had operating lease commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

Not later than one year TER—F

AEER T HEKLLHEHERTIRK
REAEMNKREAREHEAE &
FWBERWT

2019
—F-NF

HK$'000
TAET

1,601

As 31 March 2019, the Group’s operating lease commitment
represents rental of its office with initial period of three years.
Rentals are fixed over the lease terms and none of the leases
included contingent rentals.

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases. Details can be referred to note 2(a).

R-_E-NF=A=+t—H A&H
CREHMEAZEREERAERS
RNHARR=F HERBEHHAE
o AiEHeemAAEE -

BE-Z-NFOA—HAR AEEE
HZEHE(EHREEEHRERIN
BRECRAEEE - EAFBEUI2HM
#E2(@) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(40) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (40) BB 5 X 5
(@) Save as the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (@) BiEa s mEH Mo Tt
in the consolidated financial statements, the Group has ZRGREGRI  REBBRF
entered into the following transaction with related parties NEIM A TNEB AR5
during the year:
2020 2019
—_ 7 —= ﬂi —_F —j‘Lf‘E
HK$’000 HK$000
T#&E T FA& T
(i) Consultancy fee expense paid to () ENERRIELZ((EE
Dr. Mao Yumin (“Dr. Mao”), T (RRFREE)
a shareholder of the Company (Note) Ak Ffﬂ S (M5 357 —
(iiy Loan interest income receivable from (i) j& W & 7% F — R B &
loan to an associate NS Z E KA B A 556 127
Note: Since 8 October 2019, Dr. Mao has been interested in the entire iz B=ZE—hAhFE+ANB#  £E
convertible bonds of the Company. Dr. Mao is a related person of TRAAT 2SI AR EAE T
the Company. EEZ - EELARARAZ @Y
AL e
(o) Compensation of key management b) ETEEIEE RN
The remuneration of directors and other members of key AREEEERHEMTEEEE A
management for the year are set out in notes 11 and 12. B ERKF11 X120
(41) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES @) RAREE
As at 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant N—_E-_EF="F=+—H K&EH
contingent liabilities (2019: Nil). WEEFMEAKIRABE(ZZT—NF:
f®) o

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z=—FE-FF=A=+—HIFE

(42) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

(42) R M B 2 5] 2 #E ==

Place of
incorporation/
registration/ Registered/issued and Effective interest held
operation fully paid share capital by the Company Principal activities
EMEL T M/ ERTR
mEzhE HERK RARFBERER TEER
2020 2019
22 _ThF
Directly held
EERF
Extrawell (BV) Limited BvVI US$10,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
RERAES 10,0003 T & i@ % REER
Jilin Extrawell Changbaishan China RMB33,000,000 100% 100% Development, manufacture
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“JECP”) registered capital and sales of pharmaceutical
(note a) products
EMBERALEEXERAR  HHF AR #33,000,0007T HE HEREEER
(TEMmEE]) (Mita) FHER
Indirectly held
BERE
Extrawell Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$20 ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding and
2078 T & mk property investment
BECEERAT e HK$1,000,000 REZBRREMERE
non-voting deferred shares
1,000,000 7T
ERFRETRN
Extrawell Pharmaceutical (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100% 100% Provision of agency services
BEEX(FE)ERAA 0 2B ER RE|RERE
South Asia Pharmaceutical (China) ~ Malaysia US$1 ordinary share 100% 100% Marketing and distribution of
Limited pharmaceutical products
BRAE 1ETEBR EERDHESR
Changchun Extrawell Pharmaceutical  China RMB50,000,000 73% 73% Development, manufacture
Co., Ltd. (“CEP”) (note b) registered capital and sales of pharmaceutical
products
REREBEZRNARAF e AR #50,000,0007C HE HEREEER
(TRERE] (M iTo) &R
Best-Bio Developments Limited BVI/China US$1 ordinary share 100% 100% Investment holding
KERLES/ 1ETEER REER
e
Right & Rise Limited BVI/China US$50,000 ordinary share 100% 100% Holding of gene invention
rights and investment
holding
SREERHS/ 50,000% 0 % & REERBPERREER
e
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z=—ZF&#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(42) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (42) R M B 2~ 7] 2 #E =& ()
Notes: B 3
(@) JECP is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC with an (@) ETEMBETIRPREKLZIINEEHE D

operating period of 15 years commencing from 22 April 1999. JECP has
renewed its operating period up to 22 April 2024.

(b) CEP is a joint stock limited company established in the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect
the financial results of the year or form a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year or any time during the year.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Place/country of

registration/ Proportion of ownership

incorporation/ interests/voting rights held
Name of subsidiary operations by non-controlling interests

WEAREE B/ AR FERERFEZAEE

s/ RERELY
2020 2019

¥ HEREHAE-NAANFEAZ +
—BHEFIF - EMFECEAELLE
HE T _MFPA-_+=-H-

b EEREDIRTERIZBOHERA
o

ERFFZARFMNERRRAR A
EERAIEYEAFENBLEED
BRAEBEEFEEAND 2 M B
A

RERKFRNERMEHE - HEHE R
BAIRITEMERE

TRIIFSAEERBEEANFZERER
ZHEEMBRRZHE:

Profit/(Loss) allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
PEEFERERZ
wAl/ (F8) Rt FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZE-ZF 2T 0F BB 2T %
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR THT

CEP PRC 27% 27% 2,301 (706) (2632  (5066)
RERE H
Individually immaterial subsidiary with
non-controlling interests = - (15) (19)
FEFERER @R ERMNE
NS
2,301 706 (2647  (5.081)

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

(42) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of CEP is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents

ERRERECVBENBRERSI W
T TIHHBERAMEREEARA

(42) RHI B 1 Al 2 R =& (@)

amounts before intragroup eliminations. M HAT 2 B8 o
CEP RERBE
2020 2019
—E-EFE | D25
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current assets mEEE 26,837 31,386
Non-current assets ERBEE 132,569 147,867
Current liabilities FE)E (B (152,647) (180,526)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (9,081) (9,972)
Equity attributable to owners of RATHE AEGEZ
the Company 310 (5,747)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR M 2= (2,632) (5,498)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 =—Z=ZTF I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(42) INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (42 R B D 7] 2 RE %= (@)
CEP (Continued) RERE @

2020 2019

ZEZEF | == AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Revenue g 77,584 75,820

Expenses fi 32 (69,028) (78,450)

Profit/(Loss) for the year RNEE&HF/(EE) 8,556 (2,630)
Other comprehensive income AN EH b2 U R

for the year 466 538

Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEE 2 E (B X) &%
for the year 9,022 (2,092)

Profit/(Loss) for the year attributable to: A T~ A+ fE(G AN E

wm A, (E1E) -
— owners of the Company — RRREAA 6,255 (1,924)
— non-controlling interests —JEERER 2,301 (706)
8,556 (2,630)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) A N A+ EEAREE 2 E K
for the year attributable to (F) 4858
— owners of the Company —ARRREAA 6,588 (1,531)
— non-controlling interests — IR 2,434 (561)
9,022 (2,092)
Net cash generated from operating RESEBIEA IR R
activities 4,509 386
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEZH (A, ELz
investing activities R R (140) 269

Net cash used in financing activities BESEHTA IS R - —

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &#Z -E-FF=H=+—HIIFE

o

| & 7
M=

CEMEERSE

(43) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND (43) & &
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY L]

i

2020 2019
—E-EF ZEZ—NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BERAFEFABERZ SHEE
Investments in convertible bonds as AR ESRE 2 B EI D
a whole 571,065 469,737
Bank structured product RITHEBE D 1,652 1,769

Financial assets at amortised cost HEHK AT EZ 2B EE

Loan to an associate BEXTF—MBEQT 15,383 5,027
Amount due from an associate JE U — [ Bt & A Bl 5RIE 38,377 29,388
Trade and bills receivables B SRR & B E & 10,484 20,047
Deposits and other receivables R4 N H i E R R IE 4,012 10,470
Pledged bank deposits BEIFRITHER 21,493 20,994
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEH 126,242 148,902
788,708 706,334
2020 2019
—E-2F | ZF AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FABT
Financial liabilities cREeE
Financial liabilities measured W HEK ARG E B E
at amortised cost

Trade and bills payables BoRNERLENERE 6,239 8,125
Accruals and other payables TEIRER M E b EN A 31,522 43,886
Convertible bonds ABKRES 58,950 49,635

96,711 101,646
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &HZ —Z—=

(43) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(@)

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED REZXEIERER AT

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Due to short term nature, the carrying values of financial
assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost,
excluding loan to an associate and liability component of
convertible bonds, are approximate fair value.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income — Unlisted investment
fund, at fair value

The fair value hierarchy is level 2.

The market value, which approximates fair value, of this
fund is primarily calculated based on the quoted prices of
the underlying listed investments in active markets with
certain adjustments made to reflect the interest of the
fund holder.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Bank structured product, at fair value

The fair value hierarchy is level 2.

The fair value of the bank structured product is
determined based on estimated return of 3.0% (2019: 2.6%)
and the credit quality of these investments which can be
assessed by reference to historical information or external
credit ratings, if any, provided by the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds
The fair value hierarchy is level 3.

The fair value of investments in convertible bonds is
determined based on the risk-free rate for the life of the
option and share price (from observable market data),
expected volatility of the share price of Innovative Pharm
and expected dividend yield on the shares and exercise
price.

FZA=1T—HILLFE

(43) &= 8@
ELR=]

Bl zveEMEERSE
BHEm
@ WEHFZEQXAFETEZEH

=t

RAREHME  RENRASE
CERMBERSRMABB(TBE
BT -RmL AT RARRE

FRAERD)ZEEERAYE
& e

BRATVEFEZEMIA

B R FEE AR AME K@
ZEBEE —HFLTREER
£ BAFE
RFEBRRE -

ZEesTEERIFERE)E
g%*ﬁ?@?ﬂ%ﬁ%Z*ﬁ?ﬁtﬁ&
BeREE AFEHETHE
LA&H%ﬁﬁhﬁ/\ZEA °

BAFETGTAEZZZHE
E —RITEABMESR BAL
FiE

ANTFEEREE K-
BITEBEERZAFENRR
3.0%(ZZF—NF :2.6%) 2 fhat
CREET MSEREZEE
BEME2EB/EERRIEITR
HZINBEEFHR(WF) T AT
1l o

BAFHEAAEZZZHME
E—-ARKREFKE
NFEERRE=-

AHRBRESREZAFEDIER

HRFHZERRANERIE
(RERBEMSHE) Aﬁﬁn

Be % (B TR B R IR K AR 10 TR B AR
Wam R RITEBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(43) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

(b)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
— Investments in convertible bonds (Continued)
Significant unobservable inputs

Expected volatility of the share price of Innovative Pharm,
determined by reference to historical share price of
Innovative Pharm. The higher the volatility of the share
price of Innovative Pharm, the higher the fair value.

There were no changes in valuation techniques for the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at fair value, on a recurring
basis, by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

W EZEERETZ2EeHEER S
MmEEHNE@m

) BAFEHEZSRMIA

(%)

BRAFEAFARZZZHE
E—-ARKREFRE (E)
BEATTEEAZE

BB B B (B TR AR R T
2EEMBELEEMEETE - &
fin B8 B BN IE B K AP EY

=
ST

=4

TEREBBEREUELERANTEE
RRENEERIATFEFEZS

MITAZDHM:

FE—F: EBBRMES EHEREE
F BB RE(TIER
B):

FE_R: BMABREBREN

S LBEESABAIE
& (AME ) kM & (A
REERBRE2BA
2E R
F=: WIERABRMS
BBECEELREL
BWABE(TABRS
ABE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e BB RRME (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H& —E-FF=F=+—HIFE

(43) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND @3) & E R &8 5
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY MEEHNE @
(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b)

(Continued)

There was no transfer between different levels of the fair
value hierarchy during the year ended 31 March 2020,
and there was no change in valuation techniques for the
following Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis at the end of the reporting
period:

Level 1

E—&

HK$’000

FExT
Financial asset at fair ERAFEFAEME
value through other HlHZceRMEE

comprehensive income —

(%)

ZEMEERSE

BAVEFEzEMIEA

HE-F-FF=A=+-AL
TR AFEBRNEEZEL
MAETHE HRREHE T
IR R4S MR R AP 2
ZARBERMAE HENRL

—g—%

—

Level 2

EZR
HK$’000
FHET

&=
Level 3
F=R

HK$’000
TE T

Total
st
HK$’000
F#ET

Financial assets at fair & A F(EF AR Z
value through profit or & gt & &
loss — 1,652 571,065 572,717
— 1,652 571,065 572,717

Level 1

F—

HK$'000

FA& T
Financial asset at fair BATFEFAEMD
value through other Al mse@EE

comprehensive income —

2019

—E-NF

Level 2
FER
HK$'000
FAT

Level 3
FE=R
HK$’000
TAT

Total
45T
HK$’'000
FAT

Financial assets at fair & A FEF AEFZ
value through profit or &R & E
loss — 1,769 469,737 471,506
— 1,769 469,737 471,506

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
A B RS R R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z—FF = =+—HILFE

(43) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND (43) & &
|

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY w8 E8E |

(Continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value b) ZEAFEFEze@MI A
(Continued) (#&)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value WIEEATA SR AZBE(FE
based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as =HIEAFEFEZSRITA
follows: ZHEBEMOT

Derivative

component

Unlisted of unlisted
investments investments
in convertible in convertible

bonds bonds
L A#
REFKRE
FEmATE MWMHTEIR
REFHRE 5
HK$'000 HK$000
FAT FAT
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NF=RAR=+—H — 4,296
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 BB MG R FE IR
ZRE 414,973 (4,296)
At 1 April 2018, restated R-ZE-NFOA—B K&
5l 414,973 —
Interest received Bk A8 (25,025) -
Change in fair value in profit or loss 1825 A ’A FEZ8 (Gt AHEAM
(included in other gains and losses)  Ug z5 K &5 18) 79,789 —

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZTE—NAF=A=+—HK

—E-hnFWA—H 469,737 —

Change in fair value in profit or loss Bz A FEZ S GT AH M
(included in other gains and losses) W 25 & &5 18) 101,328 —
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-_TF=A=+—H 571,065 —
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(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include investments in
convertible bonds, trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables, loan to an
associate, amount due from an associate and convertible
bonds. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks
such as foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The management monitors and manages
the financial risks through internal risk assessment which
analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.

(@) Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when commercial
transactions, assets or liabilities are denominated in a
currency that is not the functional currency of the group
entities. The Group operates mainly in the PRC and
Malaysia and is exposed to foreign currency exchange
rate risk arising from various foreign currency exposures.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
ma R R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B2 =L =_FF = A=+—HILtFE

(44) B % EL B B I

AEB ITEcRIAREITARE
FRE BZREREREERRE -
BehEMEKRE EEMRITHE
R RITER BEHERNERRREN
ZE BREALEMBEMNRE &
AT —HBERAR BE-—HBELER
AIFERAREES ZFERTA
ZHBREBHERE -

\

AEBzEHSASERESBEY B
R mirERE - EERR AP
EeRBREAERR ~NEE2ER
RREfstdlEras@mmE 2zt
AFEAE  YSREFEEREHLEE
MBRRZEBEBETNZE -TEER
BAMERE DMEREERE
B EnhERMKRAR-

(@) HMEEE P2

SMERBRIFREBERINEES
ZEBINBEZAERS  BEN
BREELE - AKBZEBIER
FRELSRADKE  TEHES
BIONEEE ZIIEEXRRR - K
SERE I EIMNE A RBR - A
m-EEEeERINIERR I
R 2 BB Z B 3 E RN AL

@ o
AA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR B S R R B R ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #% —

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities in net position

T_ZF=H

(44) B1 7% 2 b B 2 (@)

@ &

&

2| B ()

R_EBE_TFR—

=f—HIEEE

F—N¥=A

=+—B RINBFHEZEEER

as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: ENBEFEZEEEWNT :
Euro RMB Us$
BT AR E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FAT TAT FAE T
At 31 March 2020 R-BZ-ZF
=A=+—H
Pledged bank deposit B IRIRIT I 5K - - 19,145
Cash and bank balances e RBITHEES 3,780 1,539 24,015
Trade and bills payables B RN ERREN
S (150) — -
Overall net exposure S HEE R FE 3,630 1,539 43,160
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZE—h&E
=A=+-—H
Pledged bank deposit EEMIRITER — — 18,687
Cash and bank balances B4 NIRITE 3,870 1,876 13,065
Trade and bills payables B HEMNEE &FE =
E37 (2,580) — —
Overall net exposure 2 HE R FRE 1,290 1,876 31,752
The cash and bank balances denominated in US$ belong NETHEZEAS RIBTELRE
to the group entities in which the functional currency is RIMEEESB L2 EEERE-
HK$. The directors are of the opinion that the HK$ are BEER A BAREREEX4|
reasonably stable with the US$ under the Linked ET BrlEEZTHEEE
Exchange Rate System, and accordingly, no sensitivity It - S 4 A 1T 3= T $ B T 2 SRR
analysis of US$ with respect to HK$ is performed. E DM e
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z=—ZF&#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE= - -—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of each of the following years:

Euro appreciated by 5% BT B 5%
RMB appreciated by 5% AREFEE%

(44) B1 7% = B B 2 (@)

(@)

S8 L B ()

T2 30 A R B R 4 R R AR
oA 2 BB A E AR E
RATEEEATAEEARRY
EESORSET 1K

2020 2019
—2-2HF | D= AF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
(182) (65)

77 (94)

The change in exchange rates do not affect the Group’s
other component of equity. The same percentage
depreciation in the foreign currencies against the
functional currency of the respective group companies
would have the same magnitude on profit and retained
profits but of opposite effect.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of each of the reporting period and had been
applied to each of the group entities; exposure to
currency risk for financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The stated changes represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next reporting date.

ET*;*EJJT\Q%E ZN LIy
CHNEHERERBZY
EEMZH B iz E 8 A
KRB i M B AR R I8 E B R @
ZRE-

/\—L

BREITIIBRREXRERE
HMARECRLESEYMEE  XEM
REEEER LeR T AMA
RZEBERBRRZABEFE
PA Ko B B H At B B (R Bl = A R
METE A EHRKREERE
HEXREZE MMERS B A S
M2 EErIReEs 25 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A R M A (&)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &£ =—Z - F = A=+—HIEFE

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily relates to
variable-rate pledged bank deposits and bank balances (see
notes 28 and 29 respectively for details). The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise. The management considers the Group’s exposure
to future cash flow interest rate risk is minimal taking into
account the minimal fluctuation on market interest rate.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

Liquidity risk

The Group actively manages its debt maturity profile,
operating cash flows and the availability of funding so as
to ensure that all operating, investing and financing needs
are met. The liquidity risk management strategy adopted
by the Group is to measure and forecast its cash
commitments and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate to finance the Group’s
activities.

Analysis of financial instruments by remaining
contractual maturities.

The table below summaries the maturity profile of the
Group’s liabilities at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations
(including interest payments computed using contractual
rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date).

44 R ER @

(b)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

A = & b

AEBZReRENERRAREE
BOZ B AR E Z B RBEIT
GTREBITEH(FBED B RM
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B BEERAANEEEATR
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REE SRR

AEBEBREEEBEHKIBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (44) B 7% & & & 2 ()

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) ) RBEZRME &

Weighted PATCES

average Total Within1 More than More than

effective contractual yearor 1yearbut butless
interest  Carrying undiscounted repayable less than2 than5 More than
rate  amount cash flow on demand years years 5 years

BA-F BAWE

mEF BRAEE —Fad  EOR BIR
ERNE  REE ReREAE REREKE M iF BEIF
HK$'000 HK$000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
THEL TEL  TEL TER TEL  TER

At 31 March 2020 R-Z-Z%
ZB=t+-H
Trade and bills payables BHRNERRE
NES 6,239 6,239 6,239 - = =
Accruals and other payables FREARAME
R 32,251 32,251 32,251 - - -
Convertible bonds ARES 18.72% 58,950 577,170 - - - 517,170
97,440 615,660 38,490 - - 577,170
At 31 March 2019 RZB-hE
ZA=+-H
Trade and bills payables BOEMRILE
HEE 8,125 8,125 8,125 - - -
Accruals and other payables BREARAME
zE 54,636 54,636 54,636 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 18.72% 49,635 577,170 - - — 577,170
112,396 639,931 62,761 - — 577,170
(d) Credit risk d EFERK
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to AREB7EZERBREIER G
investments in convertible bonds, trade and other BREHFEE B FHEUKEERNE
receivables, amount due from an associate, loan to an ftb FE UM FRTE - B — BB A A
associate, pledged bank deposits and bank balances. RE -BERF—HBELF B
IR TR R IRIT 454 o
As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s maximum exposure to R-ZEBE-_FTEF=HA=+—H" 'K
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group EEfMEY s EAEERR (S
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the THHFREBTEEMS A
counterparties is the carrying amounts of the respective EBAERRIERX) BEE MG
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated MAKRINE 2 RECEEREBRE
statement of financial position. EZREE -

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #Z —Z - =

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The investments in convertible bonds as at 31 March
2020 expose the Group to concentration of credit risk. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the
financial position and performance of the issuer of the
convertible bonds of carrying amount HK$571,065,000
(2019: HK$469,737,000) and in view of the net assets of
the issuer, the management considers the default risk on
the investments in convertible bonds is not significant.

The Group also has concentration of credit risk as 18%
(2019: 25%) of the total trade receivables were due from
the Group’s major customers, which are privately owned
PRC and Macau companies engaged in trading of
pharmaceutical products. The directors of the Company
considered that the credit risk of trade receivables is
insignificant after considering the credit quality and
financial ability of these customers. In respect of trade
receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history. These
credit evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of
making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. The Group will make
specific provision for those balances which cannot be
recovered. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers. In the opinion of the directors, the default
risk of the Group is considered to be low.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

A R M A (&)

F=ZA=1T—HILFE

44 R ER @

(d)

EERE M @)

NR—_E_FTF=F=+— EZT
BREFRESAEBEER
Erh o REREHK $%@%m
BR M 18 A& 571,065,000/8 T (=&
— JL4F : 469,737,000 7T ) 2 A
BREHFBHTAZHBRILR
FR ERBITAEBZEEF
B EEERAETRBRESEE
ZEHEBRIEITEK -

AEEFEERREST ERES
WK ABEF18%(ZF— N
F 6% NEBAKEEZER
EFRA ZEEFP/NEER
BHZPBEFRMALART &
ERREEPZEEEREMY
BEE N ARREERRES
W B ZFEH&ITEK
REZERWERME  BAAR
KBBRE ?%ﬁﬁgzﬁﬁtﬁ
BYEEMG - AKBEFTAEE
BRAEREEHR/EELE
RFZEF ZEFEFHEE
AZEPXMNEIMFBEZBER
B UARBARIZXNNEESN ALE
BEFREEMRERAERES
IERBERREZER - AEEK
ERELETREE 2 ARIELE
EEE-—RME AKELE
AEPKRBRERR - EFRR
AEEEHZENRRBIE -

AEEFERBRERELZEES
BHEERKXFEZIAGEE
SRR BRERE - ARA
SEBAEEERRKERYEBRT
TREFSBEEATRBLRE
N EBaREZERRETS
E—IRAKETRETFEZE

AN
mm 77 °©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
AR A Bt 5 R R B ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2=—F-—FF=F=+—HI-FE

(44) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)  (44) B 7% & & & 2 ()

(d) Credit risk (Continued) d) EERE@E
The following table provides information about the TR ANEB L E 5 EWERR
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade and NEWZEMEGZEERR &
bills receivables: BHEEBRLX ZER
Past due
but not
impaired —
within 180
Current BV
[ERERERS
wWE—180
B H#A HA
At 31 March 2020 R_ZT_TF
=A=+—H
Expected credit loss (%) TEHB{E 1B 2K (%) 1.42 1.42 1.42
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000)  BR [ 4218 (T 7T) 7,945 2,539 10,484
Loss allowance (HK$’000) EiEEE(TET) (62)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE—-NF
=R=+—H
Expected credit loss (%) FEH{EEIB KX (%) 1.34 1.34 1.34
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BR i 4218 (T8 7T) 16,102 3,945 20,047
Loss allowance (HK$’000) BB E (T AT 97)
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience JEHEEBXNREAF—F 2T
over the past 1 year. These rates are adjusted to reflect REEKBSTE « ZE L RTIK
differences between economic conditions during the R DA B U & E S 2R HE
period over which the historical data has been collected, 2R ART C WA AR AKEEF
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic HE W FRIE 2 AT EHE 2 &K AR
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables MEBEBEZER o
(45) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (45) & & B 1
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard AREBEBEARAZBEZEAREARAEEH
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it BEMEERE NEEEELERNEGE
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits BUAE DB AR AN - 48 AR R IR 1}%
for other stakeholders through optimisation of capital structure B 3R & A H i 7 25 A8 B & % 3 Fl| 55
to reduce the cost of capital. The Group’s overall strategy NEE 7 BREERE F—FEHFI
remains unchanged from prior year. o

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A B RS R R M ()

For the year ended 31 March 2020 & Z —ZE —"ZF=HA=+—HItFE

(45) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure,
and makes adjustments to it taking into account the changes in
economic conditions, risk characteristics of the underlying
assets, the Group’s investment strategy and opportunities,
projected operating cash flows and capital expenditures. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the level of borrowings, dividend payment to shareholders,
issue new shares, or buy back its own shares.

(45) EXREE @)

AEBETHENREREERNEE
YRERBKEBERNZEE) EREE
ZERBEE NEEZRERE LK
i@iﬁ/ﬁﬂ,@ Iﬁ;%/m%l«x&ﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ
BIEHFAE- ﬁi’ﬁﬁimﬁﬁ$i¢
B AEEFREBABEEKRKF XM
FTRRZEL %’%ﬁ%ﬁﬂxfﬁlﬂ%@ﬁ
SR

2020 2019
—g-mE —E h&E
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fii Fi T
Debts & 64,536 49,635
Total equity iR 1,139,848 1,061,571
Gearing ratio BERAGBHLX 5.7% 4.7%
(46) APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED (46) #Ht E 4R E M | &

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the directors on 29 June 2020.

EER_ZFT-_FTFA-tTALBHE
REENEGEMBERE -
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FIVE YEARS’ FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBER

AEEBETEMBRERZEE URE
E RENFERERSHBRNT

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, is set
out below:

For the year ended 31 March
HE=A=T-BLFE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZEF ZE-NF ZT-N\F ZT—+tF TR F
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT FAT FHET FATT
RESULTS E
Revenue & 77,584 89,218 85,762 107,903 142,201
Profit before income tax W P12 % Al A 85,491 63,374 29,186 18,927 27,490
Income tax credit/(expense) FIERER,/ (XH) 90 (50) 86 616) (90)
Profit for the year E E i F 85,581 63,324 29,272 18,311 27,400
Attributable to: AT AL :
— Owners of the Company —ARNEEEB A 83,280 64,030 29,930 20,796 32,781
— Non-controlling interests — RS 2,301 (706) (658) (2,485) (5,381)
85,581 63,324 29,272 18,311 27,400

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND

As at 31 March
R=B=+—H

2020 2019
—T-NEF
HK$'000

THET

—E-%F
HK$'000
TRR

EE BEREER

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET

2017
—T—tF
HK$'000
FHET

2016
—E-RF
HK$'000
FHET

NON-CONTROLLING -

INTERESTS
Total assets BwEE 1,265,710 1,196,086 1,216,783 1,172,669 1,160,853
Total liabilities BAEE (125,862)  (134,515)  (149,704)  (146,818)  (144,954)
Total equity BT 1,139,848 1,061,571 1,067,079 1,025,851 1,015,899
Non-controlling interests FEIER R 2,647 5,081 4,494 3,841 1,350
Equity attributable to owners of A2 BB A FE/G

the Company RS 1,142,495 1,066,652 1,071,573 1,029,692 1,017,249

EXTRAWELL PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED BEZEEZERERAE
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